
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

FRIDAY, 23 MARCH 2018 AT 2PM

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR,  THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Jane Di Dino 023 9283 4060
Email: jane.didino@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above.

Membership

Councillor Luke Stubbs (Cabinet Member)

Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting).

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted.

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for Absence. 

2  Declarations of Members' Interests. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


2

3  Learning disabilities section 75 agreement extension (Pages 5 - 92)

Purpose.
To seek approval of the Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care to extend 
the section 75 agreement for the Integrated Learning Disability Service (LDS).

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member agrees to the extension of the 
current Learning Disability s75 agreement for a period of three years to 
31 March 2021.

4  S75 partnership agreements between Portsmouth City Council and 
Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group (Pages 93 - 160)

Purpose 
To provide the rationale for an extension of the S75 agreement for integrated 
health and social care commissioning for vulnerable adults for a further-term 
of 3 years until 31 March 2021.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care 
approve the deed of variation to extend the term of the S75 agreement 
for a period of 3 years until 31 March 2021. 

5  Adult Mental Health Section 75 Extension (Pages 161 - 224)

Purpose.
To seek approval of the Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care to extend 
the section 75 agreement for the Integrated Adult Mental Health Service 
(AMH).

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member agrees to the extension of the 
current AMH s75 Agreement for a period of one year, until 1 July 2019.

6  Better Care Fund Section 75 Agreement 

The report will follow.

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and 
social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the 
meeting nor records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. 
Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the 
Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other 
difficulties occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's 
website.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care  
 

Date of meeting: 
 

23rd March 2018 

Subject: 
 

Learning Disabilities Section 75 Agreement Extension 

Report by: 
 

Andy Biddle, Deputy director Adult Services (Acting)  
Dominic Dew, Integrated commissioning Service 
 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1.  Purpose of report 
 
1.1 To seek approval of the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care to extend 

the section 75 agreement for the Integrated Learning Disability Service (ILDS). 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Cabinet member agrees to the extension of the current Learning Disability 

s75 Agreement for a period of three years to 31 March 2021. 
  
3. Background 
 
3.1 The ILDS operates under a Section 75 Lead Provider arrangement with 

Portsmouth City Council (PCC) as the lead provider of both Health and Social 
Care to people with a learning disability (with or without Autism), with both 
services acting as a single integrated service hosted by PCC. 

 
3.2 Under the partnership agreement PCC contract with Solent NHS Trust for an 

agreed staffing establishment and associated costs with clear outcomes.  PCC 
are accountable as the lead provider for delivery of the ILDS service 
specification and the Health and Social Care outcomes measures. 

 
3.3 The current agreement, which commenced April 2014, expires at the end of 

March 18 and a new contract is currently being drafted for the next 3 years 
following agreement by the Learning Disability Partnership Management Group. 
This was agreed on 8th December 2017 by this group chaired by the Assistant 
Director of Adult Social Services. 

 
3.4 Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) expenditure for the provision 

of the ILDS Health service is £1.657m per annum. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

3.5 The s75 partnership agreement is overseen and monitored by the Integrated 
Commissioning Service (ICS). 

 
4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.1 It is estimated that approximately 4,594 people (across all age ranges) in 

Portsmouth have a learning disability.  The ILDS service is actively involved with 
the care and support of around 700 of these individuals having a hugely positive 
impact on individuals' health and wellbeing, helping them to stay well cared for, 
healthy and as independent as possible. 

 
4.2 The extension of the existing s75 agreement will ensure continuity to the current 

health and social care work programmes and staffing for adults with a learning 
disability. 

 
4.3 The health element of the ILDS was rated as 'Outstanding' by CQC in November 

2016. 
 
5. Equality impact assessment 
 
5.1 An assessment is not required as the decision will have no negative impact on 

the protected characteristics.   This is an extension of an already existing service 
for people with learning disabilities. 

 
5.2 There will be no change to the service therefore no change for the clients 

accessing the service this will just ensure continuity for clients with a learning 
disability. 

 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 allows local authorities and NHS bodies to enter 

into partnership arrangements to provide a joined service and pool resources, if 
such arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way their 
functions are exercised. 

 
6.2 The current 75 Agreement allows the parties to agree in writing to extend it for 

whatever period they wish beyond the initial term of 3 years, subject to the 
approval of the Partner's board. 

 
7. Director of Finance's comments 
 
7.1 There are no additional financial implications arising from the recommendation 

contained within this report, as it seeks to continue the existing arrangements, 
as set out within the s.75 agreement. 

 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 

Page 4



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Signed by:  
 
 
Appendices:  1) Section 75 Agreement dated 1st April 2014 between PCC and Solent 
NHS Trust, 2) Integrated Learning Disability Service Specification (revised Feb 2018) 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



DATED t
9T ft(Èru

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

and

SOLENT NHS TRUST

AGREEMENT

under s.75 National Health Service Act 2006
in relation to the provision of an lntegrated
Health and SocialCare Learning Disability

Service

LegalServices
Portsmouth City Council

Civic Offices
GuildhallSquare

Portsmouth
PO1 2PX
cc2403

2014

Page 7



Corure¡lrs

Guuse
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION ....................,..2

NHS SUCCESSOR BOD¡ES....... ........... e

GOMMENCEMENT AND DURATION .................................... ..........9

EXTENDING THF INITIAL TERM

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS...... .................... l0

DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS ll
SERVICES

ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME ll

SET UP COSTS l3

PREMISES t3

STAFFTNG (TUPE, SECONDMENT AND PENSTONS) ............... l3

GOVERNANCE,"..-..,...,....

QUARTERLY REVIEW AND REPORT]NG t4

HEALTH AND SAFETY l5

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION 24

PUBLICITY 25

n

26

Page 8



43.

44.

45.

46.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION 27

Scneoul.e

Scneourc I Arrvrs nruo OutcorrlES.:.....
Scneourc 2 TRUST FUNCTIoNS

Scneouu3 AurHoRrrYFuNcnoNs

.29
.....31

Scneouu 4 ExcLUDED FuNc1oNs............ 34
ScHEDULE 5 Senvrce Specrprcnr¡oN ................. ..........,.....35
Scngouu 6 Huunru Resounces
ScnEouu 7- l¡lroRveroru SnRnr¡.rc 57

SCHEDULE 8 - GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS .57

SCHEDULÉ 9 - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS...... .61

Page 9



(B)

(c)

(D)

(E)

(F)

f t in î't Ðc¡ r'\('"'î 'i'in ¡1

DATE.........

PARTIEs

(1) PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth,

. Hampshire, PO1 2PX ("the Authority")

(2) SOLÊNT ñHS TRUST whose offices are situateo at Adelaide Health Centre, Wrllram

Macleod Way, Miflbrook, Southampton SO16 4XE ("the Trust")

Bacxcnoulrro

(A) Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 contains powers enabling NHS

Bodies to exercise certain local authority functions and for locat authorities to
exercise various NHS frinctions. The Partners are entering into this Agreement in

exercise of those powers under and pursuant to the NHS Regulations 2000.

The Partners are committed to better integration of the NHS Functions and the
Authority Health-Related Functions, and therefore wish to enter into the
arrangements under this Agreement.

The Trust enters into this Agreement as provider of the NHS Functions relating to
learning disability services.

The Authority enters into this Agreement as

provider of the Authority Health-Related Functions relatíng to learning disability
services

This Agreement provídes the framework within which the Partners will work together
to achieve the Aims and Outcomes.

The aim of this Agreement is to enable the integration of the health and social care
elements of learning disability services to deliver the Partners' statutory
responsibilities towards people with learning disabilities and the requirements of the
national Adult Social Gare Outcomes Framework and the NHS Outcomes
Framework

AOReeo TERMs

1. DEFINITION AND INTERPRETAT¡ON

1.1 The definitions and rules of interpretation in this clause apply in this Agreement.

Agreement: this Agreement between the Trust and the Authority comprising these
terms and conditions together with all schedules attached to it.

Aims and Outcomes: the objectives of the Partners, setting out how the Partnership
Arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way the Functions are
exercised, as described in Schedule 1.

Annual Work Programme: has the meaning set out in clause L
4lP a ge

Page 10



Authority Health-Related Functions: the health related functions of the Authority
listed in Regulation 6 of the NHS Regulations 2000 (and further described in

Schedule 3 (Authority Functions) of this Agreement) in relation to the provision of, or
making arrangements for the provision of, the Services but excluding the Excluded
Functions

Authority's Authorised Officer: Justin Wallace-Cook, Assistant Head of Social
Care

Authority's Financial Obligations: the Authority's financial obligations are set out
in Schedule 9.

Ghange in Law: means the coming into effect or repeal (without re-enactment or
consolidation) in England of any Law, or any amendment or variation to any Law, or
any judgment of a relevant court of law which changes binding precedent in England
that impacts on the Partnership Arrangements and comes into force after the
Commencement Date,

Commencement Date: 1st April 2014

Confidential I nformation:
means all information, data and/or material of any nature which either Party may
receive or obtain in connection with the operation of the Contract, including any
information, data and/or material:

(a) which comprises Personal Data or Sensitive Personal Data (as both terms
are defined in the Data Protection Act 1998);

(b) the release of which is likely to prejudice the commercial interests of either
Party;

(c) which is a trade secret; or

ß) is identified at the time of disclosure as being confidential.

Council's Service User Records: means the records created and maintained by the
Authority pursuant to clause 23.2.

Data Protection Legislation: this includes:

(a) the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA 1998);

(b) Directive 9514611} on the protection of individuals with regard to the
processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data;

(c) the Regulation of lnvestigator¡¡ Powers Act 2000;

(d) the Telecommunications (Lawful Business Practice) (lnterception of
Communications) Regulations 2000 (S/ 2000/2699):

(") Directive 200215818C concerning the processing of Personal Data and the
protection of privacy in the electronic communications sector;

5lPage

Page 11



(Ð the Privacy and Electronic Communications (EC Directive) Regulations 2003
(St 2003/2426); and

(g) all applicable laws and regulations relating to processing personal data and
privacy, including the guidance and codes of practice issued by the
lnformation Commissioner, where applicable.

Direct Losses: means all damages, losses, indebtedness, ciaims, actions,
cash, expenses (including the cost of legal or professional services, legal costs beíng
an agenUclient, client paying basis), proceedings, demands and charges whether
arising under statute, contract or at common law, but, to avoid doubt, excluding
lndirect Losses;

Dispute Resolution Procedure: the procedure set out in clause 31.

EIR: the Environmental lnformation Regulations 2004 (5l,2004/3391)

Equality Legislation: means the Equality Act 2010, Human Rights Act 1998 and
any other relevant law which ensures, among others; equality of access to goods and
services; promotion of good relations between groups in society; the provision of
Reasonable Adjustments for people with disabilities (as defined in the Equality Act
2010);and equality in employment;

Excluded Functions: such Functions contained in Schedule 4 (Excluded Functions)
of this Agreement and/or such Functions as the Partners may agree from time to time
are excluded from the Arrangements, together with any exclusions set out in the NHS

Regulations 2000.

Financial Obligations: the financial obligations of the Partners as set out in

Schedule 9

FinancialYear: 1 Aprilto 31 March

First Financial Year: 1 April 2014to31 March 2015.

FOIA: the Freedom of lnformation Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made

under it from time to time, together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by

the lnformation Commissioner or relevant government department concerning this
legislation,

Functions: the NHS Functions and the Authority's Health-Related Functions.

Host Partner: the host partner for the Functions under this Agreement.

lndirect Losses: means indirect loss of profits, loss of use, loss of production, loss
of business, loss of business opportunity, loss of business revenue, loss of goodwill
or any claÍm for consequential loss or for indirect loss of any nature.

lndividual Agreement: the agreements made between each Post Holder, the Trust

and the Authority describing the terms on which the Post Holder will be made
available by the Trust to the Authority.

lnformation: has the meaning given under section 84 of FOIA.

6lPage

Page 12



lnformation Sharing Protocol: the protocol describing how the Partners will share
lnformation contained in a form approved by the partners under Schedule 7;

lnitial Term: the period commencing on the Commencement Date and ending on the
third anniversary of the Commencement Date.

Law: any applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy,

guidance or industry code, any applicable judgement of a relevant court of law which
is a binding precedent in England, directives or requirements of any Regulatory
Body, delegated or subordinate legislation, or notice of any Regulatory Body.

NHS Act 2006: National Health Service Act 2006.

NHS Body: shall have the meaning set out in Regulation 3(1) of the NHS

Regulations 2000.

NHS Functions: shall .have the meaning set out in regulation 5 of the NHS
Regulations 2000.

NHS Regulations 2000: the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership
Arrangements Regulations 2000 (Sl 2000/612) (as amended) .

Ombudsman: means the Health Service Ombudsman and the Local Government
Ombudsman.

Partner: either the Trust or the Authority, and "Partners" shall be construed
accordingly.

Partnership Arrangements: the arrangements made between the Partners under
this Agreement.

Partnership Management Group: the body of officers of the Trust and of the
Authority appointed and with the powers and functions as more particularly described
in Schedule I (Governance Arrangements).

Personal Data: shall have the same meaning as set out in the DPA 1998.

Post Holder: the individuals identified in Schedule 6 and being the individuals who,

as at the Commencement Date, are made available to the Authority by the Trust.

Quarter: the following periods in each Financial Year:

(a) 1 April to 30 June;

(b) 1 July to 30 September;

(c) 1 October to 31 December; and

(d) I January to 31 March.

Regulatory Body: those government departments and regulatory, statutory and

other entities, committees and bodies that, whether under statute, rules, regulations,
codes of practice or othenruise, are entitled to regulate, investigate or influence the

matters dealt with in this Agreement, or any other affairs of the Authority andior the
Trust

TlPage

Page 13



1.2

Relevant Transfer: a relevant transfer under TUPE.

Representative: a Partner's employee, agent or subcontractor and any employee of
the other Partner who is seconded to the Partner and is acting in accordance with the
Partner's instructions.

Request for lnformation: a request for lnformation or an apparent request under the

Code of Practice.on Access to Government lnformation, FOIA or the Environmental
lnformation Regulations 2004 (S/ 2004/3391) (ElR).

Service Provider: a third-party provider of any of the Services, as commissioned by

the Trust or the Authority before the Commencement Date or the Authority (or a third
party commissioned by the Authority in order to facilitate the delivery of any of the

Services by the Authority on behalf of the Partners) from the Commencement Date.

Service User: individuals who are eligible to receive the Services, as more
particularly described in Schedule 5.

Services: the services to be delivered by or on behalf of the Partners under this

Agreement, as more particularly described in clause 7 and Schedule 5.

Term: the period of the lnitial Term as may be varied by:

(a) any extensions to this Agreement that are agreed under clause 4; or

(b) the earlier termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms.

Third Party: means any party other than the Authority or the Trust.

Trust's Authorised Officer: Debbie Clarke

Trust's Financial Obligations: the Trust's financial obligations are set out in
Schedule 9.

Trust's Premises: The Kestrel Gentre, St James' Hospital, Locksway Road,
Portsmouth

Trust's Service User Records: has the meaning ascribed to the term in Clause 23.1

TUPE: the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006
(st2006/246).

VAT Guidance: the guidance published by the Department of Health entitled "VAT

arrangements for Joint NHS and Local Authority lnitiatives including Disability

Equipment Stores and Welfare- Section 31 Health Act 1999".

Working Day: any day other than Saturday, Sunday, a public or bank holiday in
England.

Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this
Agreement.

The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in

full in the body of this Agreement, Any reference to this Agreement includes the

Schedules.
SlPage

1.3

Page 14



1.4 Words in the singular include the pluraland vice versa.

1.5 A reference to one gender includes a reference to the other genders

1.6 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as it is in force for
the time being, taking account of any amendment, extension or re-enactment and

includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under it.

1.7 A reference to writing or written includes faxes and e-mail.

1.8 Any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an

obligation not to agree or allow that thing to be done.

1.9 A reference to a document is a reference to that document as varied or novated
(in each case, other than in breach of the provisions of this Agreement) at any
time.

1.10 References to clauses and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this

Agreement. References to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant

Schedule.

2. NHS SUCCESSOR BODIES

2,1 The Partners acknowledge that the legal status, identity or constitution of the Trust

as an NHS body may change during the Term including, without limítation, the
Trust becoming a foundation trust pursuant to the NHS Act 2006.

2.2 Wíthout prejudice to Clause 38.2, the Partners shall use all reasonable

endeavours to ensure that this Agreement continues to have effect
notwithstanding any such change as is referred to in clause 2.1 including but not
límited to reasonable endeavours to secure the novation of this Agreement to any
successor body of the Trust where both Parties, acting reasonably, consider this
necessary.

3. COMMENCEMENTANDDURATION

This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall continue for
the Term.

4. EXTENDING THE INITIAL TERM

The Partners may, by agreement made in writing, extend this Agreement for a period

and on varied terms as they agree, beyond the lnitial Term, subject to approval of the
Partners' boards.

9lPage

Page 15



5. PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS

The Partners enter into these Pañnership Arrangements under section 75 of the

NHS Act 2006 to provide integrated health and social care services to better meet

the needs of the Service Users of Portsmouth than if the Partners were operating

independently.

The specific Aims and Outcomes of the Partnership Arrangements are descríbed
in Schedule 1.

5.3 The Partnership Arrangements shall comprise

(a) the delegation by the Trust to the Authority of the NHS Functions, so that it
may exercise the NHS Functions alongside the Authority Health-Related

Functions and act as integrated provider of the Services described in
Schedule 5 on behalf of both Partners

(b) the establishment of an integrated learning disability service operating under
a single line management structure.

5.4 ln accordance with Regulation 4(\ of the NHS Regulations 2000, the Partners

have carried out a joirtt consultation on the proposed Partnership Arrangements
with Service Users, and other individuals and groups who appear to them to be

affected by the Partnership Arrangements.

5.5 Not used

5.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or affect:

(u) the rights and powers, duties and obligations of the Partners in the exercise

of their functions as public bodies or in any other capacity;

(b) the powers of the Authority to sgt, administer and collect charges for any
Authority Health-Related Function; or

(c) the Authority's power to determine and apply eligibility criteria for the
purposes of assessment under the Community Care Act 1990.

6. DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

6.1 For the purposes of the implementation of the Partnership Arrangements, the

Trust hereby delegates the exercise of the NHS Functions to the Authority to

exercise alongside the Authority's Health-Related Functions and act as integrated
provider of the health and social care elements relating to learning disability

services.

Additional services may be brought within the scope of this Agreement during the
Term by agreement.

5.1

5.2

6.2

l0lPage

Page 16



6.3 The Trust.has obtained consent to delegate the NHS Functions to the Authority
from each CCG with which it has an NHS contract for the provision of Services for
Service Users in respect of whom the Functions may be exercised.

7. SERVICES

7.1 The Authority is the Host Partner for the Partnership Arrangements, and agrees to

act as provider of the Services referred to in clause 6.1.

7.2 The Authority shall provide the Services or procure that they are provided and

shall be accountable to the Trust for the NHS Functions for the benefit of Service

Users:

(a) to ensure the proper discharge of the Partners' Functions;

(b) with reasonable skill and care, and in accordance with best practice

guidance;

(c) in all respects in accordance with the Aims and Outcomes, the performance

management framework, the provisions of this Agreement, and the Trust's

applicable policies set out in Schedule 5;

(d) in accordance with its standing orders or other rules on contracting; and

(e) in accordance with all applicable Law.

8. ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME

8.1 The Partners shall prepare a programme for each of the Services at least four

weeks before the start of each Financial Year, which shall:

(a) set out the agreed Aims and Outcomes for the specific Services;

(b) describe any changes or development required for the specific Services;

(c) provide information on how changes in funding or resources:may impact the

specific Services; and

(d) include details of the estimated contributions due from each Partner for each

Service',

(the "Annual Work Programme").

8.2 Each Annual Work Programme shall be initiated on the first day of the Financial

Year to which it relates. Each Annual Work Programme will remain in place for a
period of 12 months.

8.3 The Annual Work Programme may be varied by written agreement between the

Partners during any Financial Year. Any variation that increases or reduces the

number or level of Services in the scope of the Agreement shall require the

lllPage

Page 17



Partners to make corresponding adjustments to the Trust's Financial Obligations
and the Authority's Financial Obligations

lf the Partners cannot agree the contents of the Annual Work Programme, the
matter shall be dealt with in accordance with clause 31. Pending the outcome of
the dispute resolution process or termination of the Agreement under clause 32,
the Partners shall make available amounts and, as the case may be, staff and
other resources equivalent to the Financial Obligations for the previous Financial
Year.

8.s The Annual work Programme witl be a summary of the Partners' operational
business plans and will facilitate the delivery of the aims and outcomes of this
agreement (schedule 1) and the service specification (schedule 5)

9. PERFORMANGEMANAGEMENT

9.1 The Partners shall adhere to the performance management framework set out in
the governance arrangements (schedule 8) as agreed between the Partners.

9.2 Without prejudice to the implementation of the performance management
framework referred to in clause 9.1, in the event that the Trust has any concerns
on the operation of the Arrangements of the standards achieved in connection
with the carrying out of the Functions, it may convene a review with the Authority
with a view to agreeing a course of action to resolve such concerns. Nothing in
this Clause shall prejudice the Trust's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant
to clause 32.

10. FINANCIALOBLIGATIONS

The Partners' Financial Obligations in respect of the Partnership Arrangements shall
be discharged in accordance with the arrangements set out in Schedule g.

11. CAPITALEXPENDITURE

The Financial Obligations shall be directed exclusively to revenue expenditure. Any
arrangements for the sharíng of capital expenditure shall be made separately and in
accordance with section 256 (or section 76) of the NHS Act 2006.

12. SETUPCOSTS

Each Partner shall bear its own costs of the establishment of the Partnership
Arrangements under this Agreement.

8.4

12lPage

Page 18



13. PREMISES & EQUIPMENT

12.1 The Trust shall make available the Trust's Premises to the Partnership
Arrangements.

12.2 The Authority shalf contribute the sums set out in Schedule 9 in relation to the
Trust's Premises

12.3 Each Partner shall remain responsible for the maintenance and replacement of
equipment which they own at the Commencement Date

13. STAFF|NG (TUpE, SECONDMENTAND PENSTONS)

13.1 The Partners have agreed that pursuant to arrangements under Section 113 of
the Local Government Act 1972 the Post Holders will be made available by the
Trust to the Authority in accordance with the terms of the Section 113 Agreement
and the lndividualAgreements and the Partners agree that TUPE will not apply on

the commencement of this Agreement, during the Agreement Term or on the
expiry of this Agreement (in whole or in part). However, if duríng the Term, TUPE
operates so as to transfer the employment of a Post Holder from one Partner ("the

Transfero/') to the other Partner ("the Transferee") the Partners shall comply with:

(a) their legal obligations under TUPE

(b) if applicable, the Statement of Practice

13.2 The Partners agree that the provisions of Schedule 6 shall apply to any:

(a) Relevant Transfer of staff under this Agreement; and

(b) secondments of Trust staff to the Authority under arrangements pursuant to
Section 1 13 of the Local Government Act 1972.

14. GOVERNANCE

14.1 The Partners agree that the arrangements specified in Schedule I shall have

effect.

14.2 The Trust shall nominate the Trust's Authorised Officer, who shall be the main
point of contact for the Authority and shall be responsible for representing the
Trust and liaising with the Authority's Authorised Officer in connection with the
Partnershíp Arrangements.

14.3 The Authority shall nominate the Authority's Authorised Officer, who shall be the
main point of contact for the Trust and shall be responsible for representing the
Authority and liaising with the Trust's Authorised Officer in connection with the
Partnership Arrangements.

13lPage

Page 19



15. QUARTERLY REVIEWAND REPORTING

15.1 The Partners shall carry out a quarterly review of the Partnership Arrangements
within 30 days of the end of each Quarter in accordance with this clause 15.

15.2 The Authority's Authorised Officer shall submit a quarterly report to the
Partnership Management Group setting out:

(a) the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the performance

management framework in the preceding Quarter; and

(b) any issues of concern in respect of the Financial Obligations.

I6. ANNUAL REVIEW

16.1 The Partners agree to carry out a review of the Partnership Arrangements and
progress against the AnnualWork Programme (Annual Review) including:

(a) the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the Aims and
Outcomes;

(b) the performance of the individual Services against the service levels and
other targets contained in the relevant contracts;

(c) plans to address any underperformance in the Services;

(d) review of plans and performance levels for the following year; and

(e) plans to respond to any changes in policy or legislation applicable to the
Services or the Partnership Arrangements.

(Ð review of the governance arrangements

16.2 The Authority shall prepare an annual report following the Annual Review for
submission to the Partners' respective boards.

17. VARIATIONS

This Agreement may be varied by the Partners at any time by agreement in writing in
accordance with the Partners' internal decision-making processes.

18. STANDARDS

18.1 The Partners shall collaborate to ensure that the Partnership Arrangements are
discharged in accordance with:

(a) the service standards set out in Schedule 5;

(b) the prevailing standards of clinical governance;

(c) the Authority's standing orders; and

14lPage

Page 20



(d) the requírements specified by the Care Quality Commission and any other
relevant Regulatory Body.

18.2 The Partners shall develop operational guidance and procedures to reflect
compliance with clause 18.

18.3 The Partners shall ensure that each employee is appropriately managed and
supervised in accordance with all relevant prevailing standards of professional

accountability.

19. HEALTHANDSAFEW

19.1 The Authority shall (and shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure its
Representatives) comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work
etc Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of practice relating
to health and safety, which may apply to the Services and persons working on the
Services.

19,2 The Authority shall ensure that its health and safety policy statement (as required
by the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974), together with related policies and
procedures, are made available to the Trust on request.

19.3 The Authority shall notify the Trust if any incident occurs in the performance of the
Services, where that incident causes any personal injury or damage to property

that could give rise to personal injury., and the Authority shall ensure that its
Representatives:

(a) comply with any guidance provided by the Trust as to the form in which any
notifications are to be made and provide any further informatÍon which the
Trust may require in relation to the incident or accident;

(b) promptly notify the Trust and the Council of such íncident or accident and,

where relevant, outline what action has been taken by the relevant member
of staff as a result of the incident or accident; and

(c) at the discretion of the Trust, to be exercised reasonably, carry out an

investigation into the incident or accident and its causes and make the
results available to the Trust or permit the Trust to carry out such

investigation and fully co-operate with such investigation.

20. EQUALITY DUTIES

20.1 The Partners acknowledge their respective duties under Equality Legislation to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different groups.

15lPage

Page 21



20.2 The Authority agrees to adopt and apply policies. in its carrying out of the
Authority Health-Related Functions and NHS Functions, to ensure compliance
with their equality duties under applicable provisions of Equality Legislation

20.3 The Authority shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of clause
2O by all servants, employees or agents of the Authority and all Service Providers
employed in delivering the Services described in thís Agreement.

21. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Partners acknowledge that each is subject to the requirements of FOIA and the
ElR, and shall assist and co-operate with one another to enable each Partner to
comply with these information disclosure requirements, where necessary.

22. DATA PROTECTION AND ¡NFORMATION SHARING

221 Each Partner shall (and shall procure that any of its Representatives involved in
the provision of the Services shall) comply with any notification requirements
under Data Protection Legislation. Both Partners shall duly observe all their
obligations under Data Protection Legislation, which arise in connection with this
Agreement, which shall include, without, limitation, ensuring that all Personal
Data processed by its staff on behalf of and/or in the course of this Agreement, is
processed in accordance with the provisions and principles of Data Protection
Legislation.

22.2 Subject to applicable Law, the Partners shall share information about Service
Users to improve the quality of care and enable integrated working.

22.3 The Partners shall adhere to the lnformation Sharing Protocol when sharing
information under this Agreement and the obligations referred to ín Schedule 7 to
this Agreement.

23. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE RECORDS

23.1 The Trust shall provide access to the Authority to its current and archived Service
User files from the Commencement Date upon receipt of reasonable wrilten notice
from the Authority (the "Trust's Service User Records").

23.2 The Authority shall hold, and be responsible for maintaining and the safekeeping
of the Council's Service User Records for the Term, ín accordance wíth Data

Protection Legislation-and which shall consist of all information relating to the
social care interventions in relation to a Service User pursuant to the Authority's
obligations under this Agreement;

16lPagc

Page 22



23.3 The Authorit¡¡ shall be responsible for facilitating Service Users in accessing their
Personal Data under the DPA 1998.

23,4 Upon the expiry or early termination of the term of the Agreement, the Partners
shall work in good faith and cooperation in reaching an agreement as to whether
Clause 23.5(a) or 23.5(b) shall apply to the Council's Service User Records.

23.5 Subject to the agreement reached by the Partners pursuant to Clause 23.4, upon
the expiry or early termination. of the Agreement, the Authority shall either:

(a) use its reasonable endeavours to provide copies (at the [Council's expense)
of, and reasonable access to the Council's Service User Records on
receiving reasonable notice from the Trust; or

(b) transfer the Council's Service User Records to the Trust or a replacement
service provider designated by the Trust and the provisions of Clause23.6
shall apply.

23.6 Where the Authority has complied with its obligations set out in Clause 23.5 (b),

the Trust shall allow and procure that any new service provider allows the
Authority access on reasonable notice to the Council's Service User Records. The
Authority shall, in such circumstances comply with its obligations under Data
Protection Legislation.

23.7 The Trust's Service User Records and the Council's Service User Records shall
be treated as confidential between the Partners. No copy, extract or summary of
the Trust's Service Records and the Council's Service User Records, any part of
them or any comment on them shall be supplied to any Third Party (other than in
compliance with Law or for the purposes of obtaining legal advice) without the

. prior written approval of the Partners.

24. ÇONFIDENTIALITY

24.1 ln respect of any Confidential lnformation it may receive from the other Partner
(the 'Discloser") and subject always to the remainder of this Clause 24, each
Partner (the "Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and
shall not disclose any such Confidential lnformation to any Third Party, without the
Discloser's prior written consent provided that:

(u) the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge,
experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the commencement
of the Agreement; and

(b) the provisions of this Clause 24 shall not apply to any Confidential
lnformation which:

lTlPage

Page 23



0 is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of the
Agreement or other act or omission of the Recipient; or

@ is obtained by a Third Party who is lawfully authorised to disclose

such information.

24,2 Nothing in thís Çlause 24 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential

lnformation where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental

or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or
othenruise by applicable law.

25. AUDIT

25.1 The Authority shall arrange for the audit of the accounts of the Partnership

Arrangements in accordance with its statutory audit requirements.

25.2 The Authority shall provide to the Trust any reports required concerning the NHS

Functions on reasonable notice and free of charge.

25.3 The Partners shall co-operate ín the provision of lnformation, and access to
premises and staff, to ensure compliance with any statutory inspection

requirements, or other monitoring or scrutiny functions. The Partners shall

implement recommendations arising from these inspections, where appropriate.

25.4 The Trust shall during the Term of this Agreement provide to the Authority on

reasonable notice access to all information, books, receipts and other records

which the Authority may reasonably require in order to audit or otherwise verify the

sums invoiced to the Authority under the arrangements set out in Schedule 9.

25.5 The Authority shall keep and maintain until 12 years after the end of the Term, or
as long a period as may be agreed between the Partners Ín accordance with the

appropriate retention schedules, full and accurate records of the Agreement

including the Services supplied under it, all expenditure reimbursed by the Trust,

and all payments made by the Trust. The Authority shall on request and at its
own expense afford the Trust or the Trust's Representatives such access to those

records as may be requested by the Trust ín connection with the Agreement.

26. INSURANCE

26.1 Each Partner shall effect and maintain a policy or policies of insurance, providing

an adequate level of cover for liabilities arising under any indemnity in this

Agreement, which shall include without limitation, appropriate insurance

arrangements in respect of employer's liability, liability to Third Parties and all

other potential liability under this Agreement. The obligations in this Clause shall

include insurance (or equivalent) arrangements after the date of the determination

lBlPage

Page 24



of this Agreement in respect of any events, acts or omissions prior to such
determination.

26.2 Each Partner shall be responsible for insuring the premises and assets it

contributes to the Partnership Arrangements.

27. INDEMNITIES

27.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall affect:

(a) the liability of the Authority to the Service Users in respect of the Health-
Related Functions; or

(b) the liability of the Trust to Service Users in respect of the NHS Functions

27.2 Each Partner (the "lndemnifying Partner") shall indemnify and keep indemnified

the other Partner (the "lndemnified Partner") against all Losses, whether arising
in tort (including negligent act, or omission), default or breach of this Agreement,
to the extent that any loss or claim is due to the breach of contract, negligence
act, omission, wilful default, fraud or breach of statutory duty of itself or the
lndemnifying Partner's Representatives-arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, except to the extent that the loss or claim is directl¡¡ caused by or
directly arises from the negligent act or commission, breach of this Agreement, or
applicable Law by the lndemnified Partner or its Representatives.

27.3 lf any Third Party makes a claim or intimates an intention to make a claim against
either Partner, which may reasonably be considered as likely to give rise to an

indemnity claim under these provisions, the lndemnified Partner shall:

(a) as soon as reasonably practicable give written notice of that matter to the
lndemnifying Partner specifying in reasonable detail the nature of the
relevant claim;

(b) not make any admission of liability, agreement or compromise in relation to

the relevant claim without the prior written consent of the lndemnifying
Partner (such consent not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or
delayed); and

(c) give the lndemnifying Partner and its professíonal advisers reasonable
access to its premises and personnel and to any relevant assets, accounts,
documents and records within its power or control so as to enable the
lndemnifying Partner and its professional advisers to examine such
premises, assets, accounts, documents and records and to take copies at

19lPagc

Page 25



their own expense for the purpose of assessing the merits of, and if
necessary defending, the relevant claim.

28. LIABILITIES

28.1 Neither Partner shall be liable to the other Partner for claims by Third Partíes

arising from any acts or omissions of the other Partner in connection with the
Services before the Commencement Date.

28.2 Each Partner shall, at all times, take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate
any loss or damage for which the relevant Partner is entitled to bring a claim
against the other Partner under this Agreement.

28.3 Neither Partner will be liable for any lndirect Losses suffered by the other Party
whether such losses or the potential for such losses were made known to the
Party or not and, other than in respect of death or personal injury or fraudulent
misrepresentation.

29. COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS

29.1

All complaints received in connection with the Services or the exercise of the
Functions by one Partner shall be reported to the other Partner. The Partner in
receipt of the complaint shall provide the other Partners with such detail regarding
the complaint as the other Partners may reasonably require (and insofar as it is
lawfully able to do so);

(a) where a complaint wholly or in part relates to one or more of the NHS
Functions, it shall be dealt with in accordance with the statutory complaints
procedure of the Trust and the Trust will ensure that the Council is kept
informed about the conduct of any complaint that it is managing,
administering, investigating and defending pursuant to this Clause;

(b) where a complaint wholly relates to one or more of the Authority's Health
Related Functions, it shall be dealt with in accordance with the statutory
complaints procedure of the Authority and the Authority will ensure that the
Trust is kept informed about the conduct of any complaint that it is

managing, administering, investigating and defending pursuant to this
Clause;

(") where a complaint relates partly to one or more of the Authority's Health
Related Functions and partly to one or more of the NHS Functíons, then a
joint response will be made to the complaint by the Authority and the Trust,
in line with localjoint protocol;

20lP age

Page 26



(d) where a compla¡nt cannot be handled in any way described above or relates
to the operation of this Agreement, then the Partnership Management Group
will set up a complaints group with equal representation from both Partners

to examine the complaint and recommend remedies. All complaints shall be

reported to the Authorised Officers.

29.2 The Partners shall each fully comply with any investigation by the Ombudsman,

including providing access to lnformation and making staff available for interview.

29.3 During the Term:

(a) the Council shall remain accountable (including (without limitatíon) and at

the Council's own cost, responsibility for the management, administrative,

investígation and defence) for any complaint arising out of or in connection
with the provision of the Services prior the Commencement Date,; and

(b) each Partner agrees not to act in a manner prejudicíal to the reputation of
the other Partner and the both Partner s agree to co-operate with each other
in the performance of their respective obligations under this clause 29 in

accordance always with their statutory obligations and applicable
government guidance.

30. HEALTHWATCH

30.1 The Partners shall promote and facilitate the involvement of Service Users, carers

and members of the public in decision-making concerning the Partnership

Arrangements.

30.2 The Authority shall ensure the effective discharge of its obligations in the

establishment of Local HealthWatch

3I. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

31.1 ln the event of a dispute between the Partners arising out of this Agreement,

either Partner may serve written notice of the dispute on the Partnership

Management Group, setting out full details of the dispute.

31.2 The members of the Partnership Management Group shall meet as soon as

possible and in any event within seven (7) days of notice of the dispute being

served pursuant to clause 31.1 at a meeting convened for the purpose of
resolving the dispute and use its best endeavours to resolve the dispute,

31.3 lf any dispute referred to the Partnership Management Group is not resolved

within 15 Working Days of the dispute being referred to it, either Partner, by notice

in writing to the other, may refer the dispute to the chief executives of the

2llPage

Page 27



Partners, who shall co-operate in good faith to resolve the dispute as amicably as
possible within 20 Working Days of service of the notice.

31.4 lf within the allotted time the processes set out in clauses 31.2 and 31 .3 do not
resolve such dispute to the satisfaction of both Partners either Partner may refer
any dispute to an adjudicator.

31.5 lf the Partners are unable to agree the appointment of such adjudicator within
seven (7) Working Days of the request by either Partner for such an appointment
then an appropriate expert (willing to act in that capacity hereunder) shall be

appointed by the President of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution and the
Partners agree to accept such appointment.

31.6 Disputes shaii be cjecicjed by such adjuclicator in accordance with ihe latest Ruies
of Adjudication of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution as in place at the
time of the Dispute being referred to such adjudicator, and costs shall be borne in
such proportions as the adjudicator may determine to be fair and reasonable in all

the circumstances or, if the adjudicator makes no such determínation, by the
parties in equal proportions PROVIDED ALWAYS that the Partners agree that no

decision or determination of an adjudicator under this clause 31.5 shall be final
and binding upon them.

31.7 This clause 31 shall not prevent either Partner from seeking injunctive relief at any
time during the Term (regardless of whether the Dispute Resolution Procedure set
out in this clause 31 has been exhausted or not) in the case of any breach or
threatened breach by the other Partner of any obligation under this Agreement.

32. TERMINATION

32.1 Without prejudice to other rights and remedies at law, and unless terminated

under clause 32.2, 32.3 or 32.4, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at
any tirne by giving 12 months' written notice to the other Partner.

32.2 Subject to clause 32.3, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time
by giving 6 months' written notice to the other Partner, if for budgetary reasons:

(Ð it is no longer able to meet its Financial Obligations or othenrvise contribute
sufficient resources to the Partnership Arrangements (or any part of them);
or

(b) it is of the reasonable opinion that in light of the other's inability or failure to
meet its Financial Obligations in whole or in part the Partnership
Arrangements (or any part of them) are no longer viable.

22lP age

Page 28



32.3 Either Partner (for the purposes of this clause 32.3, the First Partner) may
terminate this Agreement on one calendar month's written notice by the service of
written notice on the other Partner (for the purposes of this clause 32.3, the
Second Partner) in the following circumstances:

(a) íf the Second Partner is in breach of any material obligation under this
Agreement, provided that, if the breach Ís capable of remedy, the First
Partner may only terminate this Agreement under clause 32.3, if the Second
Partner has failed to remedy the breach within 28 days of receipt of notice
from the First Partner (Remediation Notice) to do so;

(b) there is a Change in Law that prevents either Partner from complyíng with its
obligations under this Agreement; or

(") following a failure to resolve a dispute under clauses 31.

32.4 .NOT USED

32.5 The provisions of clause 33 shall apply on termination of this Agreement.

32.6 For the avoidance of doubt, the'termination of this Agreement and the Partnership
Arrangements made under it shall not preclude the Partners from entering into

alternative arrangements for the commissioning and provision of the NHS
Functions relating to learning disability services.

33. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

33.1 On the expiry of the Term, or if this Agreement is terminated in whole or in part for
any reason

(a) the Partners will comply with the exit strategy prepared by the Partnership
Management Group;

(b) premises and assets shall be returned to the contributing Partner in
accordance with the terms of their leases, licences or agreed schedule of
condition;

(c) assets purchased for use for the purposes of the Partnership Arrangements
shall unless othenruise agreed by the Partners be returned to the Partner
from whose fínancial contribution or other resource the purchase was made;

(d) contracts entered into by the Authority concerning the NHS Functions shall

be novated to the Trust and the Trust shall accept the novation; and

(e) the Authority shall transfer to the Trust all records in its possession relating
to the NHS Functions.

The expiry or termination of this Agreement shall be without þrejudice to any of
the rights or remedies that have accrued to whichever Partner under this
Agreement and shall have no effect on the liability of either Partner to make

23lP a ge

33.2

Page 29



payment of any sums due under this Agreement, prior to the dàte upon which

such termination takes effect.

33.3 Upon the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Partners shall:

(a) work together to wind down and disaggregate all arrangements made
pursuant to this Agreement, and shall in so doing ensure a minimal

disruption and impact on Service Users and the Partners; and

. (b) work together to ensure an orderly handover in relation to all aspects of the

Functions and shall at all times act in such a manner as not to adversely

affect the delivery of the Services.

33.4 The provisions of the following clauses shall survive terminatíon or expiry of this

Agreement:

(a) Clause 21 "Freedom of lnformation"

(b) Clause 22"Data Protection and lnformation Sharing"

(c) Clause 25; "Audit"

(d) Clause 27; "lndemnities"

(e) Clause 28; "Liabilities" and

(Ð Clause 33; "Consequences of Termination"

34. PUBL|C|TY

The Partners shall use reasonable endeavoure to coneult one another before making

any press announcements concerning the Services or the discharge of either

Partner's Functions under this Agreement.

35. NO PARTNERSHIP

35.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as constituting a legal partnership

between the Partners or as constituting either Partner as the agent of the other for

any purpose,whatsoever, except as specified by the terms of this Agreement.

35.2 Neither Partner nor any of its employees or agents w¡il nave the power to make

any representations or give any warranties to Third Parties on behalf or in respect

of the other Partner, nor bind the other Partner in any way,

36. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

36.1 lt is agreed for the purposes of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

that this Agreement is not intended to, and does not, give to any person who is not

a party to this Agreement any rights to enforce any provisions contained in this

Agreement.

24lPage

Page 30



37. NOTTCES

37.1 Notices shall be in writing and shall be sent to the other Fartner marked for the
attention of the chief executive or another person duly notified by the Partner for
the purposes of serving notices on that Partner, at the address set out for the
Partner in this Agreement.

37.2 Notices may be sent by first class mail or facsimile transmission, provided that
facsimile transmissions are confirmed within 24 hours by first class mailed
confirmation of a copy. Correctly addressed notices sent by first class mail shall
be deemed to have been delivered 72 hours after posting and correctly directed
facsimile transmissions shall be deemed to. have been received instantaneously
on transmission, provided that they are confirmed as set out above.

38. ASSIGNMENTANDSUBCONTRACTING

38.1 Subject to clause 38.2, this Agreement and any rÍght and conditions contained in it
may not be assigned, sub contracted or transferred by either Partner without the
prior written consent of the other Partner, except to any statutory successor to the
relevant function.

38.2 Pursuant to clause 2.2, the Partriers recognise the upcoming changes to the
structure of the NHS and agree that the Tr:ust shall be entitled to novate, assign or
transfer in whole or in part the benefit and burden under this Agreement to any
other NHS organisation, statutory successor in title of all or part of its functions,
property, rights and liabilities, or any other entity replacing the Trust or who has
become responsible for the exercise of any or all of the NHS Functions and that
consent shall not be required from the Authority for any such transfer (including an

assignment or sub-contract). The Authority shall do all that'is required to assist
such transfer and/or enable it to come into effect.

39. SEVERABILITY

lf any term, condition or provision contained in this Agreement shall be held to be
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable to any extent, such term, condition or provision

shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining parts of this
Agreement.

40, WAIVER

40.1 The failure of either Partner to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement at
any time or for any period of time shall not be construed to be a waiver of any
such provision and shall in no matter affect the right of that Partner thereafter to
enforce such provision.

25lPage

Page 31



4A.2 No waiver in any one or more instances of a breach of any provision of this

Agreement shall be deemed to be a further or continuing waiver of such provision

in other instances.

41. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the Schedules and the documents annexed to it or otherwise

referred to in it contain the whole agreement between the parties relating to the

subject matter of it and supersede all prior agreements, arrangements and

understandings between the parties relating to that subject matter.

42. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

Subject to clause 31, thís Agreement, any dispute or ciaim arising oui of or in
connection with it or its subject matter, and any non-contractual obligations arising

out of or in connection with it, shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the law of England and Wales, and the Partners irrevocably agree that the

courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim that
arises out of or in connection with this Agreement (including non-contractual disputes

or claims).

43. FAIR DEALINGS

The Partners recognise that it is impracticable to make provision for every

contingency which may arise during the life of this Agreement and they declare it to
be their intention that this Agreement shall operate between them with fairness and

without detriment to the interests of either of them and that if in the course of the
performance of this Agreement, unfairness to either of them does or may result then

the other shall use its reasonable endeavours to agree upon such action as may be

necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness.

44. CONFLICTS OF ¡NTEREST

44.1 Each Partner shall perform their obligations under this Agreement in the best

interests of the other Partner, and shall notify the other Partner of any conflicts of
interests as they arise during the Term.

45. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one (1) or more counterparts. Any single
counterpart or a set of counterparts executed, in either case, by both Parties shall
constitute a full original of this Agreement for all purposes.

261? age

Page 32



This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on the date
stated at the beginning of it.

EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the Authority

THE COMMON SEAL of PORTSMOUTH

CITY COUNGIL was hereunto affixed in

pursuance of a resolution of the Council

passed at a meeting duly convened and held:-

) !l¡!i !ir';i i ír, :' i j,',

-1
)

)

)

Authorised Signatory

EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the Trust

THE COMMON SEAL ofSOLENT NHS

TRUST was affixed to this

Deed in the presence of:-

Authorised Signatory

2TlPage

Page 33



23lPage

Page 34



1.1

Schedule I Aims and Outcomes

1. BACKGROUND

The impetus for developing integrated health and social care services, ín particular
learning disability services, has been driven at a national level for a number of years
through a variety of White Papers and policy documents, including:

r Valuing People, DoH 2001
o Valuing Health for All, DoH 2004
o Our Health, Our Care, Our Say DoH 2006
o Joint lnvestigation into the Provision of Services for People with Learning

Disabilities at Cornwall Partnership NHS Trust, 2006
r Valuing People Now, DoH 2007
. Strong and Prosperous Communities, 2007
¡ Liberating the NHS DoH 2010
r Health & Social Care Acl2O12
¡ Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework2014115
. NHS Outcomes Framework 2014115

The Health & Social Care Act 2012 includes as a function of Health & Wellbeing
Boards the duty to encourage integrated working via a range of directives including:

1.2.1 A Health and Wellbeing Board must, for the purpose of advancing the health
and wellbeing of the people in its area, encourage persons who arrange for
the provisíon of any health or social care services in that area to work in an
integrated manner.

1.2.2 A Health and Wellbeing Board must, in particular, provide such advice,
assistance or other support as it thinks appropriate for the purpose of
encouraging the making of arrangements under Section 75 of the National
Health Service Act 2006 in connection with the provision of such services.

1.3 It is acknowledged on a national and local basis that whilst people with learning
disabilities do have health needs, the overriding support they need is social in nature.
All the available evidence supports a social care model of service as the most
appropriate because of the benefits it brings to people with learning disabilities, in

realising their potentíal, achieving a good quality of life and enabling integratíon in
local communities.

1.4 ln support of this thinking, the Department of Health mandated the transfer of
commissioning responsibility and funding from health to social care for learníng

disability services during 2010 and the closure and reprovision of locally based
hospital units to supported living homes. The remaining health commissioning

1.2

29lPage

Page 35



2.1

2.2

responsibilities relate to specialist health teams, continuing care, assessment and

treatment services, and forensic services. Forensic commissioning responsibilities

were transferred to Specialist Commissioning in October 2010.

1.5 lntegrated learning disability services with a social care lead remains the most

appropriate model of service to provide the best outcomes for people with a learning

disability.

2. AIMS & OBJECTIVES

The Partners have agreed to utilise S75 arrangements to deliver an lntegrated

Learning Disability Service. By bringing together resources operating under a single

line management structure and working to a single service specification and set of
key performance indicators, the Partners will deliver a high quality health and social

care service which will provide improved outcomes for service users.

The Partners agree to provide the staffing establishment detailed in schedule 6 to

deliver the service specification (schedule 5)

2.3 The learning disability health agenda will not be adversely impacted by the

development of an integrated service.

3. OUTCOMES

a, 4 Tha awna¡lar{ nr lf¡nmae nf lhia anraarnanf innlr rr{o'. ¡,v v,\l¿vv¡v

. Ensuring that organisations work together across the whole health and
social care learning disability agenda

. Delivéring improved outcomes for service users
¡ Promoting the development of high quality care
o Providing a s¡ngle gateway to health and social care resources
. Providing a single assessment process
¡ Removing duplication and ensuring value for money
¡ Streamlining case management processes
¡ Streamlining management functions thereby delivering efficiencies
. Supporting the development of flexible and innovative services
. Supporting the development of flexible teams and individual roles

30lPage

Page 36



1

2

Schedule 2 Trust Functions

The provisions of this Schedule 2 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 5
(Service Speoification ).

The Trust Functions comprise the making of arrangements for the provision of the
Services, but only to the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the
welfâre of the Service Users, and excepting the Excluded Functions listed ín
Schedule 4, specifically: -

functions under sections 3, 3A and 38 of, and paragraphs 9 to 11 of Schedule 1, to
the NHS Act 2006, including rehabilitation services and services intended to avoid
admission to hospital and including the functions of providing such services pursuant
to arrangements made by a clinical commissioning group or the NHS Commissioning
Board (NHS England);

functions under section 117 of the Mental Health Act 1983 including the functions of
providing services under that section pursuant to arrangements made by a clinical
commissioning group or the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England);

2.3

2.4

functions under Schedule A1 of the Mental Capacity Act 2005;

functions under section 12V(1)of the NHS Act 2006 (direct payments for
health care)and;

2.5 functions of making direct payments under the NHS (Direct Payments)
Regulations 2013 and

2.6 any such additionalfunctions as may be:

2.6.1 specified in the Directions from the Secretary of State for Health and
subject to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions
described in this Schedule 2 to the Authority; or

2.6.2 agreed by the Parties from time to time to be Trust Functions for the
purposes of this Agreement.

For the purposes of this Schedule 2, reference to legislation and provisions within
such legislation mirrors the references conta¡ned in the NHS Bodies and Local

Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Commencement
Date, and shall be deemed to include any and all replacement and amending
legislation and provÍsions that may come into force from time to time whether prior to
or following the Commencement Date.

2.1

2.2

3.

3l lP a g e

Page 37



2.

Schedule 3 Authority Functions

The provisions of this Schedule 3 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 5 (Service

Specification).

The Authority Functions comprise the making of arrangements for the provision of
the Services, to the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the
welfare of the Service Users, and excepting the Excluded Functions listed in

Schedule 4, specifically:

2.1 The functions specified in Schedule 1 to the Local Authoríty Social Services Act
1970;

2.2 The functions under sections 7 ar 8 of the Disabled Persons (Services, Consultation

and Representation) Act 1986 except in so far as they assign functions to a local

authority in their capacity of a local education authority;

2.3 The functions of providing, or securing the provision of recreational facilities under

section 19 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;

2.4 The functions of local authorities under the Education Acts as defined in section 578

of the Education Act 1996;

2.5 The functions of local housing authorities under Part I of the Housing Grants,

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 and under Parts Vl and Vll of the Housing

Act 1996;

2.6 The functions of local authorities under section 126 of the Housing Grants,

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996;

2.7 The functions of waste collection or waste disposal under the Environmental

Protection Act 1990;

2.8 The functions of providing environmental health services under sections 180 and 181

of the Local Government Acl1972;

2.9 The functions of local highway authorities under the Highways Act 1980 and section

39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988;

2.10 The functions under section 63 (passenger transport) and section 93 (travel

concession schemes) of the Transport Act 1985;

32lPage

Page 38



3

2.11 Where partners enter into arrangements under regulation 7(1) or 8(1) in respect of
the provision of accommodation under sections 21 or 26 of the 1948 Act, the function
of charging for that accommodation under section 22,23(21 or 26 of that Act;

2.12 Where partners enter into arrangements under regulation 7(1) or 8(1) in respect of
the provision of a service under any enactment mentioned in section "17(2)(al to (c) of
the 1983 Act, the function of charging for that service under that section;

2.13 the functions of local authorities under or by virtue of sections 28 or 6 (C) (1) of, or
Schedule I to, the NHS Act 2006

2.14 Any such additionalfunctions as may be:

2.14.1 specified in the Directions from the Secretary of State for Health and subject
to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions described in this
Schedule 3 to the Authority; or

2.14.2 agreed by the Parties from time to time to be Authority Functions for the
purposes of this Agreement.

For the purposes of this Schedule 3, reference to legislation and provisions within
such legislation mirrors the references contained in the NHS Bodies and Local

Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Commencement
Date, and shall be deemed to include any and all replacement and amending
legislation and provisions as may come into force from time to time whether prior to
or following the Commencement Date.

33lPage

Page 39



Schedule 4 Excluded Functions

1. Excluded pursuant to the Regulations:

1.1 The Trust Functions shall not include the following:

surgery;
radiotherapy;
term ination of preg nancies;
endoscopy;
the use of Class 4laser treatments and other invasive treatments; and
emergency ambulance services, and

1.2.1 subject to Regulation 6(k) of the Regulations, sections 22,23(3),26(2) to (4\,

43,45 and 49 of the NationalAssistance Act 1948;

section 6 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970;

section 3 of the Adoption and Children Act 2002;

sections I 14 and 1 1 5 of the Mental Health Act 1983;

section 17 of the 1983 Act; and

1.2.2
1.2.3
1.2.4
1.2.5

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1 ,3

1.1.4
1.1.5
1.1.6

1.2 The Authority Functions shall not include any functions pursuant to the following

2

3

1.2.6 Parts Vllto lX and section 86 of the Children Act 1989,

or any other functions that are specilied rn the Regulations as amended from time to
time as being excluded from section 75 arrangements.

To avoid doubt, all functions that are not specified as either Trust Functions in

Schedule 2 or as Authority Functions in Schedule 3 of this Agreement shall be

Excluded Functions.

For the purposes of this Schedule 4, reference to legislation and provisions within

such legislation mirrors the references contained in the NHS Bodies and Local

Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Commencement
Date, and shall be deemed to include any and all replacement and amending
legislation and provisions as may come into force from time to time whether prior to
or following the Commencement Date.

34lPage

Page 40



Schedule 5 Service Specification

g Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIT

l'rTßT{

Portsmouth
Clinlcrl Comml¡¡lonlng Grcup

Date:
Author:

Service Speclflcation

lntegrated Health and Social Gare Learning Disability Service

13rh March 2014
J Charlesworth

35lPage

Page 41



a

Section l: lntegrated SocialCare and Health Learning Disability Service

Model of Service
The service will operate under a Section 75 Lead Provider arrangement wÍth Portsmouth
City Council as the lead provider. The funding and contractual flow of the service is detailed
below:

Portsmouth CCG and PCC commissioning budgets pooled using S75 Health Act
flexibilities wíthin the ICU S75 which currently exísts

Solent NHS Trust contracts with Portsmouth CCG to secure funding to support the NHS
staffing establishment of the Learning Disability Team

Solent NHS Trust and PCC enter a S75 Partnership Agreement (with Solent staff
seconded to PCC) with no requirement for a pooled fund

PCC accountable as lead provider for delivery of the integrated service specification and

health and social care outcomes measures, facilitated by the S75 Partnership
Agreement

f+
contraçt

led by Adult

a

a

o

The

CCG

Solent

ICU

Joint
spec.

s. 75

l

I

PCC

will operate from a shared base, under single

PMGSocial

3ólPage

Page 42



The service will be supported by unified procedures and protocols within a Standard
Operating Procedure (SOP) which will deliver the vision, principles and outcomes previously

determined by people with learning disabilities.

The service will have a clear focus on the support and delivery of the health agenda; care
and ongoing support for people with learning disabilities; development of life
skills/habilitation/rehabilitation for adults with learning dÍsabilities andlor autistic spectrum
disorders, within a clear eligibility framework.

The servíce will support flexible working practices recognising people's skills, knowledge and
expertise to provide case management by trusted assessors. The service will ensure
equality of access and outcomes to health and social care services.

Vision
People with learning disabílities who are members of the Learning Disability Partnership
Board have set out their vision, what should be remembered when determining how to
deliver the vision, and what differences they would like to see in their lives.

Their vision is that:

"We should be treated equally and our views respected, and we
should be helped to live the lives we choose, You need to make
sure we are safe ìn services if we need support or care"

Principles
They said that when people think about what they need to do to make this vision a reality
they need to remember these principles:
o We are treated equally and have the same rights and responsibilities as everyone else
. Our views are respected, and we are supported to make informed choices about our

lives
. We are always at the centre of decisions about us, remember the motto "nothing about

us without us"
¡ We should be safe in services, especially if we have to live outside of Portsmouth
r You should make sure you use the money in the best way and remember that

sometimes "smallthings can make a bigger difference"
. Family carers who support people with learning disabilities are fistened to, and given the

information and support they need
. Organisations should make sure they work in a person centred way, and only share

information about us when they need to

Outcomes
They also said that these are the differences they want to see in their lives

3TlPage

Page 43



. lmproved health and wellbeing - "we are helped to keep well, happ¡¿ and safe"
o Making a positive contribution - "we are supported to speak up and say what we think"
. lmproved quality of life - "we get the support we need to make our own decisions and

are helped to do the things we want to do"

Service Population
The service will be open to adults with learning disabilities who live within the geographic

area covered by Portsmouth City Council and Portsmouth CCG

Gomponents of service
The components of the service are described below:

o lntegrated community team (including health and socíal care staff, therapy staff and LD

Consultant sessions)
. lntensive Outreach Team (new model of service incorporating the outreach element of

Assessment & Treatment and intensive outreach nursing team)
o LD Liaison Nurse based at Queen Alexandra Hospital
. Residential Respite (including Russets)
¡ Residential Care (including Russets)
. Supported Living
r Carers support
. Meaningful daytime activities (including Portsmouth Day Services)
. Personal care and support

Functions
The functions of the integrated service will be to:
o Promote independence, choice, rights and inclusion
. lmprove health and well being
o Address locally and nationally identified health inequalities
. lmprove the client experience
o Promote and develop mainstream inclusion in all services across the health and local

authority agenda
. Support carers
. lmplement key national and local directives/plans/guidance
o Provide services along a care pathway basis
¡ Ensure the safety of service users in services either directly provided or commissioned
. Deliver the safeguarding, quality and clinical governance agendas
. Complaints, legal and risk management
. Making best use of resources and budgets
o lnvolve users, carers, families and other stakeholders in the development, delivery and

monitoring of services
¡ Manage the service under a Section 75 Lead Provider agreement

33lPage

Page 44



Organisational responsibil ities
The organisational responsibilities relate to:
o Trusted assessments
. Case management
. Care management
. Socialwork
¡ Specialist LD Nursing
. Specialist support in relation to escalating needs/crisis situations
¡ Other Statutory NHS LD services
o Other Statutory Adult Social Care LD services
o Co-ordination, assessment and case management of continuing health care and

other NHS funded placements e.g. Extra Contractual Referrals, continuing care
and joint packages under s1 17 responsibilities

o Delivery of lntegrated LD Commissioning Plans
o Deliverv of service in line with the SOP to meet the service specification and outcome

measures
¡ Safeguarding

lnterdependencies
The service is interdependent with a range of other teams and services including:
r Local Authority services
. Registered Social Landlords and other housing providers
. Care and Support providers from the third, private and public sectors
. Pr¡mary Healthcare
¡ Secondary Healthcare
¡ Mental Health Services
. VirtualWards (Solent NHS Trust)
¡ Older Peoples Services

Section 2: Performance and Quality Monitoring

These outcomes were developed jointly with people with learning disabilities ín Portsmouth.
ln some cases, where the performance against the outcome indicator is not known, data
collection will be required in the first year in order to establish a base for the future.

We need to ensure that:
o People with learning disabilities have the same access to services as everyone else
. People get the right services, in the right place, at the right time
r People have their health needs assessed
¡ Family carers get the information and support they need
o Services are safe

3glPage

Page 45



Data collected
through the Annual
Statutory review
orocess

Health Action Plans 20o/o annual increase in

numbers of all service users
who have a current health action

Plan

AnnualHealth Checks Contribute to the target of 75o/o

of service users on health LD

register have an annual health
check carried out under the DES

collected through the
Annual Statutory
review process

Annual report on performance

against plan to provide LD

training to primary, secondary
and comniunity services. Also,

ad-hoc or issue based traíning
reouests as reouired.

Team record all

training delivered
Training

Liaison nurse service Liaison nurses will ensure that:
o looo/o of patients with whom

they have contact have
appropriate consent and
admission forms and
effective discharge plans

. they contribute to LD
awareness and bespoke
training for PHT staff

. they seek patient and carer
feedback on their hospital
experience

Already collected for
health KPl.

Number of face to
face contacts from
both elements of the
ros.

lntensive outreach support is

available to those who need it
The level of intensive outreach
support being provided by the
ros

This will be recorded

on AIS and collected

through development of
a new report.

Carers 100% of ,identified carers are

offered a carers assessment

collected

existing

Already
through

reportins.

Statutory Reviews 100o/o of service user reviews

completed within a twelve month
period

40lPage

Page 46



We need to ensure that:
. People are supported to speak up and say what they feel
r People are involved in pÍanning and improving services
. People are supported to be part of the Learning Disability Partnership board and sub-

groups
o The Council and the NHS can show how it listens to people and uses their ideas to make

Annualservice review To be

of a

things better

95o/o of people rate the service
or above

collected
the

95% of people rate the service
as satisfactory or above through

development
new report.At least 75o/o of people

accessing services respond to a
satisfaction
q uestionnaire/survey

Annuat report with
data and themes

Advocacy 957ri of service users are offered
information about the availability

of advocacy and self-advocacy

This will be recorded
on AIS and collected
through development
of a new report.

Using service user feedback to
plan, develop and improve
services

Annual report on how feedback
was obtained, what the key
messages were and how this
information has been used

Annual Report for
S75 Board.

41 lPage

Page 47



We need to ensure that:
. People are supported to tell their family, social workers, healthcare professionals

and other people about the life they want to live
¡ Young people know what support they get when they leave school
o People are given the right information so they can make decisions about their

support
o People can choose where they want to live
o People are helped to have choice and control over their lives through seff-

directed support and use of direct payments/indlvidual budgets
o People have a choice of meaningful daytime activities

95% of new service users
offered supported living or
shared lives as a first choice
Current proportions of 48Yo

Supported Living vs 52o/o

Residential Care will become

60% Supported Living vs

40o/o Residential Care by

1t4t17.

Annual ReportAccommodation and Support

To be collected
through further
development of
existing
employment
reoortinq on AlS.

Employment 1Ùo/o annual increase in

numbers of people in paid

employment

To be collected
through the

statutory annual

review process.

Person Centred Plans 75Yo of people have ,a
Person Centred Plan that
records meaningful

outcomes regarding

independence, social
inclusion, relationships and

choice,

95% of those 14 and over

khown to be eligible for our

services to have an

education, health and social

care olan.

Annual ReportTransition

20o/o annual increase in Quarterlv Report.lndividual Budqets

42lP a ge

Page 48



people having an lndividual
Budqet.

Day Time Activity A range of day services in
place that deliver outcomes
related to social inclusion
and indeoendence.

Annual Report

Keeping People Safe 95To of service users a(e
offered information about
how to report hate crime or
abuse

Development of a strategy to
keep people safe particularly

those most at risk

Data collected
through the annual
statutory review
process.

Benefits 75% of service users referred
to the FAB team have had a
benefits review within 12

months

To be collected
through FAB team.

lnformation Review of accessibility of
core information to be carried
out and plan to increase

oercentaqe out in olace.

Development and
implementation of
plan.

National Outcomes Frameworks

The local outcomes detailed above will support delivery of the following national

outcomes which are shared or complimentary outcomes from the NHS, Public Health

and Adult Social Care Outcomes Frameworks:

o lmproving the wider determinants of health
r Health improvement
¡ Preventing people from dying prematurely
. Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care
r Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them

from avoidable harm
. Enhancing the quality of life for people with care and support needs
o Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support
. Safeguarding adults who are vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable

harm

43lP age

Page 49



2.2

2.3

2.4

Schedule 6 Human Resources

I. STAFF DETAILS

1.1 A database exists which lists all of the seconded staff from the Trust to the
Authorityr for it to manage and direct as a part of the arrangennents. This
database shall be held and updated by the HR Department of the Trust.

1.2 A database exists which lists all of the staff of the Authority for it to manage
and direct as a part of the arrangements. This database shall be held and
updated by the HR Department of the Authority.

1.3 The secondment agreement will be in place up to and including the 31"t
March 2O17

2. SECONDMENT ARRANGEMENTS

2.1 The seconded staff will have all seen and signed acceptance of the
Secondment Agreement (Appendix 1 ).

The Authority willfollow the employee organisation's policies and procedures
for all seconded staff where those policies and procedures and any updates
thereto have been notified to the Authority. Trust HR staff will provide support
as necessary to execute these policies and the process of HR management.

The Authority will use its best endeavours to ensure that all managers of
seconded staff attend management training and updates provided by the
Trust especially in relation to the Trust's policies & procedures.

The Trust will ensure all seconded staff are kept informed and up-to-date with
Trust policies and procedures applicable to them.

4. STAFF ROLES INCLUDED IN THE AGREEMENT

44lP age

Page 50



S€rv¡ae Manager

5. STAFF ROLES EXCLUDED FROM THE AGREEMENT

Solent NHS Trust will provide appropriate levels of input to the lntegrated
Service from consultant psychiatrist and therapy staff.

Solent NHS Trust will provide 1 WTE psychiatrist (10 Pas per week) for the
lntegrated Service.

Speech and Language Therapy services for adults with learning disabilities
are provided as part of the Adult Speech & Language block contract
arrangements between NHS Portsmouth CCG and Solent NHS Trust.
Support is provided for both communication and eating and drinking needS

through the integrated SLT model which includes both specialist and
mainstream provision, within hospital and community. The SLT service works
to a 6 week referral to treatment standard for clients who are non-urgent and
10 working days for those who are urgent.

5.1

5.2

5.3

¿2wþ0|nd10ATt¡l

IïlåtÍ4g¡or¡tlrjlrtrr

0.8 wte bstd tl,lr¡€€

¡ urLÞrldú!ü¡rr.

4.6 $rte bôûd 7 ilursct

12 tirt !.ñd6llu$.r

6. VARIATION TO THE STAFFING ESTABLISHMENT

45lPage

Page 51



î

6.1 The Partners may wish to vary the staffing establishment detailed in 4 from
time to time.

6.2 Variations to the staffing establishment will be discussed and agreed by the
Partnership Management Group and the Service Monitoring Group.

46lPage

Page 52



Appendix 1

DRAFT SECONDMENT AGREEMENT TO BE SIGNED BY STAFF MEMBER

Dear

CONF¡RMATION OF SECONDMENT

I am pleased to confirm the details of your secondment to the post of fiob title) based
in the lntegrated Learning Disability Service at the Kestrel Centre, St James Hospital,
Locksway Rd Portsmouth.

This Secondment is entered as a consequence of an Agreement between the
Portsmouth City Council ("the Council") and Solent NHS Trust dated (1st April 2014)
under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for
the integration of learning disability services. Solent NHS Trust has agreed to second
their Employees to the Council on the terms of this Agreement.

1. DETAILS OF SECONDMENT
1.1 With effect from 1"t April 2014 Solent NHS shall second you to the Council on the
terms of this Agreement. Subject to earlier termination as provided for in this
Agreement, the secondment will continue untilthe 31"tMarch 2017 during the period
of the s75 Agreement provided that you remain employed by Solent NHS Trust.

'1.2 During the Secondment, you shall be located at the Kestrel Centre where you
shall act and perform the duties as set out in your contract of employment with Solent
NHS Trust. However it ís recognised that in order to meet changes in service
provision this location and role may change over time. You will be consulted in
relation to any proposed changes to either location or role.

2. CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT
2.1 Your Terms and Conditions of Employment with Solent NHS Trust shall remain in
force during the Secondment period

2.2 Your existing Job Description, a copy of which is attached, applies at present.
Any changes will be subject to consultation with you and the Trade Unions.

2.3 Sofent NHS Trust and the Council agree that you shall remain an employee of
Solent NHS Trust at all times and shall not be deemed to be an employee of the
Council by virtue of the Secondment and shall not be entitled to any salary, pension,
bonus or other fringe benefits of the Council.

2.4 Your continuity of service with Solent NHS Trust will be preserved for both
statutory and contractual purposes during the period of secondment

3 LEAVE
3.'1 The Council will inform Solent NHS Trust of any absence, including but not
limited to sickness absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon as is
reasonably practicable. lt is your responsibility to follow Solent NHS Trust's sickness
absence reporting procedures at all times.

3.2 You shall be entitled to holiday during the period of secondment in accordance
with your terms and conditions of employment with Solent NHS Trust.

4TlPage

Page 53



4 HEALTH AND SAFEW
4.1 The Council shall ensure that you observe its health and safety policies and
procedures and maintain a safe method of working. 4.2 As an employee, you are
required under Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to take
reasonable care for your own Health and Safety and that of others who may be
affected by your acts or omissions at work.

CONFLIGTS OF INTEREST
5.1 You must declare and seek agreement from Solent NHS Trust and your line
manager regarding any interests, financial or otherwise, which may give rise to a
conflict of interest during the course of the secondment. Such interests include other
employment, business interests and positions of authority in a charity or voluntary
body in the field of health and social care and in connection with a voluntary or other
body contracting for NHS or Council services.

RESPONSIBILIW FOR RESOURCES
6.1 Where applicable: Where you are responsible for the management of Council's
budgets and/or the procurement of equipment and services you should follow the
Council's Financial Rules and associated procedures. You will need to ensure that
you read and understand these fully prior to the secondment arrangements being
implemented.

6.2 ln undertaking such duties you should be mindful to ensure efficient and
transparent financial management. This will include financial probity, the
management of financial risk and achievement of value for money

7 PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND EXPENSES
7.1 You will continue to be paid by Solent NHS Trust in accordance with your terms
and conditions of employment for the duration of the secondment.

7.2 ll is agreed that Solent NHS Trust shall be solely responsible for all income tax
liability and National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in respect of
any payment to you for the provision of services to Solent NHS Trust under this
Agreement.

7.3 Any.salary increments applicable to your substantive post with Solent NHS Trust
will continue to apply.

8 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES
8.1 After 1't April 2014 Solent NHS Trust will contínue to provide advice to you on
Solent NHS Trust policies including but not limited to disciplinary, grievance, ill
health, maternity leave and general terms and conditions of service.

8.2 Solent NHS Trust will be responsible for ensuring you are kept updated with all
changes to Solent NHS Trust policies and procedures, although this may be
communicated to you through Council staff.

8.3 During the Secondment Period, the Council, in consultation with Solent NHS
Trust's Human Resources Department shall implement Solent NHS Trust policies
and procedures in respect of you as an employee, so far as they comply with current
employment legislation.

43lPage

Page 54



8.4 Solent NHS Trust authorises the Council to take action in respect of you as an
employee pursuant to the Solent NHS Trust Disciplinary Policy save for any action,
which could result in your dismissal. ln such circumstances Solent NHS Trust shall
take appropriate steps in accordance with its Disciplinary Policy and Procedure.

8.5 The Council may, should it consider necessary to do so, place you on special
precautionary leave in accordance with Solent NHS Trust Disciplinary Policy and in
consultation with Solent NHS Trust's Human Resources Department provided that
such action shall be notified to Solent NHS Trust no later than the following working
day.

8.6 Solent NHS Trust authorise the Council to deal with any grievances raised by you
against the Council in accordance with Solent NHS Trust's grievance policy. The
Council will notify Solent NHS Tr:ust of any grievances received by the Council
including those against Solent NHS Trust within 3 working days or as soon as
reasonably possible

8.7 For the avoidance of doubt, nothing ín clause I shall be construed or have effect
as construing any relationship of employer and employee between the Council and
you.

9. MANAGEMENT DURING THE SECONDMENT
9.1 You shall be supervised by and directly accountable to [insert job title] during the
secondment.

10. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
10.1 Solent NHS Trust wil! work with the Council to ensure your professional and
developmental needs are identified and met. Performance Development Review's,
Performance Management and training wíll be undertaken by the Council.

11. MANAGEMENT OF CHANGE
11.1 lt is recognised that Solent NHS Trust and the Council in delivering and
developing integrated learning disability services will face organisational restructuring
and changes in employment levels. ln the event that you are affected by
organisational change, Solent NHS Trust and the Council will ensure that changes
happen following full consultation with you and your union representative and that
changes comply with Solent NHS Trust's employment policies.

12. DATA PROTECTION
12.1 You and Solent NHS Trust consent to the Council holding, disclosing, using or
othen¡vise processing any information which is provided to the Council or which the
Council may acquire as a result of the Secondment.

12.2 Solent NHS Trust and the Council agree to protect any personal data held in
relation to you in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.

I3. CONFIDENTIALITY
13.1 ln addition to the provisions regarding confidentiality in your Contract of
Employment, you will not disclose during or after the secondment any confidential
information to which you became privy during the course of the secondment,
including but not limited to all trade secrets, lists or details of customers, suppliers or
patients, information relating to the working of any process or invention carried on or
used by any subsidiary or associate, research projects; prices, discounts, mark-ups,

49lPage

Page 55



future business strategy, marketing, tenders, any price sensitive information, and any
proprietary Council information.

I4. TERMINATION
14.1 ln the event of termination of the s75 Agreement howsoever arising, this
Secondment Agreement will automatically terminate and your management will be
transferred back to Solent NHS Trust.

14.2 You may terminate the Secondment by giving not less than (one) month notice
in writing (or your contractual notice period if this is greater) to Solent NHS Trust and
Portsmouth City Council. This will be taken as your intention to tender your
resignation of your substantive post.

ACCEPTANCE
Please confirm your accêptance of the terms of the secondment set out above by
completing and returning the acceptance form enclosed with this letter.

Yours sincerely

50lPage

Page 56



Appendix 2

SECONDMENT AGREEMENT
THIS SECONDMENT AGREEMENT is made on .................. between: -
(1) Portsmouth City Council of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth PO1 2EP
("the Council")

(2)Solent NHS Trust Central Office, Adelaide Health Centre, William Macleod Way,
Southampton SO16 4XE ("The Employer")

I.INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Secondment Agreement is entered into under section 113 of the Local
Governmenl Acl1972 as a consequence of an Agreement between the Employer
and the Council dated (insert date) under section 75 of the National Health Service
Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for the integration of learning disability services.

1 .2 The Employer has agreed to second their Employees (as detailed in Appendix 1)

to the Council on the terms of this Secondment Agreement.

2 SECONDMENT

2.1 With effect from 1't April2014 the Employer shall second the Employees to the
Council on the terms of this Secondment Agreement. Subject to earlier termination
as provided for in this Secondment Agreement, the secondment will continue up to
and including the 31"t March 2017 ("the Secondment Period').

2.2During the Secondment, the Employees shall be located at the Kestrel Centre, St
James Hospital, Locksway Rd, Portsmouth where he/she shall act and perform the
duties as set out in the Employee's contract of employment with the Employer.
However it is recognised that in order to meet changes in service provision this
location and role may change over"time. The Employees will be consulted in relation
to any proposed changes to either location or role.

3 CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT

3.1 The Employee's Terms and Conditions of Employment with the Employer shall
remain in force during the Secondment Period

3.2 The Employees' existing Job Description applies at present. Any changes will be
subject to consultation with the Employee and Trade Unions.

3.3 The Employees shall remain an employee of the Employer at all times and shall
not be deemed to be an employee of the Council by virtue of the Secondment and
shall not be entitled to any salary, pension, bonus or other fringe benefits of the
Council.

3.4 The Employees' continuity of service with the Employer will be preserved for both
statutory and contractual purposes during the period of secondment.

4 LIABLITY AND INDEMNITIES

5l lP a g e

Page 57



4.1 The Employer shall indemnify and keep indemnified, the Council in relation to any
claims, charges or liabilities for (including but not limited to) âny income tax,
Employee National lnsurance or similar contributions (including costs interests and
penalties), or other statutory charges or remuneration or other compensation arising
from or in relation to the services by the Employee under this Secondment
Agreement or the Employee being found to be an Employee of the Council or
othenruise. The Council agrees to notify the Employer of any such claims charges or
liabilities received by the Council.

4.2The Council shall not be liable for any act or omission on the part of the
Employee during the Secondment and shall incur no liability for loss, damage or
injury of whatever nature sustained by the Employee during the Secondment.

4.3 The Employer hereby indemnifies the Council against any and all claims,
liabilities, actíons, proceedings, costs (including legalfèes), losses, damages and
demands arising out of or resulting from breach of this Secondment Agreement or
any act or omission or default of the Employee including without limitation:

4.3.1 Any loss of or any damage to any property;
4.3.2 All financial loss;
4.3.3 Those resulting from any breach by the Employee of any intellectual
property rights owned by the Employer or a third party;
4.3.4 lnjury to or death of any person caused by any negligent act or omission or
wilful misconduct of the Employee, whether resulting in material or financial loss
or damages or death or injury to persons or any other loss or damage
whatsoever;
4.3.5 Any and all liability arising from any breach of the provisions of the Data
Protection Act 1998 by the Employee.

4.4 The Employer hereby indemnifies the Council against any and all claims,
liabilities, actions, proceedings, costs (including legalfees), losses, damages,
demands, penalties, fines or expenses suffered or incurred by the Employer which
are attributable to any act or omission by the Employer any other person for whom
the Employer are liable arising out of:-

4.4.1The employment or termination of employment of the Employee during the
Secondment; or
4.4.2The engagement or termination of engagement of the Employee under the
terms of this Secondment Agreement during the Secondment; or
4.4.3 Any breach by the Employer of any collective agreement with a trade
union, staff association or employee representatives in respect of the Employee
including for the avoidance of doubt without limitation liability for personal injury,
accident or illness suffered or incurred in whole or in part during the
Secondment, breach of contract or in tort, unfair dismissal, redundancy, statutory
redundancy, equal pay, discrimination of any kind or under any legislation
applicable in the United Kingdom.

4.5 The Council shall indemnify the Employer against any and all claims, liabilities,
actions, proceedings, costs (including legal fees), losses, damages, demands,
penalties, fines or expenses suffered or incurred by the Employer which are
attributable to any act or omission by the Council or any other person for whom the
Council are liable arising out of:-

52lPage

Page 58



4.5.1 Any breach by the Council of any collective agreement with a trade union,
staff association or employee representatives in respect of the Employee
4,5.2 Any breach by the Council of any disciplinary, grievance or other employee
related rules and procedures during the Secondment including for the avoidance
of doubt without limitation liability for personal injury, accident or illness suffered
or incurred in whole or in part during the Secondment, breach of contract or ín
tort, unfair dismissal, redundancy redeployment costs, statutory redundancy,
equal pay, discrimination of any kind or under any legislation applicable in the
United Kingdom.

5 CONDUCT OF CLAIMS

5.1 lf the Council becomes aware of any matter that may give rise to a claim against
the Employee and/or the Employer, notice of that fact shall be given as soon as
possible to the Employer.

5.2 Without prejudice to the validity of the claim or alleged claim in question, the
Council shall allow the Employer and its professional advisors to investigate the
matter or circumstance alleged to give rise to such claim and whether and to what
extent any amount is payable in respect of such claim, and for such purpose, the
Council shall give subject to being paid all reasonable costs and expenses, all such
information and assistance, including access to premises and personnel, and the
right to examine and copy or photograph any assets, accounts, documents and
records, as the Employer or its professional advisors may reasonably request
provided that nothing in this clause shall be construed as requiring the Council to
disclose any document or thing the subject of any privilege. The Employer agrees to
keep all such information confidential and only to use it for such purpose.

5.3 No admission of liability shall be made by or on behalf of the Council and any
such claim shall not be compromised, disposed of or settled without the consent of
the Employet.

5.4 The Employer shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to take such action as it
shall deem necessary to avoid, dispute, deny, defend, resist, appeal, compromise or
contest any such claim or liability (including, without limitation, making counterclaims
or other claims against third parties) in the name of and on behalf of the Council and
to have the conduct of any related proceedings, negotiations or appeals.

6 LEAVE

6.1 The Council will inform the Employer of any Employee absence, including but not
limited to sickness absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon as is
reasonably practicable. lt is the Employee's responsibility to follow the Employer's
sickness absence reporting procedures at all times.

6,2 The Employee shall be entitled to holiday during the Secondment Period in
accordance with the Employee's terms and conditions of employment with the
Employer.

7 HEALTH AND SAFETY

7.1 The Council shall ensure that the Employee observes its health and safety
policies and procedures and maintains a safe method of working.

53 lPage

Page 59



7.2The Employee is required under Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work Act
1974,1o take reasonable care for his/her own Health and Safety and that of others
who may be affected by his/her acts or omissions at work.

8 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

8.1 The Employee must declare and seek agreement from the Employer and his/her
line manager regarding any interests, financial or otherwise, which may gíve rise to a
conflict of interest during the course of the secondment. Such interests include other
employment, business interests and positions of authority in a charíty or voluntary
body in the field of health and social care and in connection wíth a voluntary or other
body contracting for NHS or Gouncil services.

9 RESPONSIBILIW FOR RESOURCES

9.1 Where applicable: Where the Employee is responsible for the management of
Council budgets and/or the procurement of equipment and services the Employee
should follow the Council's Financial Rules and associated procedures.

9.2 ln undertaking such duties the Employee should be mindful to ensure efficient

and transparent financial management. This will include financial probity, the
management of financial risk and achievement of value for money

IO. PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND EXPENSES

10.1 The Employee will continue to be paid by the Employer in accordance with the
Employee's terms and conditions of employment for the duration of the secondment.

10.2 lt is agreed that the Employer shall be solely responsible for all income tax
liability and National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in respect of
any payment to the Employee for the provision of services by the Employee to the
Council under this Secondment Agreement.

10.3 Any salary increments applicable to the Employee's substantive post wíth the
Employer will continue to be awarded by the Employer.

11 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

11.1 Replacement of seconded staff
After 1 April 2014 the administrative services to support the recruitment and selection
of seconded staff will continue to be undertaken by the Employer, supported by the
Council as appropriate.

1 1.2 Employee Relations

11.2.1The Employer will continue to provide advice to the Employee on the
Employer's policies including but not limited to disciplinary, grievance, ill health,
maternity leave and general terms and conditions of service.

54lPage

Page 60



11.2.2 The Employer will be responsible for ensuring the Employee is kept
updated with all changes in the Employer's policies and procedures, although
this may be communicated to the Employee through Council staff.

11.3 Policies and Procedure

11.3.1 During the Secondment Period, the Council, in consultatíon with the
Employer's Human Resources Department shall implement the Employer's
policies and procedures in respect of the Employees, so far as they comply with
current employment legislation.

11.3.2 The Employer authorises the Council to take action in respect of the
Employees pursuant to the Employer's Disciplinary Policy save for any action,
which could result in the dismissal of an Employee. ln such circumstances the
Employer shall take appropriate steps in accordance with its Disciplinary Policy
and Procedure.

11.3.3 The Council may, should it consider necessary to do so, suspend
Employees from duty in accordance with the Employer's Disciplinary Policy and
in consultation with the Employer's Human Resources Department províded that
such a suspension shall be notified to the Employer no later than the following
working day.

11.3.4 The Employer authorises the Council to deal with any grievances raised
þy the Employee against the Council in accordance with the Employer's
grievance policy. The Councilwill notify the Employer of any grievances received
by the Council including those against the Employer within 3 working days or as
soon as reasonably possible

I 1.3.5 For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in clause 11 shall be construed or
have effect as construing any relationship of Employer or Employee between the
Council and the Employee.

1 1.4 Workforce lnformation

Workforce information regarding Employees will continue to be collected and
retained by the Employer. However, it is recognised that the Council wíll require data
concerning the Employees in order to support the planning and delivery of services.
The Employer in accordance with the format and deadlines identified by the Council
will provide.this information as required.

12 MANAGEMENT DURING THE SECONDMENT

12.'l The Employee shall be supervised by and directly accountable to a designated
line manager in the Council's organisational structure during the secondment and
the Employer (Operatíons Director and NursingiGovernance lead will provide
professional support and supervision for qualified nurses.

13 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

13.1 The Employer will work with the Council to ensure the Employee's professional
and developmental needs are identified and met. Performance Development

55 lPage

Page 61



Review's, Performance Management processes, and training of the Employee will be
undertaken by the Council.

14 MANAGEMENT OF CHANGE

14.1 ll is recognised that the Council and the Employer in delivering and developing
integrated continuing healthcare will face organisational restructuring and changes in
employment levels. ln the event that the Employees are affected by organisational
change, the Council and the Employer will ensure that changes happen following full
consultation with his/her union representative and that changes comply with the
Employer's employment policies.

I5 DATA PROTECTION

15.1 The Employee and the Employer consent to the Council holding, disclosing,
using or othenrise processing any information about them whích they provide to the
Council or which the Council may acquire as a result of the Secondment.

15.2 The Employer and the Council agree to protect any personal data held in
relation to the Employee in accordance with the Data Protectíon Act 1998.

16 CONFIDENTIALITY

16.1 ln additíon to the provisions regarding confidentiality in the Employee's Contract
of Employment, the Employee will not disclose during or afte¡, the secondment any
confidential information to which the Employee became privy during the course of the
secondment, including but not limited to all trade secrets, lists or details of
customers, suppliers or patients, information relating to the working of any process or
invention carried on or used by any subsidiary or associate, research projects, prices,
discounts, mark-ups, future business strategy, marketing, tenders, any price sensitive
information, and any proprietary Council information.

17 TERMINATION

17.1 ln the event of termination of the s75 Agreement howsoever arising, this
Secondment Agreement will automatically terminate

17.2The Employee may terminate the Secondment by giving not less than (one)
months' notice in writing (or the Employee's contractual notice period if this is
greater)to the Council and the Employer. This will be taken as the Employee's
intention to tender their resignation of their substantive post.

18 REVIEW AND VARIATION

18.1 This Secondment Agreement will remain the subject of periodic review and
amendment as necessary in light of changing service needs and legislative
developments.

18.2 The parties agree that any amendments or variations to this Secondment
Agreement must be in writing and signed by authorised representatives of the parties

I9 GENERAL

56lPage

Page 62



19.1 lf any provision or term of this Secondment Agreement shall become or be
declared illegal invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, including without
limitation, by reason of provisions of any legislation or by reason of any decision of
any court or other body having jurisdiction over the parties, such terms or provisions
shall be divisible from this Secondment Agreement and shall be deemed to be
deleted in the jurisdiction in question provided always that if any such deletion
substantially affects or alters the commercial basis of this Secondment Agreement,
the parties ðnall negotiate in good faith to amend and modify the provisions or terms
of thís Secondment Agreement as may be necessary or desirable in the
circumstances.

19.2 This Secondment Agreement does not create any partnership or agency
relationship between the Emþloyer and the Council.

19.3 This Secondment Agreement shall be in substitution for any previous letters of
appointment, agreements or arrangements, whether written, oral or implied, relating
to the Secondment of the Employee.

19.4 This Secondment Agreement shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with English law. The Employer and the Council agree that any dispute

arising under this Secondment Agreement or in connection with it shall be decided in

the English Courts, which shall have the sole jurisdiction in any such matter.

5TlPage

Page 63



Schedule 7 - lnformation Sharing

1. The Partners shall comply with the latest version of the Pan Hampshire

lnformation Sharing Protocol at all times.

2. The Partners have developed an OperationalAgreement based on the

template found within the Pan Hampshire lnformation Sharing Protocol which

details the day to day processes for information sharing and the control of
new information. The Operational Agreement is signed off by the Caldicott

Guardian from each Partner, and any variations to it shall be agreed in

writing. This Operational Agreement will be subject to local approval and
reviewed on an annual basis or sooner if appropriate by the Authority's and

the Trust's lnformation Governance Leads.

3. The Partners have developed a Privacy lmpact Assessment based on.the

template found within the Pan Hampshire lnformation Sharing Protocol in

relation to the èharing of the information relating to the Service. lt is agreed

that:

The Trust will be the Data Controller for existing NHS data prior to the
Commencement Date.

The Authority will be the Data Controller for existing social care data
prior to the Commencement Date.

The Authority will be the Data Controller for new informatíon collected
by the new integrated team from the Commencement Date.

4. ln the event of a breach of Data Protection Legislation by either of the
Partners the relevant Partner responsible for the breach shall be liable for any
fines imposed by the lnformation Commissioner's Office.

a

a

a

5SlPage

Page 64



SCHEDULE 8 . GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTABILITIES

1.1 Both Partners are equally accountable for the delivery of the Aims
and Objectives (schedule 1) and the service specificatíon and Key

Performance lndicators (schedule 5)

2. PARTNERSHIP MANAGEMENT GROUP

2.1 The Agreement will be actively monitored by a Partnership Management

Group (PMG) to be chaired by lCU.

2.2 The Partners will agree Terms of Reference for the PMG which will be

reviewed annually.

2.3 The PMG will meet 4 times a year with senior representation from both
partners.

2.4 The PMG will oversee the Partnership arrangements to ensure that the Aims

and Objectives (schedule 1) set out in this agreement are met.

2.5 ln the event that either Partner has concerns about the partnership

arrangements, these concerns shall be escalated, in the first instance, for the

Council to the Head of Adult Social Care and for the Trust to their Divisional

Governance Meêtfng.

3.1

3.2

¿.o ln the event that these concerns cannot be resolved through these escalation

routes in 2.5, clause 3'l will apply.

3. SERVICE MONITORING GROUP

The delivery of the service specification and key performance indicators
(schedule 5) will be actively monitored by the Service Monitoring Group
(sMG)

The SMG will consist of senior representatives of the Partners and the
responsible comm issioners

3.3 The SMG will agree terms of reference for the group which will be reviewed

annually

4. CLINICAL GOVERNANGE FORUIIJI

59lPage

Page 65



4.1

4.2

4.3

ln order to ensure safe governance for Solent NHS staff on secondment, a
Healthcare Glinical Governance Forum will be in place.

This forum will ensure compliance with national/ local NHS staff personal
professional practice standards and take a significant role in the assurance
required from recommendations made in respect of the Winterbourne and Mid

Staffordshire inq uiries.

Meetings of the Forum will be monthly and will report to the Partnership Board
through the Operations Director of Adult Services for Solent NHS Trust.

ßål:
08052013r.D S75

governance TOR (3),

[Embedded document to be set out in full in hard copy Agreement]

60lPage

Page 66



Adult and Older Persons Seruices Division

Learning Disabilities Glinical Governance Group

Constitution and Terms of Reference

lntroduction

The LD service is under the contractual agreement Section 75 arrangement with Portsmouth
City Council.

ln order to ensure safe governance for Solent NHS staff on secondment, a Healthcare
Clinical Governance forum will be in pface.

The Learning Disabilities (LD) Clinical Governance Group is a multi-professional group
reporting to and has accountability to Solent NHS Trust Adult and Older Persons Clinical
Governance Group. The LD Clínical Governance Group also reports to the Solent Adults
Division Governance meeting and Partnership Board through the Joint Senior Management
Team Meetíng.

This forum will ensure compliance to national/ local NHS staff personal professional practise
standards and take a significant role in the assurance required from recommendations made
in respect of the Winterbourne, Confidential Deaths Enquiry and Mid Staffs enquiries.
Meetings will be monthly and will report to the Partnership Board through the Associate
Director of Adult Services for Solent NHS Trust.

Purpose

The purpose of the LD Clinical Governance Group is to ensure continued commitment to
providing in partnership with Portsmouth City Council, services which are safe and of a high
quality. Key to this commitment is having effective mechanisms for ensuring the highest
standards in clinical practice along with a dynamic approach to quality improvement and
governance.

The primary function of the LD Clinical Governance Group is to:

. Ensure a clear steer and oversee the operational implementation of Governance and
the quality governance framework throughout the LD Service.

o ln association with PCC to deliver on the aims and objectives of Solent NHS Trust
Quality lmprovement Strategy and associated aims and objectives from PCC

¡ Prioritise resources to address Governance issues.
. fn partnership with PCC to determine the information and key governance issues to

be passed up to the Assurance Committee, through the Associate Director or where
appropriate Trust Management Team.

o To ensure that the LD service remains integrated within the relevant professional and
operational structure of Solent NHS Trust.

Page 67



Constitution

The LD Clinical Governance Group works to an integrated model of Governance, therefore
the Group shall consider Governance issues relating to all aspects of the service's functions.

The membership of the LD Clinical Governance Group will comprise the following:

. Consultant Psychiatrist Clinical Lead (co-chair)

. Cornrnunity Healthcare Team Manager (chair

. Lead from PCC

. Representatives from each team including multi- disciplinary team members

. Associate Director for Adult and Older Persons Services

. Divisional Governance & Nursing Lead

ln order to ensure robust decision processes are adhered to the quorum for the LD CGG will
consist of:

. Consultant Psychiatrist Clinical Lead

. Community Healthcare Team Manager

. Divisional Governance & Nursing Lead/Associate Director
o Representation from three of the multi- disciplinary team

Administration and Format of Meetings

. The meetings will be held monthly

. Formal minutes will be taken as a record for each meeting

. The minutes once approved will be presented to the Adult and Older Persons Clinical
Governance Group

Monitoring

The effectiveness of Group and its Terms of Reference will be monítored annually by
the Senior Management Team.

Terms of Reference

The LD Clinical Govèrnance Group will undertake the following duties.

To ensure the LD Service's compliance with the Essential Standards of Quality and
Safety (CQC), NHSLA standards and management of risks in order to be able to
provide quality assurance for the Adult and Older Persons Clinical Governance
Group and the Trust Assurance Committee
To ensure the LD Service undertakes and achieves quality improvement on an on-
going basis.

To ensure that appropriate information on the status of quality is available in a timely
manner for response to Internal and external requests.
Ensure that all action plans from SlRl, HRl, complaint and other areas are
adequately progressed through to oonclusion, through the subordinate and reporting
groups

I

a

a

a

a

Page 68



Strategic Capacity and Corporate Governancen

¡ Ensure that action plans relating to all Governance issues are implemented to
resolve any identified shortfalls or achieve quality improvement and that Governance

issues are fed into the Division's Clinical Governance Group. The group shall monitor
progress and take appropriate actions in response

o Ensure the communication of key messages on Governance issues down through
the LD Service.

. Revíew clinical information and trends of incidents, complaints and claims to identify
potential problem areas for resolution.

¡ Ensure all recommendations from external bodies, including the Care Quality
Commissions, relating to the Division are implemented.

¡ Validate policies, procedures, guidelines and PGDs that are for use within the LD

Service as per the Policy for Policies and in partnership with PCC
o Ensure that actions are taken within the LD Service to promote openness, honesty,

probity and accountability
. Review Quality KPls
. Review contractual performance targets

Patient Experience

Monitor and manage the LD Service's performance in relation to Complaints and

incidents, to take appropriate management action and to ensure that lessons are
learnt as a result of complaints-
Monitor the quality (incl. privacy and dignity) of the PatÍent Care Environment and to

oversee the implementation of improvements.

Ensure that Patíent lnformation produced, disseminated or used within the LD

Service is províded in a timely manner, appropriate to the patient's needs, in line with

Trust Policy / Guidance and PCC and of excellent quality. The group shall ensure

that all patient information is reviewed and updated appropriately to meet best
practice.

To review Patient and Carer satisfaction surveys and to implement recommendations

to service leads.

lnformation, I nnovation and Effectiveness

Agree and participate in the Trust ClinicalAudit programme annually that involves all

multi-professional groups, and to assess progress on a biannual basis.

ln partnership, to participate in PCC audit programme and liaise results of any such
audit with the Adult and Older Persons Services Clinical Governance Group.

Monítor and ensure the implementation of NICE guidance across the Division,

feeding actions into the Divisions Annual Planníng Process as appropriate.

Ensure the division is meeting information governance requirements including data
quality, data protection and Freedom of lnformation

a

a

a

a

a

a

Page 69



Ensure that records management within the LD Service is effective in supporting the
delivery of patient care and that records are available at appropriate times to
clinicians.
Agree the development and implementation of integrated working with PCC taking
into account the effectiveness, risks and benefits to patient care.

Risk and Safety

. Review the LD Local Rísk Register on a monthly basis, providing feedback to the
Adult and Older Persons Service Clinical Governance Group according to an agreed
schedule.

. Ensure the appropriate investigation of all incidents within the LD Service and the
identification and monitoring of resultant actions for example: Serious lncidents
Requiring lnvestigation (SlRl), High Risk lncidents (HRl) and Incident Reports (lR).

. To ensure that key learning and themes of incidents are clearly articulated and
escalated to the Adult and Older Persons Service Clinical Governance Group to
ensure organisational learning and sharing.

. Ensure the environment for patients, staff and visitors is safe and secure
o Ensure the follow up and implementation of alerts from CentralAlert System (CAS) in

a timely manner. The group shall monitor progress and take appropriate actions in
response.

. Ensure that adequate controls are in place in relation to Child Protection,
safeguarding Vulnerable Adults, Medical Devíces, Decontamination, Medicines,
Waste and Emergency Planning e.g. evacuation processes, contingency etc.

Workforce, Education and Staff Experience

Review workforce change / reduction plans, identifying any Governance implications
for the Adult and Older Persons Service Clinical Governance Group
Review any applications for expanded practice within the LD Service in terms of risks
/ challenges and benefits.
Ensure that adequate supervision and leadership is provided to staff within the LD
Service.
Ensure that adequate controls are in place relating to employment checks and that
staff follow professional codes of practice.
Ensure staff are appropriately trained, supported in their personal development,
receive regular appraisals, and attend mandatory training

Partnership working

Ensure that in partnership with the Adult and Older Persons Service Clinical
Governance Group and PCC are involved in LD Service business plans and projects

and are appraised of service changes as necessary.
Ensure personalised care is provided across the healthcare environment.
Provide a forum to identify and monitor quality improvements to the ongoing
development of patient pathways. To include both internal pathways and
collaboration.

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Page 70



PMG (meetmonthly)

Solent Associate Director LD
ASC Assistant Head (Provider services)

ASC LD servicemanager

SMG meet quarterly)

Head of ICU
Solent Associate Director LD

ASC LD service nnnager

ASC Assistant Head (Provider services)

Clinical Govemance Forum
(Solent)

Integrated Management Team (meet

fortnightly)
ASC LD service Manager

Solent operational hcalth lead

ASC operational lead

61

P
age 71



SGHEDULE 9 - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

1. The Trust's Financial Obligations

1,1 The Trust will in accordance with terms of the Secondment
Agreement pay all salaries, expenses and other employment costs
to and in respect of the Post Holders and any other and/or
additional staff seconded to the Authority by the Trust from time to
tirne for the purposes of the Partnership Arrangements in this
Agreement (the "Seconded Staff Costs").

1.2 The Trust will pay to the Authority such sum as represents 50% of
all expenditure incurred by the Authority Ín respect of the
employment by the Authority of a Service Manager for the
purposes of the Partnership Arrangements (the "Service Manager
Costs")

1.2.1 The Authority shall send to the Trust an invoice at
quarterly intervals specifying the Service Manager Costs
recharged in respect of the preceding quarter and such invoices
will be payable by the Trust within 30 days of receipt by the Trust of
an acceptable invoice

2. The Authority's Financial Obligations

2.1 The Authority will pay to the Trust by equal quarterly instalments in advance

the sum of Ê46,000 per annum as a contribution to accommodation costs at

the Kestrel Centre, St James' Hospital, Locksway Road, Portsmouth ("the

Accommodation Costs").

2.2

2.3

The Trust shall send to the Authority an invoice at quarterly intervals

specifying the Accommodation Costs recharged in respect of the preceding

quarter and such invoices will be payable by the Authority within 30 days of

receipt by the Authority of an acceptable invoice.

All costs are subject to annual review, to be agreed 21 days prior to the

anniversary date of the contract, in line with NHS pay awards and inflation.

3. Variation of the Trust's Financial Obligations and the Authority's Financial
Obligations

Variations to the Trust's Financial Obligations and the Authority's Financial

Obligations will be discussed and agreed by the Partnership Management

Group and the Service Monitoring Group

3.1

Page 72



3.2 Where the Partners are unabfe to reach agreement as in paragraph 3.1of thís

schedule 9 the matter will be dealt with under clause 31.

Page 73



Page 74



1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

Service Specification 
 

 

 

Integrated Learning Disability 

Service 
 

 

 

 

 

Updated:  February 2018 

 

Author: Dominic Dew 

 

 

Version  1.1 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



2 | P a g e  

 

Version Control 

Suggested Change By whom Added date Version no. 

Merging of current 

Section 75 and 

Solent Health Spec 

Mark Paine  0.1 

Add in Activity 

Boundaries 

Ian Chalcroft 26.02.15 0.2 

Outcome indicators 

& measures 

amended on 

comments received 

as a result of 

invitations of key 

stakeholder to 

respond  

Mark Paine 10.03.15 0.3 

Addition of 

Quarterly 

performance 

monitoring 

template - 

Appendix A 

Mark Paine 10.03.15 0.4 

Clarification of the 

roles around case 

management and 

agreement of 

targets 

Ian Chalcroft 30.07.15 0.5 

Re-write of service 

aims and beliefs.  

Amendments to 

service delivery.  

Updated staffing 

and governance 

structures.  

Revised KPIs. 

Dominic Dew/Ian 

Chalcroft 

02.02.18 1.0 

Agreed 

amendments to 

vers. 1.0 

Dominic Dew/Ian 

Chalcroft 

15.02.18 1.1 

 

 

Page 76



3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Section 1: Purpose 

 

1.1 General Overview 

Approximately 1.5 million people in the UK have a learning disability.  It is estimated that in 

England in 2011, 1,191,000 people have a learning disability. This includes 905,000 adults 

aged 18+ (530,000 men and 375,000 women) (Source: People with Learning Disabilities in 

England 2011). 

 

The above figures therefore equate to about 22 people in every thousand having a learning 

disability.  Applying this estimate to the local population, the national Learning Disabilities 

Observatory estimates that 4,594 people (across all age ranges) in Portsmouth have a 

learning disability.  It needs to be recognised that this figure will include people across the 

full range of learning difficulty and learning disability and that not everyone with a learning 

disability will need to access statutory services. 

 

1.2 Vision 

People with learning disabilities who are members of the Learning Disability Partnership 

Board have set out their vision that should be remembered when determining how to deliver 

services, and what differences they would like to see in their lives. 

 

Their vision is that: 

 

“We should be treated equally and our views respected, and we 

should be helped to live the lives we choose.  You need to make 

sure we are safe in services if we need support or care” 
 

1.3 Principles 

They said that when people think about what they need to do to make this vision a reality 

they need to remember these principles: 

 We are treated equally and have the same rights and responsibilities as everyone else 

 Our views are respected, and we are supported to make informed choices about our 

lives 

 We are always at the centre of decisions about us, remember the motto “nothing about 

us without us” 

 We should be safe in services, especially if we have to live outside of Portsmouth 

 You should make sure you use the money in the best way and remember that 

sometimes “small things can make a bigger difference” 

 Family carers who support people with learning disabilities are listened to, and given the 

information and support they need 

 Organisations should make sure they work in a person centred way, and only share 

information about us when they need to 

 

Page 77



4 | P a g e  

 

1.4 Outcomes 

They also said that these are the differences they want to see in their lives: 

 Improved health and wellbeing – “we are helped to keep well, happy and safe” 

 Making a positive contribution – “we are supported to speak up and say what we think” 

 Improved quality of life – “we get the support we need to make our own decisions and 

are helped to do the things we want to do” 

 

1.5 Service Aims 

The Integrated Learning Disability Service (ILDS) have a number of overarching aims: 

 To support people to have valued, meaningful and satisfying lives 

 To ensure support provided achieves clear outcomes for the individual that promotes 

their independence, health, relationships and community participation 

 That people should be active members of their communities, including the use of 

local services and facilities 

 To provide support that is effective, efficient and personalised. 
 

1.6 Service Core Beliefs 

Underpinning these aims are Four guiding beliefs that influence our approach: 

 Co-production. The service should actively demonstrate how services can 
develop with the input from its users. 

 Challenge. The service should challenge its expectations of its users, its partner 
providers and itself. 

 Competence. The service should seek to improve the competence of its users, 
its partner providers and itself. 

 Valued roles. The service will ensure that the work it undertakes, the services it 
commissions, and, the way it behaves promotes valued roles for its users. 
 

These beliefs will be expressed in a number of ways including: 

 Care and support are outcome focussed and reflect the lives people want to live. 

 Trusted relationships are central to effective service delivery. 

 Focus should be on a person's assets and not their deficits. 

 Risk is part of life and people have the right to take risks. 

 People can change and grow. 

 We need to help people “dare to dream”. 

 People respond to the way we perceive them. 

 Addressing people's needs holistically is essential. 

 Integration of services gives us that opportunity. 
 

 

Section 2: Scope 

 

2.1 Model of Service 

The Integrated Learning Disability Service will operate under a Section 75 Lead Provider 

arrangement with Portsmouth City Council (PCC) as the lead provider.  The funding and 

contractual flow of the service is detailed below: 

 

 Learning Disability Health and Social Care service provision to act as a single integrated 

service. 

 PCC to act as the lead commissioner. 

Page 78



5 | P a g e  

 

 PCC to contract with Solent NHS Trust for agreed staffing establishment and associated 

costs with clear outcomes. 

 Solent NHS Trust and PCC to enter a S75 Partnership Agreement (with Solent staff 

seconded to PCC) with no requirement for a pooled fund 

 PCC accountable as lead provider for delivery of the integrated service specification and 

health and social care outcomes measures, facilitated by the S75 Partnership 

Agreement 

 S75 partnership agreement to be overseen and monitored by the Integrated 

Commissioning Service (ICS). 

 

The service will operate from a shared base, under single line management led by Adult 

Social Care. 

 

The service will be supported by unified procedures and protocols within a Standard 

Operating Procedure (SOP) which will deliver the vision, principles and outcomes previously 

determined by people with learning disabilities.  

 

The service will have a clear focus on the support and delivery of the: 

 

 Health and wellbeing of people with learning disabilities* 

 Care and ongoing support for people with learning disabilities* 

 Development of life skills and rehabilitation for adults with learning disabilities, with or 

without autistic spectrum disorders (ASD), within a clear eligibility framework. 

 

The service will support flexible working practices recognising people’s skills, knowledge and 

expertise to provide case management by trusted assessors.  The service will ensure 

equality of access and outcomes to health and social care services. 

 

2.2 Service Population 

The service will be open to adults diagnosed with a learning disability who live within the 

geographic area covered by Portsmouth City Council and Portsmouth Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG), and certain cases to those living outside of the City but 

currently or formally with a Portsmouth GP. 

 

2.3 Components of service 

The components of the service are described below: 

 

 Integrated community team (including health and social care staff, therapy staff and 

LD Consultant sessions). 

 Intensive Outreach Service. 

 LD Liaison Nurse Service based at Queen Alexandra Hospital. 

 

2.4 Functions 

The functions of the integrated service will be to: 

 Promote independence, choice, rights and inclusion 

 Improve health and well being 

 Address locally and nationally identified health inequalities 

Page 79



6 | P a g e  

 

 Improve the service user experience 

 Promote and develop mainstream inclusion in all services across the health and local 

authority agenda 

 Support carers 

 Implement key national and local directives/plans/guidance, including meeting the 

local Transforming Care Partnership (TCP) strategic objectives 

 Provide services along a care pathway basis 

 Ensure the safety of service users in services either directly provided or 

commissioned 

 Deliver the safeguarding, quality and clinical governance agendas 

 Complaints, legal and risk management 

 Make best use of resources and budgets 

 Involve users, carers, families and other stakeholders in the development, delivery 

and monitoring of services 

 Manage the service under a Section 75 Lead Provider agreement 

 

2.5 Delivery Model 

The ILDS delivers its support by using the following systems/models: 

 The provision of a 'named worker' to everyone eligible for support.  

 Have an agreed eligibility criteria and process that includes trusted assessments 

 The provision of an assessment of need and support plan 

 Ensuring that every service user has an individual communication support plan 
where required 

 The provision of health facilitation 

 The screening of risks associated with asphyxia and/or choking 

 The use of CPA for the co-ordination of complex support packages 

 Positive risk taking strategies 

 Skills teaching strategies 

 The provision of link professional to our commissioned provider partners 

 The Chairing and hosting of the Portsmouth LD Transforming Care Steering Group 

 The maintenance of a “At Risk of Admission Register” 

 Supporting the use of innovative support solutions, Personal Budgets and Personal 
Health Budgets where appropriate. 

 

Section 3: Operational Delivery  

 

3.1 Service Structure 

 

The service comprises of Four teams that each work in partnership to deliver the identified 
outcomes for individuals that maximises both health benefits and resource efficiencies.  
Clinical and care pathways integrate all the service elements to deliver seamless care with 
the Service User at the centre of their support. 
 

 Community Multi-disciplinary Learning Disability Team 

 Learning Disability Hospital Liaison Team 

 Complex Healthcare Team (Intensive Outreach Service) 

 Intensive Support Team (Intensive Outreach Service) 
 

3.2 Community Multi-Disciplinary Learning Disability Team 

Page 80



7 | P a g e  

 

 

The Community Multi-Disciplinary Learning Disability Team (CMLDT) is based at St James’ 

Hospital and includes community nurses, social workers, associate practitioners, 

independence support assistants, a Consultant Psychiatrist, Clinical Psychologist, Speech 

and Language Therapist and Occupational Therapist's. The team directly supports adults 

with a learning disability and provides information, advice, education and support to carers 

and other health and social care professionals. Much of its work concerns commissioning 

and monitoring packages of support, promoting communication, advocacy, health promotion, 

mental health, psychological wellbeing and challenging behaviour, where these require 

specialist healthcare support. The team also provides support on other issues including 

anger management, continence, issues related to ageing, nutrition, relationships, sensory 

loss or impairment, sexuality and sexual health. 

 

3.3 Learning Disability Hospital Liaison Team 

 

The Learning Disability Hospital Liaison Team (LDHLT) is made up of Learning Disability 

Nurses from Solent NHS Trust working in partnership with Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust.  

The hospital liaison nurses work in Queen Alexandra hospital and support patients with 

learning disabilities throughout their planned hospital admission journey, during outpatient’s 

appointments, and, with pre-admission planning as well as during emergency admissions. 

The liaison nurse's role is to ensure patients with learning disabilities understand their 

diagnosis, treatment options and support investigations and treatment.  The team can also 

offer support to carers of people with learning disabilities. 

 

Other areas that the team can help with include; compliance with the Mental Capacity Act, 

Safeguarding Adults, desensitisation work, helping departments make “reasonable 

adjustments”, and discharge planning. 

 

3.4 Intensive Outreach Service  

 

The Intensive Outreach Service (IOS) is a specialist healthcare service that has two clinical 

elements – the Complex health team and the Intensive Support Team, with the aim to 

provide a proactive approach at a time when people’s specialist health needs challenge the 

capacity of the existing team. 

  

The complex health element operates as an intensive outreach service to meet the high 

level of complex health and nursing needs that exists within some settled accommodation 

and to provide healthcare to these services.  

 

The intensive support team operates an intensive outreach service, where the combined 

intensity of intervention and the complexity of the presentation, creates significant difficulties, 

within the persons settled accommodation. 

 

Section 4: Additional Healthcare Roles 
 
4.1 Co-ordination, assessment and case management of continuing health care 

and other NHS funded placements  

 

Page 81



8 | P a g e  

 

Solent’s Learning Disability Services are tasked with monitoring placements, usually on 

behalf of NHS Portsmouth, where the package of care is funding wholly, or partly, by NHS 

Portsmouth via the Integrated Commissioning Service (ICS).  This equates to Continuing 

Health Care (CHC) Placements, Extra-Contractual Referral (ECR) Placements - either in 

Specialist Hospitals, or as patients with Portsmouth funded 117 aftercare packages in 

Specialist Residential Care and increasingly in Specialist Supported Living. 

 

Processes for monitoring each of the placement types differ according to the 

Commissioner’s requirements but there are similarities across the groups. These are:- 

 A registered learning disability nurse will provide the monitoring. 

 The placement will be reviewed every 6 months as a minimum. 

 The patient will be seen at every review, and where appropriate this will be within 

their accommodation area. 

 Access to independent advocacy services will be offered and supported if required. 

 Placement reviews will be recorded on TPP SystemOne. 

 Commissioners will be alerted to significant events/changes in care needs, including 

the need for a Community Care and Treatment Review (CTR) to help prevent 

admission to a secure setting. 

 The clinician will review the package of care being delivered, including risk 

management strategies, either via the CPA process or by reviewing care plans. 

 The clinician will seek evidence of the in-patient units external accreditation process, 

such as those run by the Royal College of Psychiatrists or an equivalent. This may 

be completed at the point of commissioning the service. 

 The clinician will seek to ensure that the views of family members are sought and 

heard. 

 The clinician will monitor the placements CQC status. 

 The clinician will seek to be assured that care practices within the commissioned 

environment reflect best practice guidance (e.g. in the use of physical interventions, 

etc). 

 The clinician will actively support any safeguarding issues including where necessary 

raising alerts and attending Safeguarding Conferences for individuals. 

 The clinician will support and represent at CTRs for those held in secure settings. 

 The clinician will endeavour to seek the best value placement for individuals needing 

to be placed in specialist accommodation via the ECR process. 

 The clinician will adhere to the ICS ECR guidance and methodology in applying for 

ECR funding. 
 

A template for recording placement monitoring has been developed and will be used for all 

placement types. There are also some differences in how the placement types are 

monitored.  

 

4.2 Continuing Care 

a. Receiving and acting upon referral for Continuing Care Assessments and ensuring 
appropriate consent is given. 

b. Seeking involvement of appropriate Multi Disciplinary Team (MDT) to complete 
Decision Support Tool (DST). 

c. Support MDT through the assessment/DST process. 

Page 82



9 | P a g e  

 

d. Support individual or their representative to play a full role in the process, ensuring 
access to advocacy if required. 

e. To take reasonable steps to complete the DST within 28 days of a checklist being 
completed and indicating that a full assessment is required. Where the 28 day target 
is not reached clear reasons for this for this will be provided.  

f. Ensure assessment / DST completed in accordance with the CHC Framework.  
g. Ensure MDT recommendation on eligibility is sent for approval to the ICS in a timely 

manner. 
h. Co-ordinator / MDT to present their cases to Integrated Learning Disability Team 

Funding Panel when required. 
i. Ensuring a suitable care plan is drawn up.  All care plans and subsequent reviews 

should as a minimum contain: 

 

 Name of assigned case manager 

 Copy of last CPA review (where appropriate) 

 Detailed, accurate information in respect of background, current placement, 
goals, outcomes, progress 

 Details of revised/new goals and outcomes 

 Details of any personal budget/personal health budget (if applicable) 

 Changes to care plan 

 Changes to care package 

 Appropriateness of current placement and/or details of suitable local services 

 Expected discharge date (where appropriate) 

 Discharge plan (where appropriate) 
 

j. Ensuring that the care / support package meets individuals assessed needs and 

agreed outcomes. 

k. Identifying potentially appropriate community packages and/or residential 

placements. 

l.      Ensuring the completion of draft Deprivation of Liberties (DoLs) applications, using 

Case Manager knowledge and providing any and all relevant information to aid 

appointed solicitors to lodge the applications with the Court of Protection, including 

the preparation of statements and appearances as witnesses as appropriate.    

m. Where the care plan includes access to non NHS services e.g. leisure, monitor that 

arrangements for these are in place and working effectively.   

n. Monitoring quality of care and support arrangements, responding to any difficulties / 

concerns about these in a timely manner. 

o. Acting as a link person to co-ordinate services for the individual ensuring that any 

changes in a person’s needs are highlighted. 

p. Undertake reviews to consider whether the individual is still eligible for NHS 

continuing healthcare or other NHS funding and also the effectiveness and 

appropriateness of the care/support arrangements. 

 

The role does not include: 

 Formally notifying patients or their advocates of the outcomes of continuing care 
processes. Though the ILDS will verbally inform service users/their families of the 
decisions of the LD funding panel. 

 The ILDS will not make financial decisions on care interventions, but will identify 
the clinical needs and identify appropriate care packages and provision. 

Page 83



10 | P a g e  

 

 The ILDS will not make independent decisions about changing providers, these 
will be made by the iLDS applying to the Integrated Learning Disability Funding 
Panel. The ILDS will provide routine liaison with providers to manage difficulties 
in care delivery. The lead commissioner within the ICS will be made aware of any 
significant concerns about providers. 

 Acting as legal decision maker when making significant decisions about care 
packages on behalf of someone who lacks capacity when this results in legal 
applications needing to be made (e.g. to the Court of Protection). The ILDS will 
actively support the decision making process including preparing information for 
and being witness to formal applications within the DoLS framework. At all other 
times the ILDS will act as Decision Makers as it is understood within the MCA. 

 Manage the resolution of formal disputes about eligibility decisions, care needs, 
and/or, resource allocation. 
 

All continuing care support packages will be evaluated, and if appropriate, agreed by the 
Integrated Learning Disability Service Funding Panel whose membership extends to the lead 
commissioner within the ICS. 
 

4.3 ECR Hospital Placements 

 

For low and medium secure accommodation the ILDS service will work alongside the 

allocated Forensic Care Manager (NHS England) in monitoring the placements and care 

delivery that are being commissioned for patients originating from Portsmouth.  This will 

involve at least 6 monthly reviews (usually under CPA).  The frequency of such meetings will 

increase at certain points in care (e.g. in planning discharge) or if the patient need requires 

more frequent review.  Any change in needs or concerns around the placement or 

safeguarding will be highlighted to the Forensic Care Manager. 

 

For non-secure placements (e.g. locked wards) we will provide the monitoring on behalf of 

Portsmouth CCG.  Arrangements will be as above but reporting will be via the ICS who will 

be alerted to key changes in need or concerns around the placement or safeguarding. ICS 

will in turn be required to report to NHSE and the SHIP Transforming Care Partnership on 

inpatient numbers, discharge planning and CTR's and the ILDS will be required to help 

collate information from time to time. 

 

4.4 S117 Care packages 

 

Where Portsmouth CCG funds all or part packages of care the ILDS service will monitor the 

package of care on their behalf. 

 

Reviews will normally be under the CPA process and occur every 6 months.  Significant 

events/safeguarding alerts will be reported back to the ICS. 

 

4.5  Health Promotion Activity 
 
The ILDS is committed to the improvement of the health status of people with a learning 
disability. To support this it will: 
 

 Offer a Health Action Plan and health facilitation to all its service users. 
 

Page 84



11 | P a g e  

 

 Actively support the wider Leaning Disability Service economy to engage in 
Health Action Planning and Health Facilitation through the provision of training 
and mentorship. 

 Liaise with primary and secondary care services around individual service users. 
 

 Provide a link nurse to all GP practices within its geographical boundaries. 
 

 Facilitate a range of health promotion activities including delivering a health 
promotion group, health promotion road shows, health promotion courses and 
providing a healthy eating service. 

 

 Improve the early identification of illness among people with learning disabilities 
by, for example, increasing uptake of annual health checks, and for women, 
cervical and breast screening. 

 

 Enhance the health literacy of people with learning disabilities and of family 
carers and paid carers/supporters who play a critical role in promoting healthy 
lifestyles among many people with learning disabilities; 

 

 Make 'reasonable adjustments' in all areas of health promotion and healthcare in 
light of the specific needs of people with learning disabilities and acting within the 
legal framework of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 (e.g., through providing more 
accessible information and longer appointment times); 
 

 monitor progress towards the elimination of health inequalities faced by people 
with learning disabilities. 

 
Section 5: Performance and Quality Monitoring 
 
These outcomes were developed jointly with people with learning disabilities in Portsmouth. 

The outcomes indicators and performance measures to demonstrate progress against these 

outcomes have been agreed jointly between the ICS and ILDS health and social care 

managers. 

 

A Programme Management Group (PMG) consisting of a senior ICS and ILDS managers will 

meet quarterly to review progress against the agreed measures. 

 

5.1 Integrated Performance Targets 

 

% of service users who have a named worker (target 90%) 
 
% of reviews completed within 12 months (target 80% - s117 100%) 
 
% of support plans completed within 12 months (target 80%) 
 
% of people whose communication needs have been screened (target 80%) 
 
% of support plans that are available in an appropriate format as suggested by their 
communication screen (target 90%) 
 
% of people whose risk of choking has been screened (target 80%) 
 
% of people who have a current Health Action Plan (target 80%) 

Page 85



12 | P a g e  

 

 
% of referrals to the service that begin active support within 18 weeks (target 90%) 
 
% of positive feedback from service users (target 80%) 
 
% of people in supported living services compared to residential care (above 60%) 

 

% of Service users are offered a personal budget as part of their review (90%). 

 

For those KPIs where, as indicated in Appendix A, are to be provided as part of the Annual 

Report, this will be completed during Apr/May of each calendar year.  

 

5.2 The Hospital Liaison Service has separate performance targets: 
 
i) % of hospital admission forms (e.g. passports) used for all patients who are known to have 
a learning disability (target 90%) 
 
ii) % of patients with a learning disability and with whom the liaison nurse/s have contact 
have consent forms completed accurately which are supported by assessment of capacity 
and best interest forms in relation to their hospital treatment (target 90%) 
 
iii) % of cases where the need for a discharge planning meeting is considered and when 
needed occurs in good time to facilitate effective discharge of all patients with a learning 
disability (target 90%) 
 
 
5.3 The community health services have separate performance targets around activity 
levels: 

 

This is measured by the level of Face to Face activity across the service. 

The combined annual target is for 8,400 face to face contacts per year (700 per month). This 

equates to: 

CLDHT = 3,600 PA (300 per month) 

CHT = 3,600 PA (300 per month) 

IST = 1,200 PA (100 per month) 

 

Performance to be reported in Annual Report. 

 

5.4 Health Focused Quality Indicators 
 

 Quality Schedule compliance submissions where required 

 Delivery of care within an 18 week referral to treatment schedule 

 User and carer satisfaction data will be continually gathered and analysed. This will 
be summarised within an annual report. 

 The ILDS will undertake patient facing activity reviews to monitor effectiveness. 

 The ILDS will introduce PROMs across all teams 
 

 

Page 86



13 | P a g e  

 

5.5 Activity Boundaries 
 

 Monitor 35 CC funded placements and 10 ECR‟s within current resources. 

 Provide 30 hrs per week input to QAH within current resources. 

 Night cover from the CHT is not provided. 

 Training to external agencies is not provided, e.g. within the CC role, at no cost. 
 
5.6 National Outcomes Frameworks 
 
The local outcomes detailed above will support delivery of the following national outcomes 
which are shared or complimentary outcomes from NHSE, Public Health and Adult Social 
Care Outcomes Frameworks: 
 

 Improving the wider determinants of health 

 Health improvement 

 Preventing people from dying prematurely 

 Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care 

 Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them from 
avoidable harm 

 Enhancing the quality of life for people with care and support needs 

 Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support 

 Safeguarding adults who are vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable harm 

 Avoiding inpatient admissions and length of stay 

Page 87



14 | P a g e  

 

Appendix A: Quarterly Reporting Format to PMG (Performance Management Group) 

 

KPI reporting format to be completed prior to each quarterly PMG meeting 

Performance Measure Target Baseline Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Commentary RAG 

1. Services users are allocated a named worker 90%        

2.  

i) Service user statutory reviews completed within a 

twelve month period 

 

ii) Of i), s117 reviews completed  

 

80%* 

 

 

 

100%* 

     *% by end 4th Quarter  

3. Service users have clear support plans, 
completed within 12 months, with outcomes 
identified across the 5 key domains of: health, work, 
independence, communication and relationships 
 

80%      Annual Report required  

4.  
i) Service users have had their communication 
needs screened 
 
ii) Support plans are in an appropriate format in 
adherence with their communication screen 
 

 

80% 

 

 

90% 

     Annual Report required  

5. Service users offered a risk of choking screen by 

ILDS. 

100%      Annual Report required  

6. Service users with an up to date Health Action 

Plan in place 

80%        

7. Service users referred to the ILDS will have 

active input within 18 weeks. 

90%        

8. People using the service have a  
positive experience 
 

80%      Annual Report required (case 
study examples of where 
feedback has improved 
services to be provided) 

 

P
age 88



15 | P a g e  

 

9. Current proportion of Supported Living based 

support vs Residential Care 

  

Maintain 

above 60% 

60%       

10. Service users are offered a personal budget as 

part of their review. 

90%        

Hospital Liaison service specific indicators         

11. Hospital admission forms used for patients 

(known to have an LD) 

 

90%        

12. Patients with an LD and with liaison nurse 

contact, have consent forms completed accurately 

which are supported by assessment of capacity and 

best interest forms in relation to their hospital 

treatment 

 

90%        

13. Cases where there is a need for discharge, are 

considered and when needed occurs in good time 

to facilitate effective discharge of the patient 

 

90%        

 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Title of meeting:

Date of meeting:

Subject:

Report by:

Wards affected:

Key decision:

Full Council decision:

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Health & Social Care Cabinet

23 March 2018

S75 Partnershíp Agreements between Portsmouth City Council
and Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group

Suzannah Rosenberg

Ail

No

No

1 Purpose of report

To provide the rationale for an extension of the S75 agreement for integrated
health and social care commissioning for vulnerable aãufts for a further-term of 3
years until 31 March 2021.

Recommendations

The Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care approve the deed of variation to
extend the term of the S75 agreement for a period of 3 years until 31 March
2021 "

Background

Portsmouth City Counciland Portsmouth CCG have been partners in a S7s
agreement for integrated health and socíal care commissioning for vulnerable
adults since 2013.

These arrangements take the form of a team of commissioning staff from both
organisations under a single line management structure. The þartners
contribute equally to a pooled fund of Ê609k (iÙlig values) supports the
employment of these staff.

The agreement is governed by a Partnership Management Group which includes
membership from senior finance leads from both organisations, PCC's Chief
Executive and the PCCG's Chief Operating Officer.

The PMG has oversight of the pooled fund and the lntegrated Commissioning
Service's work programme.

Reasons for recommendations

1

3

1.1

2

2"1

3.1

3.4

3.2

3.3

4.

www.portsmouth; goV. uk
Page 91

Agenda Item 4



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

The extension of integrated commissioning arrangements continues to support
both piartners' strategic objeclives to commission high quality integrated services
across health and care which provide value for money and effective deployment
of commissioning staff.

5" Equality impact assessment

4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7

An EIA ís not required as this is a business arrangement to commission seryíces
which has no disproportionate impact on people vûith protected characteristics.
Any services commissioned as a result of this €irrangement will be subject to an
EIA.

6. Legal implications

Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 (the 'Act") allows local authorities and NHS
bodies to enter into partnership arrangements to provide a more streamlined
service and to pool resources, if such arrangements are likely to lead to an
improvement in the way their functions are exercised.

Section 75 of the Act permits the formatíon of a pooled budget made up of
contributions by both parties out of which payments may be made towards
expendituîe incurred in the exercise of both prescribed functions of the NHS
body and prescribed health-related functions of the local authority. The
legislation precludes CCGs from delegating any functions relating to family
health services, the commissioning of surgery, radiotherapy, termínation of
pregnancies, endoscopy, the use oJ Class 4 laser treatments and other invasive
treatments and emergency ambulance servicês. For local authorities, the
services that can be included within section TS.arrangements are broad in scope
although a detailed exclusions list is contained within Regulation 6 of the NHS
Bõdies and Locâl Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000.

The proposed extension of the established agreernent between the parties in
relation to health and social care commissioning is within the remit of the
legislation.

Finance comments

7.1 There are no additional financial.implications arising from the recommendation
contained within.this report, as it seeks to continue the existing arrangements, as
set out within the s.75 agreement.

Signed by: lnnes Richens Date: 14.3:.2018

2

www.portsmouth. gov. uk
Page 92



Portsrnouth
CITY COUNCIL

Appendices:
S75 Agreement dated 1 April 2013
Deed of Variation to extend S75 Agreement

Background list of documents: Section l00D of the Locat Government Act 1gZ2

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by .... ...... on .........

Signed by:

@

3

www. porfs m outh. gov. u k
Page 93



Page 94



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Dated: _______________________________________2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
and 

 
 

PORTSMOUTH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
 

 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
 

DEED OF AGREEMENT: 
 

THIRD EXTENSION OF AN AGREEMENT MADE UNDER SECTION 75 OF THE 
NHS ACT 2006 

_____________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 95



Page 2 of 3 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this                day of                                2018  

BETWEEN 

 
(1)  PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, 

Hampshire PO1 2AL (the "Council"). 

AND 

 
(2)   PORTSMOUTH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of 4th Floor, 1 Guildhall Square, 

Portsmouth PO1 2GJ (the "CCG") 

 

together referred to as the "Parties" 

 

WHEREAS: 

 

(A) This Deed of Agreement is made supplemental to: 

 

(i) an agreement under s.75 National Health Service Act 2006 dated 1st April 

2013 and made between the Parties (the "Agreement") in respect of the 

commissioning and procurement of a range of health and social care services 

for vulnerable people, and 

(ii) a Deed of Agreement dated 8th June 2016 made between the Parties (the 

"First Extension") whereby it was agreed that the Term of the Agreement 

would be extended to expire on 30th September 2016 ( the "First Extended 

Term") and 

(iii) a Deed of Agreement dated 10th May 2017 made between the Parties (the 

"Second Extension") which: 

(a) recorded the Parties' agreement that the Term of the Agreement was 

extended to expire on 31st March 2018 (the "Second Extended Term") 

and 

(b) gave effect to the Additional Variations to the Agreement set out or 

referred to in that Deed. 

 

(B) In accordance with the terms of the Agreement the Parties have agreed to extend 

further the Term of the Agreement so that the same will continue in force after the 

expiry of the Second Extended Term. 

 

(C) The Parties now desire to execute this Deed in order to record their agreement for 

further extension as referred to in Recital (B). 

 
NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows: 

 

FURTHER EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT TERM 

 

1. In accordance with clause 3 of the Agreement the Parties agree and declare that the 

Term of the Agreement is extended for a period of thirty-six (36) months following the 

expiry of the Second Extended Term. 

Page 96



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

2. The Term of the Agreement will therefore expire on 31st March 2021 unless the 

Agreement is: 

2.1 terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, or 

2.2 further extended by further agreement between the Parties in accordance with 

clause 3 of the Agreement. 

 

3. Save as expressly provided in this Deed and/or the First Extension and/or the 

Second Extension the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in accordance 

with its original terms. 

 

4. Words and phrases in this Deed shall have the same meanings as those ascribed to 

them in the Agreement or as the case may be the First Extension and/or the Second 

Extension. 

 

 
IN WITNESS whereof the Council and the CCG have caused their respective Common 
Seals to be hereunto affixed the day and year first above written: 
 
 
The COMMON SEAL of    ) 
PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL  ) 
was hereto affixed in pursuance  ) 
of a resolution of the Council passed  ) 
at a meeting duly convened and held  ) 
 
 
 
Authorised signatory 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the CCG 

 

THE COMMON SEAL of PORTSMOUTH CLINICAL ) 

COMMISSIONING GROUP was affixed to this   )   

Deed in the presence of:-      ) 

 

......................................... 

Authorised Signatory 
 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



w Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

firÆ{
Portsmouth

Cliniral Commíssioning Group

DATED 2013

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIT

and

PORTSMOUTH CLINICAT COMM¡SSIONING GROUP

AGREEMENT

' under s.75 National Health Service Act 2006

for the commissioning and procurement of a range of health and social care

services for vulnerable people

ttt âfru t

L

Page 99



LegalServices

Portsmouth City Council

Civic Offices

Guildhallsquare

Portsmouth

PO12 PX

cc2281

2

Page 100



Contents
Cnuse
1.

2.

3.

4,

5.

6.

7.

B.

9.

10.

11.

72.
13.

74,
L5.

16.

17.
18.

19,

24,
2L,

22.

23.
24.
25.
26.
27.

28.
29.
30.

31.

32.
33.

34.
35.

35.

37.
38.

39.

40.

41.

42.
43.

DEFINITION AND INTERPRËTATION

COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION...

EXTENDING THE INIÏIAL TERM

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS ..,.....

DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS.............

sERVtCES........,....

ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMMË............

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT.......,..

FINANC|AL CONTRIBUT|ONS.,.,...........

QUARTERLY REVIEW AND REPORTING ....

ANNUAL REVIEW......

VARIATIONS.

STAN DARDS.....,..............

HEALTH AND SATETY......

EQUALITY DUTI ES...........

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

DATA PROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHARING

CON F I D E NTIALITY.........

AUDIT

INSURANCE....

INDEMNITIËS.

LIABILITIES

COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS ....,...

HEALTHWATCH

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

PUBLICITY

NO PARÏNERSHIP

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

NOTICES

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING .,,.....

SEVERABILITY

WAIVER

ENTlRE AGREEMENT ...,.....,......

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

............5

............,...,...... 10

,...........,.......... 11

..,...,................ 12

t2

L0

10

13

L4

15

15

15

18

19

..,,.13

OVERSPENDS AND UNDERSPENDS

CAPITAL EXPEN DlTUR8..,..,.........

SET UP COSTS

PREMISÉS

STAFF|NG (TUpE, SËCONDMENT AND PENSIONS)

CONTRACTS...

GOVERNANCE

15

16

.....,.........,..... 16

16

16

.........,77

..........17

.",.¡rr¡¡r¡¡r¡¡.i. ..'..,,. t7

.......18

.......18

.....19

.....19

.,..,19
20

20

20

20

2T

22

23

23

23

24

24

24

24

24

25

3

Page 101



44. FAIR DEALINGS

45. CONFL|CTSOFlNTEREST................

2. CONDTï|ONS OF SECONDMENT,..,..,...,...

5. CONFL|CTSOF|NTEREST............

1. rNTRODUCTrON.........,..

A: THEAuthority,...........,..
B:

AIMS AND OBJECTTVES

AUTHORIÏY FUNCTIONS

ScHEDULE 4.................
EXCLUDED FUNCTIONS

THË SERVICES.....

SCHEDULE 6........

CONTRACTING PROCESS

SCHEDULE 7

25

......25

..,...39

.....,40
43

52

27
30
30
31

3L

33

33

34
34
35

35

37
37

51

51

55

5s
56
56
57

57
59

s9

INTEGRATËD COMMISSIONING UNIT...........
ScHEDULE 8.................
ARRANGEMENTS FOR AGREEING CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER FINANCIAL

ARRANGEMENTS

GOVERNANCE

SCHEDULE 10.
JOINT WORKING AND OTHER AGENCIËS

SCHEDULE 11 .,...

CLINICAL GOVERNANCE & SAFEGUARDING ...

SCHEDULE 12

TNFORMATTON SHAR|NG..,......,..,,..

4

Page 102



THIS DËED is dated l April 201.3

P¡nr¡¡¡Rs

(1) PORTSMOUTH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of Trust Headquarters, St. James'

I'lospital, Locksway Road, Milton, Portsmouth, Hampshire, PO4 8LD ("the CCG").

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL of Cívic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth,

Hampshire, PO1 2PX {"the Author¡ty''),

BACKGRoUND

(A) Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 contains powers enabling NHS

Bodies to exercise certain local authority functions and for local authorities to

exercise various NHS functions. The Partners are entering into this Agreement in

exercise of those powers under and pursuant to the NHS Regulations 2000.

(B) The Partneis are committed to better integration of the NHS Functions and the

Authority Health-Related Functions, and therefore wish to enter into the

arrangements under this Agreement.

(C) This Agreement is further to the Previous Commissioning Agreement between the

Authority and the PCT for the Term L April 2010 to 31 March 2013 and provides the

framework within which the Partners will work together to achieve the Aims and

Objectives.

(D) ln furtherance of the partnershíp working referred to in Recital (C) above the
partners have agreed that the CCG shall delegate certain of ¡ts functions to the

Authority under a lead commissioning arrangement. For these purposes, the Partners

shall establish and maintain a pooled fund with regard to:

(i) the funding of staff who will perform the commissioning and procurement role in

regard to the CCG Functions and the Authority Functions, and

(ii) discrete budgets required for the exercise, provision and delivery of those

Functions, being a range of health and social care services for vulnerable people as
' 
further described in this Agreement.

(E) The Partners are satisfied thât the ärrangements contemplated by this Agreement

are likely to lead to an improvement in the way that their functions are exercísed.

AGREËD TERMS

1. DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION

The definitions and rules of interpretation in this clause apply in this Agreement.

5

{2}

1.1

Page 103



Agreement: this Agreement between the CCG and the Authority comprising these
terms and conditions together with all schedules attached to it.

Aims and Objectives: the objectives of the Partners, setting out how the Partnership
Arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way the Functions are
exercised, as described in Schedule 1.

Annual Work Programme: has the meaning set out in cfause 8.

Authority Health-Related Functions: the health related functions of the Authority
listed in Regulation 6 of the NHS Regulations 2000 (and further described in

Schedule 3 (Authority Functions) of this Agreement) in relation to the provision of, or
making ärrangements for the provision of, the Services, but excluding the Excluded
Functions.

Authority Premises: the Authority premises listed in paragraph 8.2 of Schedule B,

Authority's Authorised Officer: Strategic Director of People's Services

Authority's Financial Contribution: the Authority's financial contribution for the
relevant Financiaf Year. The Authority's Financial Contribution for the Flrst Financial
Year is set out in Schedule 8.

Change in Law: a change Ín Law that impacts on the Partnership Arrangements,
which comes into force after the Commencement Date.

Commencement Date: 1st April 2013.

Data Protection Legislation; thís includes:

(a) the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA 1998);

(b) Directive g5/46/EC on the protection of individuals with regard to tþe processing
of personal data and on the free movement of such data;

(c) the Regulation of lnvestígatory Powers Act 2000;

(d) the ïelecommunications (Lawful Business Practice) (lnterception of
Com m un ications) Regu lations 2000 {S/ 2000/2699l¡;

(e) Directive 2O0Z/58/EC concernÍng the processing of Personal Data and the
protection of privacy in the electronic communications sector;

(f) the Privacy and Electronic Communícations (ËC Directive) Regulations 2003 (S/

2003/2426); and

(g) all applícable laws and regulations relating to processing personal data and
privacy, including the guidance and codes of practice issued by the lnformation
Commissioner, where applicable.

Dispute Resolution Procedure: the procedure set out in clause 32.

EIR: the Environmental lnformation Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/3gg1l

Excluded Functlons: such Functions contained in Schedule 4 (Excluded Functions) of
thís Agreement and/or such Functíons as the Partners mây agree from time to time

6

Page 104



are excluded from the Arrangements, together with any exclusions set out ín the NHS

Regulations 2000,

Financial Contributions: the financial contributions of the Partners as set out in

Schedule B.

FinancialYear: l APrilto 31 March.

First FinancialYear: t April 2013 to 3L March 2014

FOIA: the Freedom of lnformation Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made

under it from time to time, together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by

the lnformation Commissioner or relevant government department concerning this

legislation.

Functions: the NHS Functions and the Authority's Health-Related Functions.

Host Partner: the host partner for the Functíons under this Agreement ,

lndividual Agreement: the agreements made between each Post Holder, the CCG

and the Authority describing the terms on which the Post Holder will be made

available by the CCG to the Authority

lnformation: has the meaning given under section 84 of FOIA.

lnformation Sharing Protocol: the protocol describing how the Partners will share

lnformation contained in a form approved by the partners under Schedule 12.

lnitialTerm: the period commencing on the Cornmencement Date and ending on the

third anniversary of the Commencement Date.

lntegrated Commlssioning Board: the body of officers of the CCG and of the

Authority appointed and with the powers and functions as more particularly

described in Schedule 9 (Governance Arrangements)'

Law: any applicable law, statute, bye-law. regulation, order, regulatory policy,

guidance or industry code, rule of court, directives or requirements of any Regulatory

Body, delegated or subordinate legislation, or notice of any Regulatory Body.

Lead Commissioning: the commissioning of the Services by the Host Partner for both

the Authority and the CCG as further detailed in Clause 6 (Services) of this

jüî,î;06: 
Nationat Heatth service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and

Social Care Act 2A721.

NHS Body: shall have the meaning set out in Regulation 3(1) of the NHS Regulations

2000.

NHS Functions: those of the functions of the CCG set out in regulation 5 of the NHS

Regulations 2000 (and further described in Schedule 2 (CCG Functions) of this

Agreement) as are exercised in the provision of the Services, excluding the Excluded

Functions.

7

Page 105



NHS Regulations 2000: the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership
Arrangements Regulations 2000 tg 2A00/617) (as amended by the NHS Bodies and
Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public Health and Local

Healthwatch) Regulatio ns 2012 (SI 2012/3094)l.

Partner: either the CCG or the Authority, and "Partners" shalJ be construed
accordíngly.

Partnership Arrangements: the arrängements made between the Partners under this
Agreement.

PCT: the Portsmouth City Teaching Primary Care Trust

Personal Data: shall have the same meaning as set out in the DPA 1.998.

Pooled Fund: a pooled fund comprising the Authority's Financial Contribution and
the CCG's Financial Contributíon for the Services designated in Schedule 5 and as

further detailed in Schedule 8, out of which payments may be made by the Authority
towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of the Functions.

Pooled Fund Manager: the Head of lntegrated Commissioning as employed by the
Authority responsible for managing the integrated unit, as notified to the CCG from
time to time.

Post Holder: the individuals identified or referred to in Schedule 7 and being the
individuals who, as at the Commencement Date, are rnade available to the Authority
by the CCG.

Previous Commissioning Agreement means àn agreement under section 75 of the
NHS Act 2006 between the PCT and the Authority dated 01" April 2010 (as varied) for
the commissioning of a range of health and social care services for vulnerable people.

QIPP Plan: the local NHS quality, innovation, performance and prevention plan which
applies to the CCG and any other plan known to incorporate the Aims and Outcomes.

Quarter: the following periods in each FinancialYear:

(a) 1 April to 30 June;

(b) 1. July to 30 September;

(c) 1 October to 31 December; and

(d) l January to 31 March.

Regulatory Body: those government departments and regulatory, statutory and

other entities, committees and bodies that, whether under statute, rules,

regulations, codes of practice or otherwise, are entitled to regulate, investigate or
influence the matters dealt with in thís Agreement, or any other affairs of the
Authority andlor the CCG.

Relevant Transfer: a relevant transfer under TUPE,

I

Page 106



Representative: a Partner's employee, agent or subcontractor and any employee of
the other Partner who is seconded to the Partner and is acting in accordance with the

Partner's ¡nstructions.

Request for lnformation: a request for lnformation or an apparent request under the

Code of Practice on Access to Government lnformation, FOIA or the Environmental

lnformation Regulations 2004 (Sl 2004/3391l' {ElRl.

Service Provider: a third-party provider of any of the Services, as:commissioned by

the CCG, the PCT or the Authority before the Commencement Date or the Authority

from the Commencement Date.

Service User: individuals who are eligible to receive the Services, as more particularly

described in Schedule 5,

Services: the servíces described in Clause 6 {Services) and Schedule 5 and which the

Partners have agreed will come within the arrangements and which will (unless

specified otherwise in this Agreement) be commissioned by the Host Partner from

third party providers.

Term: the period of the lnltial Term as may be varied by:

(a) any extensions to this Agreement that are agreed under clause 3; or

(b) the earlier terminat¡on of this Agreement in accordance with its terms.

CCG's Authorised Officer: Chief Operating Officer

CCG's Financial Contribution: the CCG's fínancial contribution for the relevant

Financial Year. The CCG's Financial Contribution for the First Financial Year is set out

in Schedule 8.

TUpE: the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (5t

2006/246l'.

VAT Guidance: the guidance published by the Department of Health entitled "VAT

ârrangements for Joint NHS and Local Authority lnitiatives including Disability

Equipment Stores and Welfare- Section 31 Health Act 1999".

Working Dayt any day other than Saturday, Sunday, a public or bank holiday in

Eneland.

Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shalÌ not affect the interpretation of this

Agreement.

The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in

the body of this Agreement. Any reference to this Agreement includes the Schedules,

1.4 Words in the singular include the plural and vice versa.

A reference to one gender includes a reference to the other genders

9

L,2

1.3

1.5

Page 107



r_.8

1.6 A reference to a statute or statutory provisíon is a reference to it as it is in force for the
time being, taking account of any amendment, extension or re-enactment and includes
any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under it.

1.7 A reference to writing or written includes faxes and e-mail

Any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an

obligation not to agree or allow that thing to be done.

1.9 A reference to a document is a reference to that document as varied or novated {in
each case, other than in breach of the provisions of this Agreement) at any tíme.

1.L0 References to clauses and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this
Agreement. References to paragraphs are to paragraphs ofthe relevant Schedule.

2, COMMENCEMENTAND DURAT¡ON

This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall continue for
the Term.

3. EXTEÑDING THE INITIALTERM

The Partners may, by agreement made in writing, extend this Agreement for a period
and on varied terms as they agree, beyond the lnitial Term, subject to approval of the
Partners' boards.

4. PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS

4,7 The Partners enter into these Partnership Arrangements under section 75 of the NHS

Act 2006 to commission integrated health and social care services to better meet the
needs of the Service Users of Portsmouth than if the Partners were operating
independently. The specific Aims and Outcomes of the Partnership Arrangements are
descríbed in Schedule 1.

4.2 The Partnership Arrangements shall comprise:

(a) Lead Commissioning arrangements, whereby the CCG will delegate to the
Authority the NHS Functions, so that the Authority may exercise the NHS

Functions alongside the Authority Health-Related Functions and act as

commissioner of the Services described in Schedule 5 on behalf of both Partners.

(b) the establishment of a Pooled Fund for commissioning and procurement of a

range of health and social care services for vuf nerable people as further described
in this Agreement.

10

Page 108



4,3 The Authority shall host and provide the financial administrative systems for the Pooled

Fund.

4.4 The Authority shall appoint a Pooled Fund Manager, who shall be responsible for the

functions detailed in Schedule I (Financial Contributions).

4.5 ln accordance with Regulation aQl of the NHS Regulations 2000, the Partners have

carried out a joint consultation on the proposed Partnership Arrangements with Service

Users, and other individuals and groups who appear to them to be affected by the
Partnersh ip Arrangements.

4.6 The CCG is satisfied that the Partnership Arrangements fulfil the objectives set out in
the QIPP Plan.

4.7 Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or affect

(a) the rights and powers, duties and obligations of the Partners in the exercise of
their functions as public bodies or in any other capacity;

(b) the powers of the Authority to set, administer and collect charges for any

Authority Health-Related Function; or

(c) the Authority's power to determine and apply eligibility criteria for the purposes

of assessment under the Community Care Act L990.

5. DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

5.1 For the purposes of the implementation of the Partnership Arrangements, the CCG

hereby delegates the exercise of the NHS Functions to the Authority to exercise

alongside the Authority's Health-Related Functions and act as lead commissioher of the

heatth and social care services within the scope of this Agreement,;

5.2 Additional services may be brought within the scope of this Agreement during the Term

by agreement.

5.3 Notwithstanding clauses 5.1 and 5.2 in the case of any individual service or

commissioning or procurement exercise the Partners may at any time during the Term

by decision of the lntegrated Commissioning Board decide that the CCG is to act as lead

commissioner and in the event of such a decision being madel

5.3,1 the Authority delegates the exercise of the Authority Functions to the CCG to

exercise alongside the CCG's NHS Functions in relation to the service or

commissioning or procurement exercise concerned, and

11

Page 109



5.3.2 the Partners shall agree any necessary and reasonable adjustments to the
Pooled Fund arrangements,

6. SERVICES

6.7 The Authority is the Host Partner for the Partnership Arrangements, and agrees to act
as lead commissioner of the Services referred to in clause 5.1,.

6.2 The Authority shall ensure that the Services are provided and shall be accountable to
the CCG for the N HS Functions for the benefit of Service Users:

(a) to ensure the proper discharge ofthe Partners'Functions;

(b) with reasonable skill and care, and in accordance wíth best practice guidance;

(c) in all respects in accordance with the Aims and Outcomes, the performance
management framework, the provisions of this Agreement, and the CCG's

applicable policies set out in Schedule 5;

(d) in accordance with its standing orders or other rules on contracting; and

(e) in accordance with all applicable Law.

6.3 Where functions are delegated by the Authority to the CCG in accordance with clause

5,3.1 the CCG shali have obligations to the Authority which are equivalent to the
Authority's obligations to the CCG under clause 6.2

7, ANNUALWORKPROGRAMME

The Partners shafl agree an Annual Work Programme for the Services at least four
weeks before the start of the Financiaf Year. The Annual Work Programme shall:

(a) set out the commissioning priorities for the coming year

(b) specify the milestones for the delivery of the commissioning priorities including
the key decisions for the Partners

(c) provide information on the fínancial impact of the commissioning priorities for
the Partners; and

(d) include details of the estimated contributions due from each Partner for each

Service and its designation to the Pooled Ëund,

7,2 Each Annual Work Programme shall be initiated on the first day of the Financial Year to
which it relates, Each Annual Work Programme will remain in place for a period of 12

months.

7.L

72

Page 110



7.3 The Annual Work Programme may be varied by written agreement between the

Partners, Any variation that increases or reduces the number or level of Services in the

scope of the Agreement shall require the Partners to make corresponding adjustments

to the CCG's Financial Contribution and the Authority's Financial Contribution.

7.4 lf the Partners cannot agree the contents of the Annual Work Progrämme, the matter

shall be dealt with in accordance with clause 32. Pending the outcome of the dispute

resolution process or termination of the Agreement under clause 33, the Partners shall

make available amounts equivalent to the Financíal Contributions for the previous

FinancialYear.

8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

The Partners shall adhere to their constituent organisations' performance

management frameworks.

9. FINANCIALCONTRIBUTIONS

9.1 The CCG shall pay the CCG's Financial Contribution to the Authority to allocate to the
pooled Fund and to manage in accordance with this Agreement and the Annual Work

Programme.

9.2 The Authorityshallcontribute the Authority's Financial Contribution to the Pooled Fund

and shall manage the Pooled Fund in accordance with this Agreement and the Annual

Work Programme.

9.3 The CCG's Financial Contribution and the Authority's Financial Contribution for the First

Financial Year are set out in Schedule 8.

The Partners shall pay the Financial Contributions into the Pooled Fund quarterly in

9.5

9.4

9.5

advance,

The Partners shall agree the CCG's Financial Contribution and the Authority's Financial

Contribution for the following FinancialYear by 31 March.

The Authority's Fínancial Contribution is deemed to include the sums it may recover

from the Service Users, irrespective of whether they are actually recovered.

The Partners shall contribute all grants or other allocations that are intended to support

the provision of the Services to the relevant Pooled Fund.
9.7

13

Page 111



9.8 The Partners agree to adopt "Partnership Structure (a)" as described in the VAT
Guidance through which the Partners agree that goods and services will be purchased
in accordance with the Authority's VAT regime and reimbursed from the Partners'
Financial Contributions.

10. OVERSPENDSANDUNDERSPENDS

10,7 The Authority shall use all reasonable endeavours to arrange for the discharge of the
Authority Health-Related Functions and the NHS Functions within the Financial
Contributions available in each Financial Year.

10.2 The Authority shall endeavour to manage any in-year overspends within its
commissioning arrangements for the Services

L0.3 The Authority shall make the CCG aware of any potential overspend as soon as it
becomes aware of this possibility through the arrangements in Schedule 9. The
Authoríty will highlight reasons for the overspend, both current and projected, and
make recommendatiôns for action to bring the relevant Financial Contributions back to

- balance.

10.4 lf, at the end of the Financíal Year or on termination or expiry of thís Agreement, it
becomes apparent that there has been an overspend of either Partner's Financial
Contribution for Pooled Funds, the Partners shall meet the overspend as detailed in
Schedule 8

10.5 The Authority shall as far as possible make the CCG aware of any potential underspend
in relation to Financial Contributions, prior to the end of the Financial Year and shall
update any reports as soon as practicable following the end of the Finaniial Year. The
Authority shatl highlight reasons for the underspend and identify any part of that
underspend which is already contractually committed.

10.6 The benefit of any underspend at the end of the Financial Year or on termination or
expiry of this Agreement (whichever is appropriate)shall:

(a) in the Pooled Funds:

(i) if the Partners agree, be applíed to the Services, as the lntegrated
Comrnissioning Board shall determine, in accordance wíth the Annual
Work Programme;

(iÐ if the Partners agree, utilise the underspend to support the development
of schemes to create future efficiencies or improved services for patients;
or

14

Page 112



(iiD if the Partrrers cannot agree, be returned to the Partners in proportíon to

their Financial Contribution for the Financial Year;

11. CAPITALEXPENDITURE

Subject to the provisions in Schedule 8 (Financial Contributions) the Financial

Contributions shall be directed exclusively to revenue expenditure. Any

arrangements for the sharing of capital expenditure shall be made separately and in

accordance with section 256 {or section 76) of the NHS Act 2006.

12. SET UP COSTS

Each partner shall bear its own costs of the establishment of the Partnership

Arrangements under this Agreement'

I3. PREMISES

13.1 The Authority shall make available the Authority's Premises to the Partnership

Arrangements for the Term as specified in Schedule 8 on such terms as may be agreed

in writing between the Partners.

I3,2 The CCG shall make the payments referred to in sChedule 8 for the purposes of

securing the Authority Premises for the purposes of the services.

14. STAFFING (TUPE, SECONDMENTAND PENSIONS)

l4.t The Partners have agreed that under arrangements under s.113 Local Government Act

1972 the Post Holders will be made available by the CCG to the Authority in accordance

with the terms of the s.113 Agreement ánd the lndividual Agreements and the Partners

agree that TUPE will not apply on the commencement of this Agreement, during the

Agreement Term or on the expiry of this Agreement (in whole or in part), However, if

during the Term, TUPE operates so as to transfer the employment of a Post Holder

from one Partner ("the Transferor") to the other Partner ("the Transferee") the

Partners shall comPlY with:

(a) their legal obligations under TUPE

(b) if applicable, the Statement of Practice.

L4.2 The Partners agree that the provisions of Schedule 7 shall apply to any secondments of

CCG staff to the Authority under arrangements pursuant to Section 1-13 of the Local

Government Act 1972.

15

Page 113



I5. CONTRACTS

15.1 The Authority shall enter into such contracts with third parties as it sees fit for the
purpose of facilitating the discharge of the Functions. The Authority shall ensure that all
contracts entered into concerning the NHS Functions are capable of assignment or
novation to the CCG and any successor body.

1.5.2 The Partners agree that the arrangements specified in Schedule 6 shall have effect

16. GOVERNANCE

76.7 The Partners agree that the arrangements specified in Schedule 9 shall have effect.

16.2 The CCG shall nominate the CCG's Authorised Officer, who shall be the main point of
contact for the Authority and shall be responsible for representing the CCG and liaising
with the Authority's Authorised Officer in connection with the Partnership
Arrangements.

16,3 The Authority shall nominate the Authority's Authorised Officer, who shalf be the main
point of contact for the CCG and shall be responsible for representing the Authority and
liaising with the CCG's Authorised Officer in connection with the Partnership
Arrangements.

17, QUARTERTYREVIEWANDREPORTING

t7.t The Partners shall carry out a quarterly review of the Partnership Arrangements within
30 days ofthe end of each Quarter.

t7,2 The Pooled Fund manager shall submit a quarterly report to the lntegrated
Commissioning Board setting out:

(a) the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the performance
management framework in the preceding Quarter; and

(b) any forecast overspend or underspend of the Financial Contributions.

18. ANNUAL REVIEW

18.L The Partners agree to carry out a review of the Partnership Arrangements and progress

against the Annual Work Programme (lnnual Review), including:

(a) the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the Aims and
Outcomes;

16

Page 114



(b) the performance of the individual Services against the service levels and other

targets contained in the relevant contracts;

plans to address any underperformance in the Services;

actual expenditure compared with agreed budgets, and reasons for and plans to

address any actual or potential underspends or overspends;

review of plans and performance levels for the following year; and

plans to respond to any changes in policy or legislation applicable to the Services

or the Partnership Arrangements.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

LB.Z The Authority shall prepare an annual report following the Annual Review for

submission to the Partners' respective boards.

,l9. VARIATIONS

1g,1 This Agreement may be varied by the Partners at any time by agreement in writing in

accordance with the Partners' internal decision-making processes,

20, STANDARDS

zo.L The Partners shall collaborate to ensure that the Partnership Arrangements are

discharged in accordance with:

(a) the service standards set out in Schedule 5;

(b) the prevailing standards of clinical governance i

(c) the Authority's standing orders; and

(d) the requirements specified by the Care Quality Comrnission and any other

relevant external regulator.

ZO.2 The Partners shall develop operational guidance and procedures to reflect compliance

with clause 20.

20.3 The Partners shall ensure that each employee is appropriatelv managed and supervised

in accordance with all relevant prevailing standards of professional accountability.

i;, ;Ï"-:Ïian, shall use reasonabte endeavours ro ensure its Represenratives)

comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and any

other acts, orders, regulations and codes of practice relating to health and safety,

which may apply to the services and persons working on the services.

t7

Page 115



27.2 The Authority shall ensure that its health and safety policy statement (as required by
the Heafth and Safety at Work etc Act 79741, together with related policies and
procedures, are made available to the CCG on request.

21'.3 The Authority shall notify the CCG if any incident occurs in the performance of the
Services, where that incident causes any personal injury or damage to property that
could give rise to personal injury.

22. EQUAUTY DUT|ËS

22.1 The Partners acknowledge their respective duties under equality legislation to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisatíon, and to advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different groups.

22.2 The Authority agrees to adopt and apply policies in its carrying out of the Authority
Health-Related Functions and NHS Functions, to ensure compliance with theír equality
duties.

22.3 The Authority shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of clause 22 by
. all servants, employees or agents of the Authority and all Service Providers employed in

delivering the Services described in this Agreement,

23. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Partners acknowledge that each is subject to the requirements of FOIA and the
ElR, and shall assist and co-operate with one another to enable each Partner to
comply with these information disclosure requirements, where necessary.

24. DATA PROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHARING

24.1 Each Partner shall (and shall procure that any of its Representatives involved in the
provision of the Services shall) comply with any notification requirements under Data
Protection Legislation. Both Partners shall duly observe all their obfigations under Data
Protection Legislation, whích arise in connection with this Agreement.

24.2 The Partners shall share ínforrnation abóut ServÍce Users to improve the quality of care
and enable integrated working, in accordance with Schedule 12 (lnformation Sharing).
The Partners shall adhere to the lnformation Sharing Protocol when sharing
information under this Agreement.

18

Page 116



25, CONFIDENTIALITY

25.1 The partners agree to keep confidential all documents relating to or received from the

other Partner under this Agreement that are labelled as confidential'

2s.2 Where a partner receives a request to disclose lnformation that the other Partner has

designated as confídential, the receiving Partner shall consult with the other Partner

before deciding whether the lnformation is subject to disclosure.

26. AUDIT

The Authority shall arrange for the audit of the accounts of the Pooled Fund in26.t
accordance with its statutory audit requirements'

26.2 The Authority shall provide to the CCG any reports rdquired concerning the NHS

Functions on reasonable notice.

26.3 The Partners shall co-operate in the provision of lnformation, and access to premises

and staff, to ensure compliance with any statutory inspection requirements, or other

monitoring or scrutiny functions. The Partners shall implement recommendations

arising from these inspections, where appropriate

27. ¡NSURANCE

27.L The partners shall effect and maintain a policy or policies of insurance, providing an

adequate level of cover for liabilities arising under any indemnity in this Agreement'

27.Z Each partner shalt be responsible for insuring the premises and assets it contributes to

the Partnersh iP Arrangements'

28, INDEMNITIES

Each Partner (lndemnifying Partner) shall indemnify and keep indemnified the other

partner (lndemnified Partner) against all actions, proceedings, costs, claims,

demands, liabilitles, losses and expenses Whatsoever, whether arising in tort

{including negligence), default or breach of this Agreement, to the extent that any

loss or claim is due to the breach of contract, negligence, wilful default or fraud of

itself, the lndemnifying iartner's employees, or any of its Representatives or sub-

contractors, except to the extent that the loss or claim is directly caused by or

directly aríses from the negligence, breach of this Agreement, or applicable Law by

the lndemnified Partner or its Representatives'

19

Page 117



29, LIABILITIES

29.1 Neither Partner shall be liable to the other Partner for claims by third parties arising
from any acts or omissions of the other Partner in connection with the Services before
the Commencement Date,

29.2 Each Partner shall, at all times, take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any
loss or damage for which the relevant Partner ís entitled to bring a claim against the
other Partner under this Agreement.

30. COMPLAINTSANÐINVESTIGATIONS

30,1 The Partners shall deal with all complaints received concerníng the Services in the first
instance through the Authority's complaints procedures.

30.2 The Partners shall endeavour to agree a joint complaints procedure wíthin the first year
of the Term.

30,3 The Partners shall each fully comply with any investigation by the Ombudsman,
including providing access to lnformation and making staff available for interview.

31. HEATTHWATCH

3L.1 The Partners shall promote and facilitate the involvement of Service Users, carers and
members of the public in decision-making concerning the Partnership Arrangements.

3'J".2 The Authority shall ensure the effective discharge of its obligations in the establishment
of Local HealthWatch and, in the interim, with the Local lnvolvement Network.

31.3 The Authority shall ensure its contracts with Service Providers require co-operation
with Local HealthWatch and the Local lnvolvement Network.

32. DISPUTE RESOIUTION

32.1 The members of the lntegrated Commissioning Board shall use theír best endeavours
to resolve dlsputes arising out of this Agreemeirt.

32.2 lf any dispute referred to the lntegrated Commissioning Board is not resolved within 15
Working Days, either Partner, by notice in writing to the other, may refer the dispute to
the chief executives of the Partners, who shall co-operate in good faith to resolve the
dispute as amicably as possible wíthin 20 Working Days of service of the notice.

20

Page 118



32.3 lf within the allotted time the processes set out in clauses 32.1 and 32.2do not resolve

such dispute to the satisfaction of both Partners either Partner may refer any dispute to
an adjudicator.

32.4 lf the Partners are unable to agree the appointment of such adjudicator within seven

(7) Working Days of the request by either Partner for such an appointment then an

appropriate expert (willing to act in that capacity hereunder) shall be appointed by the
Presídent of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution and the Partners agree to
accept such appointment.

32.5 Dísputes shall be decided by such adjudicator in accordance with the latest Rules of
Adjudication of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution as in place atthe time of the
dispute being referred to such adjudicator, and costs shall be borne in such proportíons

as the adjudicator may determine to be fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or,
if the adjudicator makes no such determination, by the Partners in equal proportions

PROVIDED ALWAYS that the Partners agreq that no decision or determination of an

adjudicator under this clause 32.5 shall be final and binding upon them

32.6 This clause 32 shall not prevent either Partner from seeking injunctive relief at any time
during the Term (regardless of whether the Dispute Resolution Procedure set out in this

clause 32 has been exhausted or not) in the case of any breach or threatened breach by

the other Partner of any obligation under this Agreement.

33. TERMINATION

33.1 Without prejudice to other rights and remedies at law, arid unless terminated under
clause 33.2 or 33.3, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving

12 months' written notice to the other Partner.

33.2 Subject to clause 33.3, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time by

giving 6 months'written notice to the other Partner, if for budgetary reasons it is of the
reasonable opinion that in tight of the other's proposed Financial Contribution the
Partnership Arrangements (or any part of them) are no longer viable.

33.3 Either Partner {for the purposes of this clause 33.3, the F¡rst Partner) may terminate
this Agreement on one calendar month's notice by the service of written noticè on the
other Partner (for the purposes of this clause 33.3, the Second Partner) in the following
circumstances:

(a) if the Second Partner is in breach of any material obligation under this
Agreement, provided that, if the breach is capable of remedy, the First Partner

may only terminate this Agreement under clause 33.3, if the Second Partner has

27

Page 119



failed to remedy the breach within 28 days of receipt of notice from the First

Partner (Remediation Notice)to do so;

(b) there is a Change in Law that prevents either Partner from complying with its
obligations under this Agreement; or

(c) following a failure to resolve a dispute under clauses g2.1,-32.5.

33.4 The provisions of clause 34 shall apply on termination of this Agreement.

34. CONSEqUENCESOFTERMINATION

34.1 On the expiry of the Term, or if this Agreement is terminated in whole or in part for any
reason:

(a) the Partners will comply with the exit strategy prepared by the lntegrated
Commissioning Board;

(b) premises and assets shall be returned to the contributíng Partner in accordance
with the terms of their leases, licences or agreed schedule of condition;

(c) assets purchased from the Pooled Fund shall be disposed of by the Authority and

the proceeds of sale allocated according to the Partners' Financial Contributions
or, Íf otherwise agreed and subject to the conditions of such agreement, shall be

retained by the Authority;

(d) assets purchased from the Pooled Fund may alternatively be disposed of by the
Authority for a reasonable market value and the proceeds of sale allocated
according to the Partners' Financial Contributions or, if otherwise agreed and

subject to the conditions of such agreement, shall be retained by the Authority.

(e) assets purchased outside of the Pooled Funds shall be returned to the Partner
from whose Fínancial Contribution the purchase was made;

(f) contracts entered into by the Authority concerning the NHS Functions shall be

novated to the CCG and the CCG shall accept the novation; and

(g) the Authority shall transfer to the CCG all records in its possession relating to the
NHS Functions.

34.2 Termination of this Agreement shall be without prejudice to any of the rights or
remedies that have accrued to whichever Partner under this Agreement.

34.3 Upon termination, the Partners shall work together to wind down and disaggregate all

arrangements made pursuant to this Agreement, and shall in so doing ensure a minimal
service user impact

34.4 Overspends on termination of the Agreement shall be dealt with in accordance with
clause 10,4.

22

Page 120



34.5 Subject to clause 34.6, underspends on termination of the Agreement shall be dealt

with in accordance with clause 10,6.

34.6 Subject to clause 29, the Authority shall be entitled to direct any underspends to the
following purposes:

(a) to meet obligations under existing contracts;

(b) to defray the costs of making any alternative arrangements for Service Users; and

(c) to meet the costs of any redundancies arising from the termination of the
Partnership Arrangements,

34.7 The provisions of the following clauses shall survive termination or expiry of this

Agreement:

(a) Clause 23 "Freedom of lnformation";

(þ) Clause 24 "Data Protection and lnformation Sharing";

(c) Clause 26"Audil";

(d) Clause 28 "lndemnities";

(e) Clause 29 "Liabilities"; and

(0 Clause 34 "Consequences of Terminatíon".

35. PUBLICITY

The Partners shall use reasonable endeavours to consult one another before making

any press announcements concerning the Services or the discharge of either
Partner's Funct¡ons under this Agreement.

36. NO PARTNERSHIP

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as constituting a legal partnership

between the Partners or as constituting either Partner as the agent of the other for
any purpose whatsoever, except as specified by the terms of this Agreement.

37. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

37.7 lt is agreed for the purposes of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 that this

Agreement is not intended to, and does not, give to any person who is not a Party to
this Agreement any rights to enforce any provisions contained ln this Agreement.

23

Page 121



38. NOTTCES

38,1 Notices shalf be in writing and shall be sent to the other Partner marked for the
attention of the chief executive or another person duly notified by the Partner for the
purposes of serving notices on that Partner, at the address set out for the Partner in
this Agreement.

38.2 Notices may be sent by first class mail or facsimile transmission, provided that facsimile
transmissions are confirmed within 24 hours by first class mailed confirmation of a

copy. Correctly addressed notices sent by first class mail shall be deemed to have been

delivered 72 hours after posting and correctly directed facsimile transmissions shall be
deemed to have been received instantaneously on transmission, provided that they are

confirmed as set out above.

39. ASSIGNIVIENTANDSUBCONTRACTING

This Agreement and any right and conditions contained in it may not be assigned or
transferred by either Partner without the prior written consent of the other Partner,
except to any statutory successor to the relevant function.

40, SEVERABILITY

lf any term, conditíon or provision contained in this Agreement shall be held to be

invalid, unlawful or unenforceable to any extent, such term, condition or provision

shall not affect the validity, legalÍty or enforceability of the remaining parts of this
Agreement.

41. WAIVER

The failure of either Partner to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement at any

time or for any period of time shall not be construed to be a waiver of any such
provision and shall in no matter affect the right of that Partner thereafter to enforce
such provision.

41,.1,

4L.2 No waiver in any one or more instances of a breach of any provision of this Agreement

shall be deemed to be a further or continuing waiver of such provision in other
instances.

42. ENTIREAGRËEMENT

This Agreement, the Schedules and the documents annexed to it or otherwise
referred to in it contain the whole agreement between the Partners relating to the

24

Page 122



subject matter of it and supersede all prior agreements, arrangements and

understandings between the Partners relating to that subject matter.

43. GOVERNINGLAWANDIURISDICTION

Subject to clause 32, this Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in

connection with it or its subject matter shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the law of England and Wales, and the Partners irrevocably agree

that the courts of England shall have exclusìve jurisdiction to settle any dispute or

claim that arises out of or in connection with this Agreement.

44. FAIR DEALINGS

The Partners recognise that it is impracticable to make provision for every

contingency which may arise during the life of this Agreement and they declare it to

be their intention that this Agreement shall operate between them with fairness and

without detriment to the interests of either of them and that if in the course of the

performance of this Agreement, unfairness to either of them does or may result then

the other shall use its reasonable endeavours to agree upon such act¡on as may be

necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness,

45. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

4S.t Each Partner shall perform their obligations under this Agreement in the best interests

of the other Partner, and shall notify the other Partner of any conflicts of interests as

they arise during the Term.

This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on the date

stated at the beginning of it.

1:111 !.i:iilr:: ii:,
7e taa

I
EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the Authority

THE COMMON SEAL of PORTSMOUTH

CIW COUNCIL was hereunto affixed in

pursuance of a resolution of the Council

passed at a meeting duly convened and held:-

Authorised Signatory

25

Page 123



EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the CCG

THE COMMON SEAL of P0RTSMOUTH CLINICAL )

COMMISSIONING GROUP was affixed to thís

Deed Ín the presglggf;

26

Page 124



SCHEDUTE 1

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

The partners agree that these Arrangements are the most efficient and effective way

to deliver the Partners strategic commissioning intentions and enable them to:
L.1,

7.2

1.1.1

t.L.2
1.1.3

L.L,4

1.1.5

1.1.6

Jointly commission integrated services

lmprove the quality of services

lmprove outcomes for the people of Portsmouth

Consolidate and strengthen collaborative and lead commissioníng

arrangements to more effectively manage the local market

Make the best use of resources against local and national priorities to provide

value for money
Meet the requirements of the NHS, Public Health and Social Care Outcomes

Frameworks

The partners will work to the following ten principles that express commitments and

behaviours which describe their approach to commissioning

OUTCOMES - tmproving outcomes for Portsmouth residents will be at the heart of

the commissioning Process

¡ We will use public money effectively to improve outcomes for people in the

city

o Commissioning staff will work together and share responsibility for outcomes

across the citY.

EQUALITY - Commissioning will seek to shape service delivery to reduce

inequalities in the citY

¡ We will target resources to reduce inequalities in the city

o We will monitor the impact of all commissioning decisions on all parts of the

communitY

EVIDENCE - Commissioning decisions will be informed by evidence of what works

o We will use our resources effectively based on the identified need of our

residents

¡ Where possible and appropriate, we will commission evidenced-based

services and practice, We will balance this with risk-managed innovation

27

Page 125



I We will evaluate impact rigorously to further enhance our undeistanding of
what works

INTEGRATION - Commissioning will seek to integrate service delivery around the
needs of individuals and families

r We will commission services which are joined up and easy to access

o We will commission personalised services which offer choice so that people
are empowered to take personal

o We will work with service providers and support them to develop services
which meet the needs of our diverse population

PREVENTION - Commissioning prevent¡on and early intervention services will
reduce dependency on public service delivery

r We will design services and support that tackle the causes of poor outcomes

o We will seek to build resilience in people and communities

PARTICIPATION - Residents will be active participants in the commissioning (and

decornmissioning) process

r We will involve residents in the planning, desígn, monitoring and evaluation

r We will increase our use of co-production, developing and managing services
with residents

ACCOUNTABILITY - Resource allocation and commissioning decisions will be
trânsparent, contestable and locally accountable

o We will publish our priorities and commissioning intentions in good time

o We will ensure clear accountability for our commissioning decisions

o We will ensure there is clear accountability for service performance

FAIRNESS - The commissioning process will ensure that no provider is given or gains

an unfaír advantage

r We will adopt the same approach (e.9. to service specification and
performance monitoring) to any provider - local authority, NHS, voluntary,
community or private

r We will ensure there is a clear distinction between commissioner and
provider functions regardless of whether they co-exist within an single

organisation

28

Page 126



VALUE FOR MONEY - Commissioning decisions will be driven by the goal to achieve

optimum quality, value for money and outcomes.

¡ We will monitor value for money and use it to inform commissioning

decisions

o We will decommission ineffective services

PARTNERSHIPS - Strong and effective partnerships are key to good commissloning

o We will contínue to build on the effective pârtnershíp work in Portsmouth

including strategic partnerships, partnerships with service users and

com mlssioner-provider partnershi ps

29

Page 127



1.1

SCHEDULE 2

CC6 FUNCTIONS

The provisions of this Schedule 2 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 6

(Contracting Process).

The CCG Functíons comprise the making of arrangements for the provlsion of the
Services, but only to the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the
welfare of the Client Group, and excepting the Excluded Functions listed in Schedule

4, specifically: -

t.2.1 functions under sections 3, 3A and 38 ol and paragraphs 9 to 11 of Schedule

1, to the Nl-lS Act 2006, including rehabilitation services and services intended

to avoid admission to hospital;

I.2.2 functions under sections 117 and 1304 of the Mental Health Act L9B3;

t.2.3 functions under Schedule A1 of the Mental Capacity Act 2005; and

],2.4 functions under section 124(1) of the NHS Act 2006 (direct payments for
health care) and;

1.2,5 functions under regulation 2(7) of the National Health Service (direct

Payments) Regu lations 2010

L.3 any such additionalfunctions as'may be

L,3.1 specified in the Directions from the Secretary of State for Health and subject

to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions descríbed ín

this Schedule 2 to the Authority; or

1.3.2 agreed by the Partners from time to time to be CCG Functions for the
purposes of thís Agreernent,

7.2

30

Page 128



1_.1

t.2

SCHEDULE 3

AUTHORITY FUNCTIONS

The provisions of this Schedule 3 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 6

(Contracting Process).

ïhe Authority Functions comprise the making arrangements for the provision of the

Servíces, to the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the welfare of

the Client Group, and excepting the Excluded Functions listed in Schedule 4,

specifically:

L.2;7 the functions specífied in schedule L to the Local Authority social services Act

r970;

L.2.2 the functions under sections 7 or I of the Disabled Persons (services,

Consultation and Rep.resentation) Act 1986 except in so far as they assign

functions to a local authority in their capacity of a local education authority;

t,2.3 the functions of providing, or securing the provision of recreational facilities

under section 19 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act

7976:

1.3 The functions of local education authorities under the Education Acts as defined in

section 578 of the Education Act 1996;

1,4 the functions of local housing authorities under Part I of the Housing Grants,

Construction and Regeneration Act L996 and under Parts Vl and Vll of the Housing

Act 1996;

1.S the functions of local authorities under section 126 of the Housing Grants,

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996;

1.6 the functions of waste collection or waste disposal under the Environmental

Protection Act 1990;

1.7 the functions of providing environmental health services under sections 180 and 181

ofthe Local Government Act7972;

1.8 the functiirns of local highway authorities under the Highways Act 1980 and section

39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988;

1.g the functions under section 63 (passenger transport) and section 93 (travel

concession schemes) of the Transport Act L985;

3L

Page 129



1.10 where partners enter into arrangements under regulatíon 7(1) or S(1) in respect of
the provision of accommodation under sections 2L or 26 of the 1948 Act, the
function of charging for that accommodation under section 22, 23(21or 26 of that
AcU

L.11where partners enter into arrãngements under regulation 7(1) or 8{1) in'respect of
thg provision of a service under any enactment mentioned in section L7(2)(a) to (c)

of the 1983 Act, the function of charging for that service under that section;

1.12 the functions of local authorities under or by virtue of sections 28 or 6(C){1) of, or
Schedule 1 to, the NHS Act 2006, and;

1.13 any such additional functions as may bet

1.13.1- specified in the Directions from the Secretary of State for Health and subject
to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions described in
this Schedule 3 to the Authority; or

L.L3.2 agreed by the Partners from time to time to be Authoríty Functions for the
purposes of this Agreement.

32

Page 130



1

SCHEDULE 4

EXCLUDED FUNCTIONS

Excluded pursuant to the Regulations

1.1 the CCG Functions shall not include the following:

1.1.1 surgery;

7.t.2 radiotherapy;

1,1.3 terminatíon of pregnancies;

L.L.4 endoscopy;

l-.1.5 the use of Class 4 laser treatments and other invasive treatments; and

1.1.6 emergency ambulance services, and

t.2 the Authority Functions shall not include any functions pursuant to the
following:

L.z.t subject to Regulation 6(k) of the Regulations, sectio ns 22,2g(31,26(21

to (4), 43,45 and 49 of the National Assistance Act 1948;

1.2.2 section 6 of the Local Authority Socíal Services Act 1970;

L.2.3 section 3 of the Adoption and Children Act 2002;

L.2.4 sections 114 and L15 of the Mental Health Act L983;

1.2.5 section 17 of the 1983 AcU

1.2.6 Parts Vll to lX and section 86 of the Children Act 1989,

or any other functions that are specified in the Regulations as amended from
time to time as being excluded from section 75 arrangements.

To avoid doubt, all functions that are not specified as eÍther CCG Functions in

Schedule 2 or as Authority Functions in Schedule 3 of this Agreement shall be

Excluded Functions.

2

33

Page 131



1,.1,

SCHEDULE 5

THE SERVICES

The Services to be commissioned by the Authority on behalf of itself and the CCG shall

be those relating to health and social care services including, but not limited to:

1.1.1
L.1.2

1.1.3

t.7.4
1.L.5

7.7.6

1.r,7
1.1.8
1.1.9

1.1.r.0

1.1,11
L.t.t2
1.1.13
L.L.L4
1.1,15

Services for people with dementia
Services for older people

Learning disability services

Mentalhealth services

Equipment services

Services for veterans
Nuero rehabilitation services

lntermediate care services

Health services for children
Psychological therapy and counselling services

Services for people with physical disabilities and long term conditions

Services for carers

Services for people with autism and ADHD conditions

Extra contractual referrals
I ndividual funding requests

L,2 The Services listed at paragraph 1 above shall be commissioned in accordance with the

commissioning principles in Schedule I and the contracting processes in Schedule 6, and

shall be subject to the Functions detailed at Schedules 2 (CCG Functions) and 3 (Authority

Functions).

1.3 The Partners may agree to include other services in these arrângements

34

Page 132



SCHEDULE 6

CONTRACTING PROCESS

t.7 It is intended that the Authority shall contract for the Services in accordance with all
applicable law, including but not limited to the EU procurement rules, the Public
Contracts Regulations 2006 and the EU Commission interpretive communicatlon on the
Community Law applicable to contract awards not fully subject to the provisions of the
Public Procurement Directives (2006/C179/O2l or any subsequent regulations,
communications or gu idance.

7,4 Where appropriate and in order to commission the Services, the Authority shall utilise
other NHS procurement services commissioned by the CCG, such as Commissioning
Support Unit to contract on their behalf. ln these cases the Authority shall ensure that
the procurement service províded by the third Partner complies with this Agreement and
all applicable law more fully described in paragraph l above.

1-.5 Subject to the EU procurement rules, the Authority shall procure the Services in
accordance with its own standing orders (as may be revised from time to time) ensuring
through competitive tendering, wherever possible, that best value for money is obtained,

1.6 lt is accepted that, in appropriate circumstances (such as where there is only one
specialist provider and no alternative or a short term pilot project, or any other grounds
that fit wíthin the EU procurement rules or the Public Contracts Regulations 2006), it may
be appropriate to negotiate contracts with the providers on a single tender basis,
provided any decision to negotiate contracts is made in accordance with the current
public procurement rules and the Authority's current standing orders.

L.7 The Authority's staff and the staff seconded by the CCG to the Authority in accordance
with the terms of this Agreernent shall be, in the case of each of them, entitled to
commission Services on behalf of both the CCG and the Authority, and for the avoidance
of doubt, subject to paragraphs 6 and 7 below:

1.5.1 the CCG's staff seconded to the Authority shalt not be required to request
authorisation from the Authority to enter into a commissioning arrangement for
Services pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the CCG or on behalf of the
Authority; and

L.5.2 the Authority's staff shall not be required to request authorisation from the CCG

(or any member of CCG staff seconded to the Authority) to enter into a

commissioning arrangement for Services pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of
the Authority or on behalf of the CCG.

35

Page 133



1.6 ln the event that the Authority has any doubt as to whether it is commissioning a Service

on behalf of the CCG in accordance with the CCG Functions, the Authority shall first contact

the CCG for clarification and approval of the same.

L.7 The CCG reserves the right to notify the Authoríty, in writing, of any particular circumstance

which it considers ought not to be exercised by the Authority, whereupon with effect from
receipt of such noticê, such matter shall be deemed removed from Schedule 2 (CCG

Functions).

36

Page 134



SCHEDULE 7

INTEGRATED COMMISSION ING UNIT

1. STAFF DETAITS

A database exists which lists all of the seconded staff from the ccG to the
Authority for it to manage and direct as a part the Arrangements. This database
shall be held and updated by the HR Department of the CCG.

1.2 A database exists which lists all of the staff of the Authority for it to manage and
direct as a part of the Arrangements. This database shall be held and updated by
the HR Department of the Authority.

2, SECONDMENT ARRANGEMENTS

The Seconded Staff will have all seen and signed acceptance of the Secondment
Agreement (Appendix 1). The Authority and the ccG will have signed the
Secondment Agreement (Appendix 2).

The Authority will use its best endeavours to follow ccG HR Managers' policies
and procedures for all Seconded Staff where those policies and procedures and
any updates thereto have been notified to the Authority. ccc HR staff will
provide support as necessary to execute these policies and the process of HR

management.

The Authority will use its best endeavours to ensure that all managers of
seconded Staff attend management training and updates provided by the ccG
especially in relation to the CCG's policies & procedures.

2.4 The ccG will ensure all seconded staff are kept informed and up-to-date wíth
CCG policies and procedures applicable to them.

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

37

Page 135



3. MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

l(ey:

lo¡nt lunded PCC & Poísnc{,,th CCG

P¿rtlqr'-irh tCC fueded

38

Page 136



Schedule 7 Appendix 1

SECONDMÉNT AGREEMENTTO BE SIGNED BY STAFF MEMBER

Dear

CONFIRMATION OF SECONDMENT

I am pleased to confirm the details of your secondment to the post of (job title) based in the

(team)at (base),

This Secondment is entered as a consequence of an Agreement between the Portsmouth City

Council (,,the Council") and Portsmouth Clinical Commissionlng Group ("the CCG") dated (insert

date) under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for the

integration of the commlssioning health and social care services. Portsmouth Clinical

Commissioning Group has agreed to second their Employees to the Council on the terms of t-his-

Agreement

1. DETAI[S OF SECONDMENT

1.1 W¡th effect from (insert date) the CCG shall second you to the Council on the terms of

this Agreement. Subject to earlier termination as provided for in this Agreement, the

secondment witl continue for the period of 3 years and is reviewable annually during the

period of the s75 Agreement provided that you remain employed by the CCG'

L.Z During the Secondment, you shall be located at (insert base) where you shall act and

perform the duties as set out in your contract of employment with the CCG. However it

is recognised that in order to meet changes in service provision this location and role

may change over time. You will be consulted in relation to any proposed changes to

either location or role.

2. CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT

z.t

2.2

2,3

2.4

your Terms and Conditions of Employment wíth Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning

Group shall remain in force during the Secondrnent period'

Your existing Job Description, t .ãpy of which is attached, applies at present' Any

changes will be subject to consultation with you and the Trade Unions.

portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council agree that you shall remain

an employee of the CCG at alltimes and shall not be deèmed to be an employee of the

Council by virtue of the Secondment and shall not be entitled to any salary, pension,

bonus or other fringe benefits of the Council.

your continuity of service with Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group will be

preserved for both statutory and contractual purposes duríng the period of secondment

LEAVE3

39

Page 137



3.1 The Council wilf inform Portsmouth Clinical Commissíoning Group of any absence,
including but not limited to sickness absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon
as is reasonably practicable. lt is your responsibility to follow Portsmouth Clinical
Commissioning Group sickness absence reporting procedures at all times.

You shall be entitled to holiday during the period of secondment in accordance with
your terms and conditions of employment with Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning
Group.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

3,2

4

4.7 The Council shall ensure that you observe its health and safety policies and procedures
and maintain a safe method of working.

As an employee, you are required under Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work Act
1974,to take reasonable care for your own Health and Safety and that of others who
may be affected by your acts or omissions at work.

4.2

5. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

5.1 You must declare and seek agreement from Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group
and your line manager regarding any interests, financial or otherwise, which may give' 
rise to a conflict of interest during the course of the secondment. Such interests include
other employment, business interests and positions of authority in a charity or voluntary
body in the field of health and social care and in connection wíth a voluntary or other
body contracting for NHS or Council services.

6. RESPONSIBITIW FOR RESOURCES

6.1 Where applicable: Where you are responsible for the management of Council's budgets
and/or the procurement of equipment and servÍces you should follow the Council's
Standing Financíal lnstructions and associated procedures.

6.2 ln undertaking such duties you should be mindful to ensure efficient and transparent
financial management. This willinclude financial probity, the management of financial
risk and achievement of value for money

7 PAYMENT OF SATARIES AND EXPENSES

7.7 You will continue to be paid by Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group in accordance
with your terms and conditions of employment for the duration of the secondment.

7.2 lt is agreed that Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group shall be solely responsible for
all income tax liability and National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in
respect of any payrnent to you for the provision of servíces to the CCG under this
Agreement

7.3 Any salary increments applicable to your substantive post with Portsmouth Clinical
Commissioning Group will continue to apply.

8 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

8.1 After (insert date) Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group wiil continue to provide
advice to you on Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group policies including but not

4A

Page 138



8.2

limited to disciplinary, grievance, ill health, maternity leave and generalterms and

conditions of service.

Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group will be responsible for ensuring you are kept
updated with allchanges to Portsmouth ClÍnical Commissioning Group policies and
procedures, although this may be communicated to you through Council staff.

During the Secondment Period, the Council, in consultation with Portsmouth Clinical

Commissioning Group Human Resources Department shall implement Portsmouth
Clinical Commissioning Group policies and procedures in respect of you as an employee,

so far as they comply with current employment legislation,

Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group authorises the Council to take action in
respect of you as an employee pursuant to the Portsmouth ClinicalCommissioning

Group's Disciplinary Policy save for any action, which could result in your dismissal, ln
such circumstances Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group shall take appropriate
steps in accordance wíth its Disciplinary Policy and Procedure.

The Council rnay, should it consider necessary to do so, place you on special
precautionary leave in accordance with Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group's
Disciplinary Policy and in consultation with Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group's

Human Resources Department provÍded that such action shall be notified to the CCG no

later than the following working day.

Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group authorise the Councilto dealw¡th any
grievances raised by you against the Councit in accordance with Portsmouth Clinical

Commissioning Group's grievance policy. The Council will notify Portsmouth Clinical

Commissioning Group of any grievances received by the Council including those against

Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group within 3 working days or as soon as

reasonably possible

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in clause 8 shall be construed or have effect as

construing any relationship of employer and employee between the Council and you.

MANAGEMENT DURING THE SECONDMENT

You shallbe supervised by and directly accountable to [insert job title]during the
secondment.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group will work with the Councilto ensure your
professional and developmentaf needs are identified and met. Performance
Development Reviews, Performance Management and training will be undertaken by

the Council.

MANAGEMENT OF CHANGE

It is recognised that Portsmouth Clínical Commissioning Group and the Council in

delivering and developing integrated commissioning willface organisat¡onal
restructuring and changes in employment levels, ln the event that you are affected by

organisational change, Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council will
ensure that changes happen following full consultation with your and your union

8.3

8.4

8,5

8.6

8.7

9

9.1

10.

11.

17.L

47

Page 139



representative and that changes comply with Portsmouth Clinical CommissionÍng

Group's employment policies.

T2. DATA PROTECTION

t2.I You and Portsmouth Clinical CominissÍoning Group consent to the Council holding,
disclosing, using or otherwise processing any information which is provided to the
Council or which the Council may acquire as a result of the Secondment.

12.2 Portsmouth Ctinical Commissioning Group and the Council agree to protect any personäl

data held in relation to you in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998,

13. CONFIDENTIALITY

13,I ln addition to the provisions regarding confidentiality in your Contract of Employment,
you will not disclose during or after the secondment any confidential information to
which you became privy during the course of the secondment, including but not limited
to all trade secrets, lists or details of customers, suppliers or patients, information
relating to the workíng of any process or invention carried on or used by any subsidiary
or associate, research projects, prices, discounts, mark-ups, future business strategy,
marketing, tenders, any price sensitive information, and any proprietary Council

information.

L4, TERMINATION

I4.t ln the event of terminat¡on of the s75 Agreement howsoever arising, this Secondment
Agreement will automatically terminate and your management will be transferred back

to the CCG.

74.2 You may terminate the Secondment by givíng not less than (one) month's notice in

writing (or your contractual notice period if this is greater) to the CCG and Portsmouth
City Council. This will be taken as your intention to tender your resignation of your
substantive post.

ACCEPTANC

Please confirm your acceptance of the terms of the secondment set out above by completing
and returning the acceptance form enclosed with this letter.

The Section 75 agreement and its accompanying schedules can be made available should you

require a copy.

Yours sincerely

42

Page 140



Schedule 7 Appendix 2

SECONDMENT AGREEMENT

THIS SECONDMENT AGRËEMENT is made on IDATE] between: -

(1) Portsmouth City Council of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth POL 2EP ("the

Council")

(2t Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group of Trust Headquarters, St James Hospital,

Locksway Rd, Portsmouth, PO4 8LD ("The CCG")

1. INTRODUCTION

t.t This Secondment Agreement is entered into under section I 13 of the Local

Goverument Ãct l972as a consequence of an Agreement between Portsmouth

City Council ("the Council") and Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group ("the

CCG") dated (insert date) under section 75 of the National Health Service Act

2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for the integration of health and social care

commissioning.

L.2 The CCG has agreed to second their Employees to the Council on the terms of
this Agreement.

2 SECONDMENT

2.I With effect from l April 2013 the CCG shall second the Employee to the Council

on the terms of this Agreement. Subject to earlier termínation as provided for in
this Agreement, the secondment will continue for the period of 3 years and is

reviewable annually during the period of the s75 Agreement provided that the
Employee remains employed by the CCG

2.2 Ðuring the Secondment, the Employee shall be located at the Civic Offices where
he/she shall act and perform the duties as set out in the Employee's contract of
employment with the CCG. However it is recognised that in order to meet

changes in service provision this location and role may change over time. The

Employee will be consulted in relation to âny proposed changes to either
location or role.

3 CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT

The Employee's Terms and Conditions of Employment with the CCG shall remain

in force during the Secondment per¡od.
3.1

43

Page 141



3.2 The Employee's existing Job Description applies at present. Any changes will be
subject to consultation with the Employee and Trade Unions.

3.3 Employee shall remain an employee of the ccG at all times and shall not be
deemed to be an employee of the Council by vÍrtue of the Secondment and shall
not be entitled to any salary, pension, bonus or other frÍnge benefits of the
Council.

3.4 The Employee's continuity of service with the CCG wíll be preserved for both
statutory and contractual purposes during the period of secondment.

4 IIABLITY AND INDËMNITIES

4.L The CCG shall indemnify and keep indemnífied, the Council ín relation to any
claims, charges or liabilíties for (including but not limited to) any income tax,
Employee National lnsurance or similar contributions {íncluding costs interests
and penalties), or other statutory charges or rernuneration or other
compensatíon arÍsing from or in relation to the services by the Employee under
this Agreement or the Employee being found to be an Employee of the council
or otherwise. The Council agrees to notify the CCG of any such claims charges or
liabilities received by the Council.

4.2 The council shall not be liable for any act or omission on the part of the
Employee during the Secondment and shall incur no liability for foss, damage or
injury of whatever nature sustained by the Employee duríng the secondment.

The CCG hereby indemnifies the Council against any and all claims, liabilities,
actions, proceedings, costs (including legal fees), losses, damages and demands
arising out of or resulting from breach of ihis Agreement or any act or omíssion
or default of the Employee including without limitation:

4.3.1 Any loss of or any damage to any property;

4.3.2 All financial loss;

4.3.3 Those resulting from any breach by the Employee of any intellectual
property rights owned by the CCG or a third partner;

4.3.4 lnjury to or death of any person caused by any negligent act or omission
or wilful misconduct of the Employee, whether resulting in material or
financial loss or damages or death or injury to persons or any other loss
or damage whatsoever;

4.3.5 Any and all liability arising from any breach of the provisions of the Data
Protection Act 1998 by the Employee.

4.3

44

Page 142



The CCG hereby indemnifíes the Council against any and all claims, liabilities,
actions, proceedings, costs (including legal fees), losses, damages, demands,
penalties, fines or expenses suffered or incurred by the CCG which are

attributable to any act or omission by the CCG any other person for whom the
CCG are liable arising out of:-

4.4.1 The employment or termination of employment of the Employee during
the Secondment; or

4.4.2 The engagement or termination of engagement of the Employee under
the terms of this Agreement during the Secondment; or

4.4.3 Any breach by the CCG of any collective agreement with a trade union,

staff association or employee representatives in respect of the Erhployee

including for the avoidance of doubt without limitation liability for
personal injury, accident or illness suffered or incurred in whole or in part

during the Secondment, breach of contract or in tort, unfair dismissal,

redundancy, statutory redundancy, equal pay, discrimination of any kind

or under any legislation applícable in the Uníted Kingdom.

The Council shall indemnify the CCG against any and all claims, liabilities, actions,
proceedings, costs (including legal fees), losses, damages, demands, penalties,

fines or expenses suffered or incurred by the CCG which are attributable to any

act or omission by the Council or any other person for whom the CounciI are

liable arising out of:-

4.5,1 Any breach by the Council of any collective agreement with a trade

union, staff association or employee representatives in respect of the
Employee

4.5.2 Any breach by the Council of any disciplinary, grievance or other
employee related rules and procedures during the Secondment including

for the avoídance of doubt without limitation liability for personal injury,
accident or illness suffered or incurred in whole or in part during the
Secondment, breach of contract or in tort, unfair dismissal, redundancy

redeployment costs, statutory redundancy, equal pay, discrimination of
any kind or under any legislation applicable in the United Kingdom.

5 CONDUCT OF CLAIMS

5.1 lf the Councíl becomes aware of any matter that may give rise to a claim against

the Employee and/or the CCG, notice of that fact shall be given as soon as

possible to the CCG.

4.4

4.5

45

Page 143



5.2

5.3

6 TEAVE

6.1,

6.2

7 HEALTH AND SAFETY

7.7

7.2

5.4

Without prejudice to the validity of the claim or alleged claim in question/ the
Council shall allow the CCG and its professional advisors to investigate the
matter or circumstance alleged to give rise to such claim and whether and to
what extent any amount is payable in respect of such claim, and for such

purpose, the Council shall give subject to being paid all reasonable costs and

expenses, all such information and assistance, including access to premises and

personnel, and the right to examine and copy or photograph any assets,

accounts, documents and records, as the CCG or its professional advisors may

reasonably request provided that riothing in this clause shall be construed as

requiring the Council to disclose any document or thing the subject of any
privilege. The CCG agrees to keep all such information confidential and only to
use it for such purpose.

No admission of liability shall be made by or on behalf of the Council and any

such claim shall not be compromised, disposed of or settled without the consent
of the CCG.

The CCG shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to take such action as it shall

deem necessary to avoid, dispute, denç defend, resist, appeal, compromise or
contest any such claim or liabilíty (including, without limitation, making
counterclaims or other claims against third Partners) in the name of and on
behalf of the Council and to have the conduct of any related proceedings,
negotiations or appeals.

The Council will inform the CCG of any absence, including but not limited to
sickness absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon as is reasonably
practicable. lt is the Employee's responsibility to follow the CCG's sickness

absence reporting procedures at alltÍmes,

The Employ-ee shall be entitfed to holiday during the períod of secondment in

accordance with the Ëmployee's terms and conditions of employment with the
ccc,

The Council shall ensure that the Employee observes its health and safety polices

and procedures and maintains a safe method of working.

The Employee is required under Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work Act

1974, lo take reasonable care for his/her own Health and Safety and that of
others who may be affected by his/her acts or omissions at work.

8 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

46

Page 144



8,1 The Employee must declare and seek agreement from the CCG and his/her line
manager regarding any interests, financial or otherwise, which may give rise to a
conflict of interest during the course of the secondment. Such interests include
other employment, business interests and positions of authority in a charity or
voluntary body in the field of health and social care and in connection with a

voluntary or other body contracting for NHS or Council services.

9 RESPONSIBILITV FOR RESOURCES

9.L Where applicable: Where the Employee is responsible for the management of
Council budgets and/or the procurement of equipment and services the
Employee should foflow the Council's Standing Financial lnstructions and

associated procedures.

9.2 ln undertaking such duties the Employee should be mindful to ensure efficient
and transparent financial management. This will include financial probity, the
management of fÍnancial risk and achievement of value for money

10. PAYMENT OF SATARIES AND EXPENSES

10.1 The Employee will continue to be paid by the CCG in accordance with the
Employee's terms and conditions of employment for the duration of the
secondrnent.

LO.2 lt is agreed that the CCG shall be solely responsible for all income tax liability and

National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in respect of any
payment to the Employee for the provision of services by the Employee to the
Council under this Agreement.

10.3 Any salary increments applicable to the Employee's substantive post with the
CCG wifl continue to.

LX,' HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

11,.1 Replacement of seconded staff

After 1 April 2013 the administrative services to support the recruitment and

selection of seconded staff wíll continue to be undertaken by the CCG,

supported by the Council as appropriate.

lt.Z EmployeeRelations

LL.z.t After 1 April 20L3 the CCG will continue to provide advice to the
Employee on the CCG's policies including but not limited to disciplinary,

47

Page 145



grievance, ill health, maternity leave and general terms and conditions
of service,

|t.2.2 The CCG will be responsible for ensuring the Employee is kept updated
with all changes in the CCG's policies and procedures, although this
may be communicated to the Employee through Councilstaff.

11.3 Policies and Procedure

11.3.L During the Secondment Period, the Council, in consultation with the
CCG's Human Resources Department shall implement the CCG's policies
and procedures in respect of the Ëmployees, so far as they comply with
current employment legislation.

71.3.2 The CCG authorises the Council to take action ín respect of the
Employees pursuant to the CCG's Disciplinary Policy save for any action,
which could result in the dismissal of an Ëmployee. ln such
circumstances the CCG shall take appropriate steps in accordance with its
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure.

11.3.3 The Council may, should it consíder necessary to do so, suspend
Employees from duty in accordance with the CCG's Ðisciplinary Policy and
in consultation with the CCG's Human Resources Department provided
that such a suspension shall be notified to the CCG no later than the
following working day,

L7.3.4 The CCG authorise the Council to deaf with any grievances raised by the
Employee against the Council in accordance with the CCG's grievance
policy, The Council will notify the CCG of any grievances received by the
Councíl including those against the CCG within 3 working days or as soon
as reasonably possible

1-1..3.5 For the avoidance of doubt, nothing Ín clause 11 shall be construed or
have effect as construing any relationship of Ëmployer or Fmployee
between the Council and the Employee.

11.4 Workforcelnformation

Workforce information regarding seconded staff will continue to be collected
and retained by the CCG. However, it is recognised that the Council will require
data concerning seconded staff in order to support the planning and delivery of
services. The CCG in accordance with the format and deadlines identified by the
Councilwill provide this information as required.

L2 , MANAGEMENT DURING THE SECONDMENT

48

Page 146



72.1 The Employee shall be super.vised by and directly accountable to a designated
line manager in the Council's organisational structure during the secondment
and the CCG will provide access to professional supervision for qualified social
workers

13 PROFESSIONAL DEVETOPMENT

13.1 The CCG will work with the Council to ensure the Employee's professional and

developmental needs are identified and met. Performance Development
Review's, Performance Management processes, and training of the Employee
will be undertaken by the Council.

L4 MANAGEMENT OF CHANGE

tA.L lt is recognised that the Council and the CCG in delivering and developing
integrated commissioning will face organisat¡onal restructuring and changes ín
employment levels. ln the event that the Employee is affected by organisational
change, the Council and the CCG will ensure that changes happen following full
consultation with his/her union representative and that changes comply with the
CCG's employment policies.

15 DATA PROTECTION

15.1 The Employee and the CCG consent to the Council holding, disclosing, using or
otherwíse processing any information about them which they provide to the
Council or which the Council may acquire as a result of the Secondment.

75.2 fhe CCG and the Council agree to protect any personal data held in relation to
the Ëmployee in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.

16 CONFIDENTIALITY

L6.7 ' ln addition to the provisions regarding confidentiality in the Employee's Contract
of Employment, the Employee will not disclose during or after the secondment
any confidentiaf information to which the Ëmployee became privy during the
course of the secondment, including but not limited to all trade secrets, lists or
details of customers, suppliers or patients, information relating to the working of
any process or invention carried on or used by any subsidiary or associate,

research projects, prices, discounts, mark-ups, future business strategy,
marketing, tenders, any price sensitive information, and any proprietary Council
information.

L7 TERMINATION

49

Page 147



t7.! ln the event of termination of the s75 Agreement howsoever arising, this
Secondment Agreement will automatically term¡nate

77.2 The Employee may terminate the Secondment by giving not less than (one)

month's notíce in writing (or the Employee's contractual notice period if this is

greater) to the CCG and the Council. This will be taken as the Employee's
intention to tender their resignation of their substantive post.

18 REVIEW AND VARIATION

18.1 This secondment agreement will remain the subject of periodic review and
amendment as necessary in light of changíng service needs and legislative
developrnents,

L8.2 The Partners agree that any amendments or variations to this Agreement must
be in writing and signed by authorised representatives of the Partners

19 GËNËRAL

19,1 lf any provisíon or term of this Agreement shall become or be declared illegal
invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, including without limitation,
by reason of provisions of any legislation or by reason of any decision of any
court or other body having jurisdiction over the Partners, such terms or
provisions shall be divisible from this Agreernent and shal[ be deemed to be
deleted in the jurisdiction in question provided always that if any such deletion
substantialfy affects or alters the commercial basis of this Agreement, the
Partners shall negotiate in good faith to amend and modify the provisions or
terms of this Agreement as may be necessary or desirable in the circumstances.

19.2 This Agreement does not create any partnership or agency relationship between
the CCG and the Council,

19,3 This Agreement shall be in substitution for any prevíous letters of appointment,
agreements or arrangements, whether written, oral or implied, relating to the
Secondment of the Employee.

I9.4 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English
law. The CCG and the Council agree that any dispute arising under this
Agreement or in connection with it shall be decided in the English Courts, which
shall have the sole jurisdiction in any such matter,

s0

Page 148



L

SCHEDULE 8

ARRANGEMENTS FOR AGREEING CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER FINANCIAI ARRANGEMENTS

OPERATION OF FINANCIAL ARRANGEMËNTS The ICB will agree, in writing, by the 31st
March each year, financial procedures and arrangernents for the operation of this
Agreement for the following Financial Year, This will act as a Revised Annual Finance
Agreement which will set out the Contríbutions plus variation and shall also include:-

1.1 Risk SharÍng Arrangements - over/under spend ãrrangements, see paragraph 3
below;

L.2 lnvoice Arrangements - initially the Authority will issue an invoice to the CCG on
the first day of each Quarter, due for payment by 15th of the month;

1.3 Contribution Finance Flows; the Authority wíll invoice the CCG each quarter as

above for the CCG's Contribution; the Authority will then reimburse the CCG

within 15 days of receipt of an invoice for the standard and basic costs of
employment of the Seconded Staff on the CCG'S payroll;

7.4 VAT procedures shall be in accordance with 'Partnership Structure (a)' within HM
Customs & Excise regulations and as notified to HMRC; separate operational
guidance will be agreed between the Partners regarding this;

1.5 Use of specific grants and other income ;

1.6 The costs of managing and administering the Pooled Fund itself;

L.7 Audít checklists and other points raised by auditors;

1.8 Monitoring information and formats (including contract monitoring);

1.9 Monitoring timetable;

1,L0 Non-financial performance information;

1'.1t lnformation management systems & structures for collecting activity and finance
information; and

LLz Accommodation arrangements for Services

1.13 The Budget at Paragraph 6 below (as at 20L0hL prices) will be updated on an
annual basis to reflect the agreed contributions from the Partners to the Pooled
Fund in line with Clause 9 of this Agreement. Ëach change to budgets agreed by
the ICB will take into account the effect on other budgets and other financial
flows involved with any of the Partners.

51

Page 149



2. FINANCIAL PLANNING AND BUDGET SETTING PROCESS

The Contributions will be reviewed in accordance with Clause 17 (Quarterly
Review and Reporting). This shall take account of but not be limited to the
following:-

THE Aurnonrw
Planning assumptions of inflation allowances for pay and non-pay items together
with proposed budget variations in respect of:-

o Demographic change;
r Service enhancement or reduction;
. Required efficiency / quality improvement;
o lncome streams; and
¡ National lnitiatives,

and will be considered in context of the overall Local Authority budget and shall

be available no later than 28 February annually.

THE CCG

Planning assumptions of inflation allowances for pay and non-pay items together
with proposed budget variations in respect of:-

o Demographic change;
o Service enhancement or reduct¡on;
o Required efficiency / quality improvement;
o lncome streams; and
o National lnitíatives.

The Pooled Fund Manager shall ensure that any matters relating to the Pooled

Fund that might have a material impact on expenditure or income in future years

are identified and reported to the ICB in time to be taken into account in the
financial planning and budget setting process.

The CCG's Deputy Chief Finance Officer and the Authority's Finance Manager
shall advise the appropriate deadline dates for the provision of such information
through the Revised Annual Finance Agreement.

ln respect of financial forecasting and budgets, the Partners shall provide

explanations, analysis and documentation as necessary, within the limitations
set out in Clause 24 of the Agreement for the other Partner to understand the
basis of their planning assumptions and the contributions to the Pooled Fund.

This information will be made available at the same time as the finançial
forecasts are shared with the other Partner and the contribution to the Pooled

Fund is confirmed.

2.1

A:

B:

2.2

2.3

2.4

52

Page 150



3. ADDITIONAL FUNDING

3.1 For the avoidance of doubt, fundíng for the costs of servicing and maintaining
any building, telephone rentals and lT network costs, or any other cost related to
the performance of the Arrangements shall not be paid for from the
Contributions, but shall be met by the Partners in accordance wíth existing
arrangements.

3.2 The payments made by each Partner towards the costs listed at paragraph 3.1
above shall be recorded in a separate ledger.

4. BUDGET PERFORMANCE

4,L The Pooled Fund Manager shall report quarterly to the lCB. The Pooled Fund
Manager shall ensure that action is taken to correct any projected variation
from the Pooled Fund, reporting on the variation and the action taken or
proposed to the lCB.

4.t The process for addressing forecast overspends/underspends and takíng
appropriate action will be addressed by the ICB and the Partners in accordance
with Clause L0 of this Agreement.

5 A,CCESS TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5.1 The CCG and the Authority shall make all relevant financial information and
records avallabfe to the respective Partner subject to any constraínts imposed by
Clause 24 (Data Protect¡on) of the Agreement and whilst respecting commercial
confidentiality, and shall provide full explanations, exemplifications and advice in
response to any reasonable question or request frorn any other Partner ín
respect of these records.

5.2 The Partners will assure the accuracy and completeness of financial inforrnation
being presented under review through the lCB.

6 CONSTRUCTION OF BUDGET AND CONTRIBUTIONS

The CCG will bear responsibility for all costs associated with Seconded Staff other than
their standard and basic costs of employment and associated non pay costs which will
be reimbursed from the Pooled Fund in accordance with paragraph L of this schedule,

7 BUDGET

7,L There will be two elements of the Poofed Fund

7.1 Staffing budgets for nominated staff under the single line management
structure in schedule 7

53

Page 151



7.2 Discrete service commissioning budgets. The Partners may agree to pool

service commissioning budgets when assessed as appropriate and

beneficial to deliver the aims and objectives in schedule 1. Service

commissioning budgets may be included ín the Pooled Fund with the
agreement of both Partners either by a forrnal exchange of letters or as a

minuted item at the lntegrated Commissioning Board meeting

7.2.7 At the commencement of the Agreement there are no service

commissioning budgets included in the pooled fund

Sub
total

tA
contribution

ccG
contributionWTE Pay

Non
Pay

0 779,942CCG emp[oyed staff 3,6 179,942 0 779,942

CCG employed staff
[ioint funded) 3,4 L87,525 4,000 191,525 95,763 95,763

4,000 26L,542 L30,777 r30,77L
LA employed staff
(joint funded) 5.24 257,542

8000 633,009 226,534 406,476TOTALS L2.24 625009

8 PREMISES

Summary of staff & bu transferred to the fund the CCG & [A

7.3 For the avoidance of any doubt, î.406,476 is the CCG's contribution to
the Pooled Fund at 2OI3/14 prices for the period 1 April 20L3 to 31

March 20L4 and Í226,534 is the Authority's contributíon to the Pooled

Fund at 2O13/L4 prices for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

8.1 The Authority and the CCG shall continue to provide or make available the
premises, with the same support services and facilities management to those
premises, that they provided before the Commencement Date and according to
the lists set out at 8.2 and 8.3 below:-

8.2 The Authority shall ensure continued access to the premises currently used at
the following addresses:-

Civic Offices, GuildhallSquare, Portsmouth POl 2EP

Great Western House, lsambard Brunel Rd, Portsmouth POl 2DR

8.3 The CCG shall ensure continued access to the premises currently used at the
following address:-

Trust Headquarters, St James' Hospital, Locksway Road, Milton,
Portsmouth. PO4 8LD

54

Page 152



SCHEDULE 9

GOVERNANCE

1. INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

1.1 The lntegrated Commissioning Board (lCB) will provide the oversight and governance of:

the delivery of the Aims and Objectives of the Agreement (Schedule 1),

the Pooled Fund

the Partnership risk register
the Annual Work Programme

I.2 The ICB will be the escalation route for performance issues relating to service delivery by
the Partners

1.3 The membership will be at Director/ Executive level and representative of the Partners
commissioning interests

L.4 The Terms of Reference for the ICB will be reviewed annually

1.5 The ICB will be a sub committee of the CCG's Clinical Commissioning Committee

Þru¿ffa
l¡imüaf¡tr¡p llÕdâl

tcs.rr Àotñor,f/
FÈrlnùr.¿ ntF!

Hritn tlldvt¡þll
Ealng ÊoÈKl

¡ûlür ftorl3mo¡rtìr
Pùftflff¡h¡p

cll'$rrsn¡'Trü¡l
80.¡rO

Pu¡,nÊ ¡!úv¡c¡Ê
ao(¡ad

tôfffi[ßtfre

t¡H t F¿rtni¡rå¡rp¡

Au{¡lt

f\lrlatfîrnorqônt¡¡stl e otnr

flrrt¡rnDuih &
Soutb E st
HrrrlD6h¡rÈ

Commllrtonlng

tFlP eoerd ot
gomr[rl5sloll9t€

P&ÌEH Ct¡nt€l
LsdÐr5

åuEbln¡Dilth
PfogrsmmÐ B{hrd

GOVERI'¡AI'¡CE IIODEL

Practice Mernbere Forum

CCG GoverningBosrd

55

Page 153



1.1

1.3

L.2

SCHEDULE 10

JOINT WORKING AND OTHER AGENCIES

There are a number of boards and committees that have differing levels of accountability
and/or responsibility for inff uencing commissioning decisions rnade by the CCG and Authority:

¡ Joint Health & Wellbeing Board

e Children's Trust Board and its sub groups

o The Learning Disability Partnership Board (LDPB) for learning disability services

o Safer Portsmouth Partnership (SPP) and the Joint Commissioning Group (JCG) for
substance misuse services

. Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel (HOSP)

¡ Healthwatch

The lntegrated Commissioning Unit will work collaboratively with these boards / committees to
ensure that the Partners responsibilities for joint working are discharged.

The Integrated Commissioning Unit witl work closely with neighbouring Local Authorities and
CCGs and where appropriate exploit opportunities for collaborative commissioning

56

Page 154



SCHEDULE 11

CLINICAL GOVERNANCE & SAFEGUARDING

1. ACCOUNTABILITY FOR THE OVERALL qUALITY OF CIINICAL CARE

1.1 The CCG Accountable Officer and Governing Body are accountable for
the quality of commissioned clinical care via the Clinical Executive for
Quality & Safeguarding lead and the Clinical Commissioning
Committee.

r
Fort!øo!th

(l¡ñ¡r.rl (ommii.¡onrng Oroup

I n p rov t n ç h eallh,señ,¡ces

The lntegrated Commissioning Board is a sub-committee of the
Clinical Commissioning Committee

1.2

2. SAFEGUARDIN6

2.I The Authority is the lead partner for safeguardíng.

The CCG's safeguarding responsibilities will be discharged in
accordance with the table above and below

2.2

DESIGNATED ROLES

Lr¡lîatel/ aoðsJ'ÐÞ

Àø.ounl¡Þ:å
Õlf.{rl Gôvèrn1ng BortT

Aêûù.¡'ÊÐÞ Bôt/

c-,,r't¡: Er*,ülivð
Gû¡.t, å l¡lsgu¡rë rg

6ùrtd èlhlc¡l lÈrt

Cl åfOÊå!¡l,ng
ôll¡år

8ô¡R rn¡lðgsrer"i t¿ðt

c,,n 1:¿l

Cô.:n11 t¡'ôn:ng
cðilil:HÈt

gÆr6êÈfE oâ¡têr/

.sBÊg,årdlD {ð¡d trú€d ¡!er) câllóren ¿1eÈu'ìr':êú ðûirot
ùtgüãrdbg (r1t lïiðJ ú:r) €ält rÉn ãèãl!,€td Àrrr€e

'Bþ!rþbî 
at urupÐúed de*ì5 lì dtlttf€n

sali\lualdhÐ AÁlJtå leÈl (,blÍ eJllt loÈàlÀtÞrÌ,/)
¡1{r{¡lc¡pÐcl?l Á¡l 00¡x wlñ f.ôr8lÀt}rrÈl}

ltùd¡ for

57

Page 155



CCG Governing Body: Roles

Clinical Leader
(,Accountable officer'f

Chief Operating Off icer CCG Executive (Quality &
Safeguarding)

Ultimate accountability
for ensuring the CCG

discharges in full its
duties in relation to
Safeguarding Adults

Responsibility for ensuring
the CCG has in place

procedures and capacity
to fulfill it safeguarding
duties

Ensures clinical overview and

influence over all CCG

safeguarding processes

Ensures Board level
scrutiny of safeguard ing

Ensures CCG participation
in Local Safeguarding

Adults Board and
processes

Represents the CCG at Local

Safeguarding Adults Board

Ensures arrangements are

in place to assure the CCG

that all províders and

contractors to the CCG are

fulfilling their safeguarding
duties

Provides very senior and

clinical leadership for the
CCG and acts as local

champion and advocate for
safeguarding adults in CCG

business and, in particular, in
primary care

Reports to the CCG

Governing Body on all

aspects of safeguarding
adults

58

Page 156



SCHEDU[E 12

INFORMATION SHARING

1. The Partners shall comply with the latest version of the Pan Hampshire

fnformation Sharing Protocol at alltimes.

2. The Partners have developed an OperationalAgreement based on the
template found within the Pan Hampshire lnformation Sharing Protocol

which details the day to day processes for information sharing and the
ccintrol of new information. The Operational Agreement is signed off by the
Caldicott Guardian from each Partner, and any variations to it shall be agreed

in writing. This Operational Agreement wilf be subject to local approval and

reviewed on an annual basis or sooner if appropriate by the Authority's and

the CCG's lnformation Governance Leads.

3. The Partners have developed a Privacy lmpact Assessment based on the
template found within the Pan Hampshire lnformation Sharing Protocol in
refation to the sharing of the information relating to the Service.

4. [t is agreed that:

The CCG will be the Data Controller for exiSting NHS data prior to the
Commencement Date.

The Authority will be the Data Controller for existing social care data

prior to the Commencement Date.

The Authority will be the Data Controller for new ínformation
collected by the integrated team from the Commencement Date,

5. ln the event of a breach of Data Protection Legislation by either of the
Partners the relevant Partner responsible for the breach shall be liable for
any fines imposed by the lnformation Commissioner's Office, and such fines

shall not be met lrom the Pooled Budget.

a

a

a

59

Page 157



Page 158



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care  
 

Date of meeting: 
 

23rd March 2018 

Subject: 
 

Adult Mental Health Section 75 Extension 

Report by: 
 

Service Manager Mental Health, Safeguarding and Carers 
Services 
 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1.  Purpose of report 
 
1.1 To seek approval of the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care to extend 

the section 75 agreement for the Integrated Adult Mental Health Service (AMH)  
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Cabinet member agrees to the extension of the current AMH s75 

Agreement for a period of one year, until 1st July 2019. 
  
3. Background 
 
3.1 The AMH social work element of the integrated mental health service , operates 

under a Section 75 Lead Provider arrangement with Solent NHS Trust as the 
lead provider, delivering the requirements set out in the Care Act 2014  to 
people in Portsmouth whose primary needs are linked to their mental health.  
Solent NHS Trust have direct line management responsibility for PCC staff, and 
staff are co-located with their NHS colleagues and based at St Mary's Hospital in 
Portsmouth.  

 
3.2 Under the partnership agreement PCC contract with Solent NHS Trust for an 

agreed staffing establishment and associated costs with clear outcomes.  Solent 
NHS Trust have the delegated responsibility, as the lead provider for delivery of 
the social work element of AMH services. Quarterly meetings of the Partnership 
Management Group are held to monitor the effectiveness of the arrangements.  

 
3.3 The current agreement, which commenced November 2013, was set to run for 

three years and expired in 2016. For 16/17 and for 17/18 it was agreed the 
current arrangements would be extended for those years. It is recognised that 
the agreement does not reflect the changes brought in with the Care Act 2014 
and that it needs to be rewritten. It was agreed by the Deputy Director of Adult 

Page 159

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Social Care that for 18/19 an addendum would be agreed to ensure the 
requirements of the care act were clearly articulated. Performance indicators 
and outcome measures would also be refreshed along with confirmation of the 
resource provided by PCC to Solent NHS to deliver the service. During 18/19 
the agreement will be re-written along with the service specification to ensure it 
is fit for purpose, delivering the requirements of the Care Act, on behalf of PCC.  

 
   
3.4 The s75 partnership agreement is overseen and monitored by Adult Social Care, 

through Partnership Management Group meetings.  
 
4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.1 Having an integrated service, made up of a range of professional s across 

different disciplines sitting under one line management structure allows for a 
coordinated multi-agency planning to meet the needs of people with mental 
health difficulties.  

 
4.2 The extension of the existing s75 agreement will ensure continuity of service 

delivery, acknowledging that some amendments are required to ensure it 
complies with the requirements of the Care Act 2014. 

 
5. Equality impact assessment 
 
5.1 An assessment is not required as the decision will have no negative impact on 

the protected characteristics. This is an extension of an already existing service 
for people with mental health. There will be no change to the service therefore 
no change for the clients accessing the service this will just ensure continuity for 
clients with a mental health issue. 

 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 allows local authorities and NHS bodies to enter 

into partnership arrangements to provide a joined service and pool resources, if 
such arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way their 
functions are exercised. 

 
6.2 The arrangements permissible between the Council and NHS bodies under 

section 75 include the provision as well as the commissioning of integrated 
services. 

 
6.3 As part of the arrangement, to enable Solent NHS Trust to provide the 

integrated services, PCC staff are made available to the Trust under section 113 
of the Local Government Act 1972. These arrangements will continue during the 
extended term of the s75 Agreement. 

 
6.4 The provisions of the original section 75 Agreement for AMH enable the parties 

to extend its duration by agreement between them and also to agree any varied 
or updated terms and conditions that may be required. 

Page 160



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
7. Finance comments 
 
7.1 There are no additional financial implications arising from the recommendation 

contained within this report, as it seeks to continue the existing arrangements, 
as set out within the s.75 agreement. 

 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
Andy Biddle, Acting Deputy Director Adult Services 
 
Appendices:  1) Section 75 Agreement dated 15th November 2013 between PCC and 
Solent NHS Trust. 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



I

l

I

I

l

2013DATED

PORTSMOUTH C]TYCOUNCIL

SOLENT NHS TRUST

AGREEMENT

under s,75 National Health Selvice Act 2006
in relatlon to the" provision of an lntegmted
Health and Sociat Gare Adult Mentat Heatth

Service

LegalServices
Portsmouth City Councíl

Civio Offtces
GuildhallSquare

Portsmouth
POl 2 PX
,ec2,03-.

L(Zt¡-a?

l5+o l'Jove.rnb.qr

and

Page 163



CONTENTS

CLAUSE

1,.

¿..

3.

4.
Ã

6

7.

I
9.

10

11

12

13

14

15

l6
'17

18

19

20.

2',1.

22.

23.
¿4.,

25

26.

27..

28

29.

30

31

32,,

J.',,

34..

35

36

37.

38

39

40.

41.

42,,

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION .

NHS SUCCSSSOR BODIES

COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

EXTENDING THE INITIAL TERM ,

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEM ENTS

DELEGATION OF FUNCÏÍONS .

SERVICES.. ., ;..

ANNUALWORKPROGRAMME . .

PERFORMANCE MANAG EMENT

FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS .,

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ", ,, .. ,

SET UP COSTS

PREMISES

STAFFING (TUPE, SECONDMENT AND PËNSIONS). ...

GOVERNANCE

QUARTERLY REVIEìA/ AND REPORTING

ANNUAL REVIEW .....

VARIATIONS ..

STANDARDS ...

HEALTH AND SAFETY....,., --."..,. ,.....

EQUALIW DUTIES

FREEDoM oF tNFoRMATiol.l . ,,,..

DATA FROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHARING

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE RECORDS .

CONFIDENTIALITY

AUDIT

INSURANCE

INDEMNITIES

LIABILITIES

COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS . ,

HEALTHWATCH.., .

DISPUTE RESOLUTION ..,,,.. -

ïERM|NATrON ..,.-...,-. .

CONSÊQUENCËS OF TERMINATION , . ..

PUBLICITY

NO PARTNERSHIP ,.

IÉ|RD PARTY RIGHTS :. ..

NOTICES

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

SEVERABILITY.

WAIVER

rruTIN.E AGREEMENT

2

7

.."8

,8
,..8

I

.21

22

.23

.,, .13

. ... .13

. ...,. .,. ., ..14

.._.. .,. ......14

, '..,..".....15
' ' ' .,'.",15

.... 16

.... .... 16

..., .,.' 17

'''' . ,.,,18

,' . ,.-...18

. ,, . ....19

"... ... .19

23

24

25

26

27

Page 164



43

44

45

46

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTICIN
FA|R DEAilNGS..,,,..,...
CONFLICTS CIF INTËREST... .

SCHEDULËS

SCHEDULE - AIMS AND OUTCOMES . . -

SCHËDULE 2 - TRUST FUNCTIONS

SCHEDULE 3 . AUTHORITY FUNCTIONS . ...,

SCHEDULE 4 - EXCLUDED FUNCTIONS "

SCHEDULE 5 - SERVÍCE SPECIFICATION

SCHEDULE 6 - HUMAN RESOURCES

SCHEDULE 7 - INFORMATION SHARINC ..... .....

SCHEDUI-E 8 - GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENT

SCHEDULE 9. FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

......." .. ^. ..33

.. . ...-,.. ..,.JJ

..33

.33COUNTERPARTS., ..,

.23

26

.27

29

.30

31

.M

45

-47

Page 165



DArE .15.1-l X.:y *t...3or'3
PARTIES

(1) PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth,

Hampshire, POl 2PX ("the Authority"),

(2) SOLENT NHS TRUST whose ofÍces ara situated at Adelaide Health Centre, William

MacLeod Way, Millbrook, Southampton SO16 4XE ("the Trust")

BAGKGRoUND

(À) Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 contains powers enabling NHS

Bodies to exercise certain local authority functions and for local authorities to

exercise various NHS functions The Partners are entering into this Agreement in

exercise of those powers under and pursuant to the NHS Regulations 2000.

(B) The Partners are committed to better integration of the NHS Functions and the

Authority Health-Related Functions, and therefore wish to enter into the

arr¿rngements under thìs Agreement,

(c) The Trust enters into this Agreement as provider of the NHS Functions relating to

adult mental health services,,

(D) fhe Authority enters into this Agreement as provîder of the Authorìty Health-Related

Functions relating to adult mental health services

(E) This Agreement provides the frarnework within which the Partners willwork together

to achieve the Aims and Outcomes.

(F) The aim of this Agreement is to enable the integration of the health and social care

elements of learning disability services to deliver the Partners' statutory

responsibilities towards people with mental health problems and the requirements of

ihe national Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework and the NHS Outcomes

Framework

AGREED TERMS

1. DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 The definitions and rules of interpretation in this clause appìy in this Agreement

Agreement: this Agreernent between the Trust and the Authority comprising these

terms and conditions together with all schedules attached to it.

Aims and Outcomes: the objectives of the Partners, setting out how tha Partnership

Arrangements are likely to lead-to an improvement in the way the Functions are

exercised, as described in Schedule 1 ,

Annual Work Prograrnme: has the meaníng set out in clause B

Authorlty Health.Related Functions: the health related functions of the Authority

listed in Regulation 6 of the NHS Regulations 2000 (and further described in

Page 166



Ðirect Losses: means all damages, losses, indebtedness, claims, actions, cash,
expenses (including the cost of legal or professional services, legal costs being an
agenVclíent, client paying basis), proceedings, demands and charges whether
arising under statute, contract or at common law, but, to avoid doubt, excluding
lndirect Losses;

Dispute Resolution Procedure: the procedure set out in clause 31.

EIR: the Ënvironmental'lnformation Regulations 2004 (S/ 2004/9391)

Equality Legislation: means the Equality Act 2010, Human Rights Act 1998 and
any other relevant law which ensures, among others; equality of access to goods
and servÍces; prornotion of good relations between groups in society; the provision of
Reasonable Adjustments for people with disabilities (as defined in the Equality Act
2010); and equality in employment;

Excluded Functions: such Functions contained in Schedule 4 (Excluded Functionsi
of this Agreement and/or such Functions as the Partners rnay agree from time to

time are excluded from the Arrangements, together with any exclusions set out in the

NHS Regulations 2000.

Financial Obligations: the financial obligations of the Partners as set out in

Schedule 9

Financial Year: 1 Aprilto 31 March,

First Financial Year: 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

FOIA: the Freedom of lnformation Act 2000 and any subordinate legislatíon made

under it from time to time, together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by

the lnforrnation Commissioner or relevant government department concerning this
legislation

Functions: the NHS Functions and the Authority's Health-Rslated Functions..

Host Partner: the host partner for the Functions under this Agreement

lndireôt Losses: means indirect loss of profÍts, loss of use, loss of production, loss
of business, loss of business opportunity, loss of business revenue, loss of goodwill
or any claim for consequential loss or for indirect loss of any nature,,

lndividual Agreement: the agreements made between each Post Holder, the Trust

and the Authority describing the terms on which the Post Holder will be made

available by the Trust to the Authority

lnformation: has the meaning given under section 84 of FOIA.

lnformation Sharing Protocol: the protocol describing how the Partners will share

lnformation contained in a form approved by the partners under Schedule 8;

lnitial Term: the period commencing on the Commencement Date and ending on

the thírd anniversary of the Commencement Date.

Law: any applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy,

guÍdance or industry code, any applicable judgement of a relevant court of law which

Page 167



i

j
i

Schedule 3 (Authority Functions) of this Agreement) in relation to the provision of, or
making arrangernents for the provision of, the Services but excluding the Excluded
Functions

Authority's Authorised officer: Angela Dryer, Assistant Head of social care

Authority's Financial Obligations: the Authority's financial obligations are set out in
Schedule I
Change in Law: means the coming into effect or repeâl (without re-enactmenl or
consolidation) in England of any Law, or any amendmänt oi variaflon to any Law, or
any judgment of a relevant court of law which changes binding precedent in EngËnO
that lmpacts on the partnership Arrangements ãnd comoã into force aftei the
Cornmencement Date

Gommencement Date: 1 July 2013

Confidential lnformation:
means all information, data and/or material of any nature which either party may
receive or obtain in coànection with the operation of the confract, ¡ncluain'g à;í
information, data and/or material:

(a) which cornprises Personal Data or Sensitive Personal Data (as both terms
are defined in the Data protection Act l ggg);

(b) the release of which is likely to prejudice the commercial interests of either
Party;

(c) which is a trade secret; or

(d) is identified at the lime of disctosure as being confidential

Gouncil's Service User Records: means the records created and maintained by
the Authority pursuant to clause 23,2

Data ProtectiOn Legislation: this includes:
(a) the Data Protection Act 1998 (DpA 1998);

(b) Directive 95l46lEC on the protection of individuals with regard to the
processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data;

(.) the Regulation of lnvestÍgatory powers Act 2000;

(d) the Telecommunications (Lawful Business Practice) (lnterception of
Commun ications) Regu tations 20 0O (S, 2000/2699);

(e) Directive 2O02l58lEC concerning the processing of Personal Data and the
protection of privacy in the electronic communications sector;

(f) the Privacy and Electronic Comrnunícations (EC Dhective) Regulations
2003 (S/ 2003/2426); and

G) atl applicable lawg and regulations relating to processíng personal data and
privacy, incfuding the guidance and codes of practice issued by the
lnformation Commissioner, where applicable

Page 168



is a binding precedent in England, dírectives or requirernents of any Regulatory
Body, delegated or subordinate legislation, or notîce of any Ragulatory Body,

NHS Act 2006: National Health Service Act 2006

NHS Body: shall have the meaning set out in Regulation 3(1) of the NHS
Regulations 2000

NHS Functions: shall have the meaning set out in regulation 5 of the NHS
Regulations 2000.

NHS Regulations 2000: the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership
Arrangements Regulations 2000 (Sl 2000/612) (as amended)..

Ombudsman: means the Heafth Service Ombudsman and the Local Government
Ombudsman.

Partner: either the Trust or the Authority, and "Partners" shall be construed
accordingly

Partnership Anangements: the arrangements made between the Partners under
this Agreement.

Partnership Management Group: the body of officers of the Trust and of the
Authority appointed and with the powers and functions as more parlicularly
described in Schedule I (Govemance Arrangements)

Personal Data: shall have the same meaning as set out in the DPA 1998"

Post Holder: the índividuals identified in Schedule 6 and being the indivíduals who,
as at the Commencement Date, are made available to the Authórity by the Trusl

Quarter: the following periods in each Financial Year:

(a) 1 Aprilto 30 June;

(b) 1 July to 30 September;

(c) 1 October to 31 December; and

(d) 1 January to 31 March

Regulâtory Body: those govemment departments and regulatory, statutory and
other entities, commÍttees and bodies that, whether under statute, rules, regulations,
codes of practice or otherwise, are entitled to regulate, investigate or influence the
matters deaft with in this Agreement, or any olher affairs of the Authority and/or the
Trust

Relevant Transfer: a relevant tiansfer under TUPE

Representative: a Partner's employee, agent or subcontracfor and any employee of
the other Partner who is seconded to the Partner and is acting in accordance with
the Partner's instructions

Request for lnformation: a request for lnformation or an apparent request under
the Code of Practice on Access to Government lnformation, FOIA or the
Environmental lnformatÍon Regulations 2004 (S t 2004/339f ) (EtR)

Page 169



Service Provider: a third-party provider of any of the Services, as commissioned by

the Trust or the Authority before the Gommencement Date or the Authority (or a third
party commissioned by the Authority in order to facilitate the delivery of any of the

Services by the Authority on behalf of the Partners) from the Commencement Date.

Service User: individuats who are eligibfe to receive the Services, as more

particularly described in Schedule 5-

Senrices: the services to be delivered by or on behalf of the Partners under this

Agreement, as more particularly described in clause 7 and Schedule 5,

Term: the period of the lnitialTerm as may be varied by:

(a) any extensions to this Agreement that are agreed under clause 4; or

(b) the earlier termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms,

Third Party: means any party other than the Authority or the Trust"

Trusl's Authorised Officer: Matthew Hall Associate Director

Trust'e Financial Obligations: the Trust's financial obligations are set out in

Schedule 9

Trusfs Premises: St James' Hospital, Locksway Road, Portsmouth & Bfock A, St
Marys Community Campus, Portsrnouth

Trust's Service User Records: has the meaning ascribed to the term in Glauso

23..1

TUPE: the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Ernployment) Regufations 2006
(st 2006/246I

VAT Guidance: the guidance published by the Department of Health entitled "VAT

arrangements for Joint NHS and Local Authority lnitiatives including Disability

Equipment Stores and Welfare- Section 31 Health Act 1999"

Working Day: any day other than Saturday, Sunday, a public or bank holiday in
England.

Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of

this Agreement

the Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in
full in the body of this Agreoment Any reference to this Agreement includes the

Schedules.

1,4 Words in the singular include the plural and vice versa

1 5 A reference to one gender includes a reference to the other genders

A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as it is in force for

the time being, taking account of any amendment, extension or re-enactment and

includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under it

1,2

13

16

Page 170



1"7 A reference to writing or written includes faxes and e-mail.

18 Any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an

obligation not to agree or allow that thing to be done,,

1"9 A reference to a document ís a reference to that document as varied or novaied

(in each case, other than in breach of the provisions of thís Agreement) at any

time,

1,10 References to clausés and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this

Agreement.. References to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevanl

Schedule.

2. NHS SUCCESSOR BODIES

2..1 The Partners acknowledge that the legal status, identity or oonstitution of the
Trust as an NHS body may change during the Term=including, without limitation,
the Trust becoming a foundation trust pursuant to the NHS Act 2006

Without prejudice to Clause 38,2, the Partners shall use all reasonable

endeavours to ensure lhat this Agreement continués to have effect
notwithstanding any such change as is refened to in clause 2,1 including but not
limited to reasonable endeavours to secure the novation of this Agreement 1o any
successor body of the Trust where both Parties, acting reasonably, consider this
necessary'

3. COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall continue for
the Term.

4. EXTENDING THE INITIAL TERM

The Partners may, by agreement made in writing, extend this Agreement for a period

and on varied terms as they agree, beyond the lnitial Term, subject to approval of
the Partners'boards,.

5. PARTNERSH]PARRANGEMENTS

5'1 The Partners enter into these Partnership Arrangements under section 75 of the

NHS Act 2006 to provide integrated health and social care services to better meet
the needs of the Service Users of Portsmouth than if the Partners were operaling

independently

The specific Aims and Outcomes of the Partnership Arrangements are described

in Schedule 1

2.2

5.2

Page 171



The Partnership Anangements shall comprise

(a) the delegation by the Authority to the Trust of the Authority Health-Related

Functions, so that it may exercise the NHS Functions alongside the

Authority Health-Related Functions and act as integrated provider of the

Services described in Schedule 5 on behalf of both Partners

(b) the establishment of an integrated adult mental health service operating

under a single line management structure

ln accordance with Regulation 4(4 oT the NHS Regulations 2000, the Partners

have canied out a joint consultation on the proposed Partnership Arrangements

with Service Users, and other individuals and groups who appear to them to be

aflected by the Partnership Arrangements

Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or atfect:

(a) the rights and powers, duties and obligations of the Partners in the exercise

of their functions as public bodies or in any other capacity;

(b) the powers of the Authority to set, administer and collect charges for any

Authority Héalth-Related Function; or

(c) the Authority's power to determine and apply eligibility criteria for the

purposes of assessment under the Community Care Act 1990

6. DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

ô1 For the purposes of the implementation of the Partnership Anangements, the

Authorìty hereby delegates the exercise of the Authority's Health-Related

Functions to the Trust to exercise alongside the NHS Functions and act as

integrated provider of the health and social care elements relating to adult mental

services.

6.2 Additional services may be brought within the scopP of this Agreement during the

Terrn by agreement,

7. SERVICES

7.1 The Trust is the Host Partner for the Partnership Arrangements, and agrees to act

as provider of the Services referred to in clause 6,1.

7,2 The Trust shall provide the Services or procure that they are provided and shall

be accountable to the Authority for the Authority's Health-Related Functions for
the benefit of Service Users:

(a) to ensure the proper discharge of the Partners' Functions;

(b) with reasonable skill and care, and irì accordance with best practice

guidance;

53

5.4

5.5

Page 172



(c) in all respectç in accordance with the Airns and Outcomes, the perforrnance

managemeni framework, the provisiqns of this Agreement, and the

Authority's applicable policies set out in Schedule 5;

(d) in acçordance with its standing orders or other rules on contracting; and

(e) in accordance with all applicable Law.

8. ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMIIiIE

The Partners shall prepare a programme for each of the Services at least four
weeks before the start of each Financial Year, which shall:

1a) set out the agreed Aíms and Outcomes for the specific Services;

(b) describe any changes or development required for the specific Services;

(c) provide information on how changes ìn funding or resources may impact the
specific Services; and

(d) include details of the estimated contributions due from each Partner for each
Service,

Eaeh Annual Work Programme shall be initiated on the first day of the Financial

Year to which it relates Each AnnualWork Programme will remain in place for a
period of 12 months..

B3 The Annual Work Programme may be varied by written agreement between the
Partners during any Financial Year Any variation that increases or reduces the
number or leüel of Services in the scope of the Agreement shall require the
Partners to make corresponding adjustments to the Trust's Financial Obligations
and the AuthorÍty's Financial Obligations

8.4 lf the Partners cannot agree the contents of the Annual Work Programme, the
matter shall be dealt with in accordance with clause 32. Pending the outcome of
the dispute resolution process or termination of the Agreement under clause 32,
the Partners shall make available arnounts and, as the case may be, slaff and
other resources equivalent to the Financial Obligations for the previous Financial

Year

9. PERFORMANCEMANAGEMENT

o4 The Partners shall adhere to the performance management framework set out in
intemal policy documents as agreed between the Partners

9.2 Without prejudice to the implementation of the performance management

framework referred to in clause 9.1, in the event that the Authority has any
concerns on the operation of the Arrangements of fhe standards achieved in

connection with the carrying out of the Functions, it may convene a review with
the Trust with a view to agreeing a course of action to resolve such concerns.

B1

82

Page 173



ftuft\ør'rq
'T-nrsk !'

Nothing in this Clause shall prejudice the AuthoriÇ's right to terminate this

Agreement pursuant to clause 32

10" FINANCIALOBLIGATIONS

The Partners' Financial Obligations in respect of the Partnsrship Arrangements shall

be discharged in accordance with the arrangements set out in Schedule 9

11, CAPITALEXPENDITURE

The Financíal Obligations shall be directed exclusively to revenue expenditure Any

arraégements for the sharing of capital expenditure shall be made separately and in

accordance with section 256 (or section 76) of the NHS Act 2006

12. SETUPCOSTS&

12,1 Each Partner shall bear its own costs of the establishment of the Partnership

Arrangements under this Agreement.

13. PREMISES

13.1 The Trust shall make available the Trust's Premises to the Partnership

Arrangements'

14. STAFFING (TUPE, SECONDMENTAND PENSIONS)

14,1 The Partners have agreed that pursuant to arrangements under Section 113 of

the Local Government Act 1972 the Post Holders will be made available by the
+Þ 'rb+ 

tfl#,Fte{he,Auth€niç in accordance wlth the terrns of the Section 113 Agreement

't-u and the lndividual Agreemonts and the Partners agree that TUPE will not apply on

+
v the commencement of this Agreement, during the Agreement Term or on the

expiry of this Agreemenf (in whole or in part) However, if during the Term, TUPE

operates so as to transfer the employment of a Post Holder from one Partner ("the

Transfero/')to the other Partner ("the Transferee") the Partners shall comply with:

(a) their legal obligations under TUPE

(b) if applicable, ihe Statement of Practice

14,2 The Partners agree that the provisions of Schedule 6 shall apply to any:

(a) RelevantTransfffifa[under this Agreement; and

1C Ol sEcondments of *sst staff to the Authonity under arrangements pursuant to
'V Seciion 113 of the Local Government Ad 1972'

Page 174



15. GOVERNANCE

15.1 The Partners agree that the arrangements specified in Schedule 8 shall have

effect.

15.2 The Trust shall nominate the Trust's Authorised Offícer, who shall be the main
poínt of contact for the Authority and shall be responsible for representing the
Trust and liaising with the Authority's Authorised Officer in connection with the
Partnership Anangemenfs.

15.3 The Authority shall nominate the Authority's Authorised Officer, who shall be the
main poinl of contact for the Trust and shall be responsible for representing the
Authority and liaising with the Trust's Authorised Officer in connection with the
Partnershíp Anangements..

16. QUARTERLY REVIEWAND REPORTING

16,1 The Partners shall carry out a quarterly review of the Partnership Arrangernents
within 30 days of the end of each Quarter in accordance with this clause 16..

16"2 The Trust's Authorised Officer shall submit a quarterly report to the Partnership

Management Group setting out

(") the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the performance

management framework in the preceding Quarter; and

(b) any issues of concern in respect of the Financial Obligations.

17. ANNUAL REVIEW

17,1 The Partners agree to carry out a review of the Partnership Anangements and
progress against the Annual Work Programme (Annual Review) including:

(a) the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the Aims and

Outcomes;

(b) the performance of the individual Services against the service levels and
other targets contained in the relevant contracts;

:

(c) plans to address any underperformance in lhe Services;

(d) review of plans and performance levels for the following year; and

(e) plans to respond to any changes in policy or legislation applicable to the
Services or the Partnership Arrangements,

17.2 The Trust shall prepare an annual report following the Annual Review for
submission to the Partners' respective boards,

Page 175



I8, VARIATIONS

This Agreement may be varied by the Partners at any time by agreement in writing in

accordance with the Partners' internal decision-making processes.

I9. STANDARDS

19,1 The Partners shall collaborate to ensure that the Partnership Arrangements are

discharged in accordance with:

(a) the service standards set out in Schedule 5;

(b) the prevailîng standards of clinical governance;

(c) the Authority's standing orders; and

(d) the requirements specified by the Care Quality Commission and any other

relevant Regulatory Body,

19.2 The Partners shall develop operational guidance and procedures to reflect

compliance with clause 19

19.3 The Partners shalt ensure that each employee is appropriately managed and

supervised in accordance with all relevant prevailing standards of professional

accountability.

20. HEALTHANDSAFETY

2O-1 The Trust shall (and shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure its

Representatives) comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work

Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of practice relating to

health and safety, which may apply to the Services and persons working on the

Services

20.2 The Trust shall ensure that its health and safety policy statement (as required by

the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974), together wíth related policies and

procedures, are made available to the Authority on request.

2A.3 The Trust shall notify the Authority if any incident occurs in the performance of the

Services, where that incident causes any personal injury or damage to property

that could give riso to personal injury, and the Trust shall ensure that its

Representatives:

(a) comply with any Quidance provided by the Authority as to the form in which

any notificatlons are to be made and provide any further information which

the Authority may require in relation to the incident or accident;

(b) promptly notify the AuthorÌty and the Trust of such incident or accident and,

where relevant, outline what action has been taken by the relevant member

of staff as a result of the incident or accident; and

Page 176



(c) at the discretion of the Authorlty, catry out an investigation Ínto the incident

or accident and its causes and make the results available to the Authority or
permit the Authority to carry out such investigation and fully co-operate with

such investigation"

21. EQUALITYDUTIES

21,1 The Partners acknowledge their respective duties under Equality Legislation to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victímisation, and to advance

equalþ of opportunity and foster good relations between different groups"

212 The Trust agrees to adopt and apply policies in its carrying out of the NHS

Functions and Authority Health-Related Functions, to ensure cornpfiance with

their equality duties under applicable provisions of Equality Legistation

21.3 The Trustshall take all reasonable steps to securelhe observance of clause 21

by all servants, employees or agents of the Trust and all Servioe Providers

employed in delivering the Services described in this Agreement

22. FREEDO¡UOFINFORMAT¡ON

The Partners acknowledge that each is subject to the requirements of FOIA and the
ElR, and shall assist and co-operate with one another to endble each Partner to
comply with these information disclosure requirements, where necessary.

23. DATA PROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHAR¡NG

23.1 Each Partner shall (and shall procure that any of its Representatives involved in

the provision of the Services shall) comply with any notification requirements

under Data Protection Legislation Both Partners shall duly observe all their
obligations under Data Protection Legislation, which arise in conneclion with this
Agreement, which shall include, wÍthout, limitation, ensuring that all Personal Data

processed by its staff on behalf of and/or in the course of this Agreement, is
processed in accordance with the provisions and principles of Data Protection

Legislation

23 2 Subject to applicable Law, the Partners shall share information about Service

Users to improve the quality of care and enable integrated working.

23.,3 The Partners shall adhere to the lnformation Sharing Protocol when sharíng

information under this Agreement and the obligations referred to in Schedule 7 to
this Agreement

Page 177



24. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE RECORDS

24.,1 The Trust shall hold, and be responsible for maintaining and the safekeeping of
the Authority's Service User Records for the Term, in accordance with Data

Protection Legíslation and which shall consist of all information relating to the

social care interventions in relation to a Service User pursuant to the Authority's

obligations under this Agreement;

24,2 The Trust shall be responsible for facilitating Service Users in accessing their

Personal Data under the DPA 1998.

24,3 Upon the expiry or early termination of the term of the Agreement, the Partners

shall work in good faith and cooperation in reaching an agreement as to whether

Clause 24, þ) or 24,4(b\ shall apply to the Trust's Service User Records,

24"4 Subject to the agreement reached by the Partners pursuant to Clause 24.3, upon

the expiry or early termination of the Agreement, the Trust shall either:

(a) use íts reasonable endeavours to provide copies of, and reasonable access
to the Trust's Service User Records on receiving reasonable notice from the
Authority;or

(b) transfer the Trust's Service User Records to the Authority or a replacement
service provider designated by the Authority and the provisions of Glause

24.5 shallapply

24 5 Where the Trust has complied with its obligations set out in Clause 24 4 (b), the

Authority shatl allow and procure that any new service provider allows the Trust

access on reasonable notice to the Trust's Service User Records The Trust shall,

in such circumstances comply with 'lts obligations under Data Protectíon

Legislation.

24,6 
'Ïhd 

Trust's Service User Records and the Council's Service User Records shall

be treated as confidential þetween the Partners, No copy, extract or summary of
the Trust's Service Records and the Council's Service User Records, any part of
them or any comment on them shall be supplied to any Third Party (other than in

compliance with Law or for the purposes of obtaining legal advice) without the
prior written approval of the Partners

25. CONFIDËNTIALITY

25.1 ln respect of any Confidentiat lnformation it may receive from the other Partner
(the "Discloser'') and subject always to the remainder of this Clause 25, each
Partner (the "Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and

shall not disclose any such Confldential lnformation to any Third Party, without the

DÍscloser's prior written consent provided thaL

Page 178



(a) the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge,
experience or skílls which were ln its possession prior to the
commencoment of the Agreement; and

(b) the provisions of this Clause 25 shall not apply to any Confidential
lnformation which:

(Ð is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of the
Agreement or other act or omission of the RecÍpient; or

(iÐ is obtained by a Third Party who is lawfully authorised to discfosq
such information,

25.2 Nothing ín this Clause 25 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential
lnformation where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental

or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or clairn or
otherwise by applicable law

26. AUDIT

26.1 The Trust shall anange for the audit of the accounts of the Partnership
Arrangements in accordance with its statutory audit requirements,

26.2 The Trust shall provide to the Authority any reports requlred concerning the
AuthorÍty Health-related functions on réasonable notice and free of charge,

263 The Partners shall co-operate in the provision of lnfornation, and access to
premises and staff, to ensure compliance with any statutory inspection
requirements, or other monitoring or scrutiny functions, The Partners shall
implement recommendations arising from these inspections, where appropriate

26.4 The Authority shall during the Tarm of this Agreement províde to the Trust on
reasonable notice access to all information, books, receipts and other records
which the Trust may reasonably requiro in order to audit or othen¡rise verify the
sums invoiced to the Trust under the arrangements set out in Schedule g.

26,5 The Trust shall keep and maintain until 12 years after the end of the Term, or as
long a period as may be agreed between the Partners, full and accurate records
of the Agreement inctuding the Services supplied under it, all expenditure
reimbursed by the Authority, and all payments made by the Authority, The Trust
shall on request and at its own expense afford the Authority or the Auihority's
Representatives such access to those iecords as may be requested by the
Authority in connection with the Agreement,

27,, INSURANCE

27,1 Each Partner shall effect and maintain a policy or policies of insurance, providing
an adequate level of cover for liabilities arising under any índemnity in this

Page 179



Agreement, which shall include without lirnitalion, appropriate insurance

arrangements in respect of employe/s liability, liability to Third Parties and all

other potential liability under this Agreement, The obligations in this Glause shall

include insurance (or equivalent) arrangements after the date oJ the determination

of this Agreement in respect of any events, acts or omíssions prior to such

determination.

27.2 Each Partner shall be responsible for insuring the premises and assets it

contributes to the Partnership Arrangements

28. INDEMNITIES

28.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall affect:

(a) the liability of the Authority to the Service Users in respect of the Health-
Related Functions;or

(b) the liability of the Trust to Service Users in respect of the NHS Functìons

28"2 Each Partner (the "lndemnifying Partne/') shall indemnify and keep indernnified

the other Partner (the "lndemnified Partner") against all Direct Losses, whether

a¡sing in tort (including negl¡gent act, or omission), default or breach of this

Agreement, to the extent that any loss or claim is due to the breach of contract,

negligence act, omission, wilful default fraud or breach of statutory duty of itself or

the lndemnifying Partneds Representatives arising out of or in connection with this

Agreement, except to the extent that the loss or claim is directly caused by or

directly arises from the neglígent act or commission, breach of this Agreement, or

applicable Law by the lndemnified Partner or ìts Representatives.

28 3 lf any Third Party rnakes a claim or intimates an intention to make a claim against

either Partner, which may rêasonably be considered as likely to give rise to an

indemnity claim under these provisions, the lndemnified Partner shall:

(a) as soon as reasonably practicable give written notice of that matter to the

lndemnifying Partner.specifying in reasonable detail the nature of the

relevant claim;

(b) not make any admission of liability, agreernent or compromise in relation to

the relevant claim without the prior written consent of the lndemnifying

Partner (such consent not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or

delayed);and

(c) give the tndemnifying Partner and its professional advisers reasonable

access to ils premises and personnel and to any relevant assets, accounts,

documents and records within its power or control so as to enable the

Page 180



lndemnifying Partner and its professional advisers to examine such
premises, assets, accounts, documents and records and to take copies at
their own expense for the purpose of assessing the merits of, and if
necessary defending, the relevant clairn.

29. LIABILITIES

29^1 Neither Partner shalt be liable to the other Partner for claíms by Third Partíes

arising from any acts or omissions of the other Partner in connection with the
Services before the Commencement Date,

29.2 Each Partner shall, at all times, take all reasonable steps to minimise and mítigate
any loss or damage for which the relevant Partner is entitfed to bring a claim
against the other Partner under this Agreernent,

29.3 Neither Partner wifl be liable for any lndirect Losses suffered by the other Party
whether such losses or the potential for such losses were made known to the
Party or not and, other than in respect of death or personal injury or fraudulent
m isrepresentation .

30. COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS

30 1 Subject to the requirements of the Law or any NHSLA schemes to which the Trust
is a member, within twelve (12) months of the Commencement Date, the Partners
will develop and operate a joint complaints system. The application of a joint

complaints system will be without prejudice to a complainant's right to use either
of the Partners' statutory complaints procedures where applicable,

30..2 Prior to the development of a joint complaints systern or âfter the failure or
suspensíon of any such joint complaints system the following will apply:

(a) all complaints received in connection wíth the Services or the exercise of the
Functíons by one Partner shall be reported to the other Peirtner, The Partner
in receipt of the complaint shall provide the other Partners with such detail
regarding the complaint as the other Partners may reasonably require (and

insofar as it is lawfully able to do so);

(b) where a complaint wholly [or in part] relates to one or more of the NHS

Functions, it shall be dealt with in accordance with the statutory complaints
procedure of the Trust and the Trust will ensure that the Council is kept
informèd about the conduct of any complaint that it is managing,
administering, investigating and defending pursuant to this Clause;

(c) where a complaint wholly relates to one or more of the Authority's Health

Related Functions, it shall be dealt with in accordance with the statutory

I

I

Page 181



compla¡nts procedure of the Authority and the Authoriiy will ensure that the

Trust is kept informed about the conduct of any complaint that it is

managing, administering, investigating and defending pursuant to this

Clause;

fil where a complaint relates partly to one or more of the Authority's Hdalth

Ralated Functions and partly to one or more of the NHS Functions, then a
joint response will be made to the complaint by the Authority and the Trust,

in line with localjoint protocol;

(e) where a complaint cannot be handled in any wáy described above or relates

to the operation of this Agreement, then the Partnership Management Group

will set up a complaints group with equal representation from both Partners

to examine the complaint and recommend remedies All complaints shall be

reported to the Authorised Officers

30 3 The Partners shall each fully comply wilh any investigation by the Ombudsman,

including providing âccess to lnformation and making staff available for interview

30,4 During the Term:

(a) the Trust shall remain accountable (including (without limitation) and at the

Trust's own cost, responsibility for the managernent, administrative,

investigation and defence) for any complaint arising out of or in connection

with the provision of tho Services prior the Commencernent Date, and the

joínt protocol developed pursuant to clause 30,1 will include provision to

deal with any such complaints that relate to the Services with which the

Authority had involvement prior to the relevant Commencernent Date; and

(b) each Partner agrees not to act in a manner prejudicial to the reputation of

the other Partner and the both Partner s agrêe to co-operate with each other

in the performance of their respective obligations under this clause 30 in
accordance always with their statutory obligations and applicable

government guidance

3I. HEALTHWATCH

31 .1 The Partners shall promote and facilitate the involvement of Service Users, carers

and members of. the public in decision-making concerning the Partnership

Arrangements

31 .2 The Trust shall ensure the effective discharge of its obligations to HealthWatch

Page 182



32,, DISPUTERESOLUTION

321 ln the event of a dispute between the partners arising out of this Agreement,
either Partner may serve written notice of the dispute on the partnership
Management Group, settíng out full details of the dispute

322 The members of the Partnership Management Group shall meet as soon as
possible and in any event within seven (7) days of notÍce of the dispute being
served pursuant to clause 32.1 at a meeting convened for the purpose of
resolving the dispute and use its best endeavours to resolve dispute.

323 lf any dispute referred to the Partnership Management Group is not resolved
within 15 Working Days of the dispute being refered to it, either Partner, by notice
in writing to the other, may refer the dispute to the chief executives of the
Partners, who shall co-operate ín good faith to iesolve the dispute as arnicably as
possible withín 20 Working Days of service of the notice,

32,4 lf within the allotted time the processes set out in clauses 32"2and 32,3 do not
resolve such dispute to the satisfaction of both Partners either partner may refer
any dispute to an adjudicator

32.5 lf the Partners are unable to agree the appointment of such adjudicator wíthin
seven (7) Working Days of the request by either Partner for sucn ån 

"ppo¡ntrritthen an appropriate expert (willing to act in that capacity hereunder) shall be
appointed by the President of the Cenlre for EffectÍve Dispute Resolution and the
Partners agree to accept such appointment

32,6 Disputes shall be decided by such adjudicator in accordance with the latest Rules
of Adjudication of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution as in place at the
time of the Dispute being referred to such adjudicator, and costs shall be borne in
such proportions as the adjudicator may determine to be fair gnd reasonable in ail
the circumstances or, if the adjudicator makes no such determination, by the
parties in equal proportions PROVIDED ALWAYS that the partners agree that no
decision or determination of an adjudicator under this clause 32,S shall be final
and binding upon them

32'7 This clause 32 shall not prevent eíther Partner from seeking injunctive relief at any
time during the Term (regardless of whether the Dispute Resolution procedure set
out in this clause 32 has been exhausted or not) in the case of any breach or
threataned breach by the other Partner of any obligation under this Agreement.

, TERMINATION

33 1 Without prejudice to other rights and remedies at law, and unless terminated
under clause 33 2, 33 3 or 33.4, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at
any time by giving 12 months'written notice to the other partner

33

Page 183



33,2 Subject to clause 33.3, either Pañner may terminate this Agreement at any time

by giving 6 rnonths'wrílten notice to the other Partner, if for budgetary reasons:

(a) it is no longer able to meet its Financial Obligations or othenruise contribute

sufficíent resources to the Partnership Arrangements (or any part of them);
or

(b) it is of the reasonable opinion that in light of the otheds inability or failure to

meet its Financial Obligations in whole or in part the Partnership

Arrangements (or any part of lhem) are no longer viable

(")

33.3 Either Partner (for the purposes of this clause 33.3, the First Partner) may

terminate this Agreement on one calendar month's written notice by the service of
wrítten notice on the other Partner (for the purposes of this clause 33.3, the
Second Partner) in the following circumstances:

(a) ii the Second Pariner is in breach of any material obligation under this

Agreement, provided lhat, if the breach is capable of remedy, the First

Partner may only terminate this Agreement under clause 34 3, if the Second

Partner has failed to remedy the breach within 28 days of receipt of notice

from the First Partner (Remediation Notice) to do so;

(b) there is a Change in Law that prevents either Partner from complying with

its obligations under this Agreement; or

(c) following a failure to resolve a dispute under clauses 32.

33.4 Unless the Partners othenvise agree, this Agreement will automatically expire or,

as the case rnay be, tenninate on the date of expiry,

33 5 The provisions of clause 33 shall apply on termination of this Agreement.

33.6 For the avoidance of doubt, the terminatlon of this Agreement and the Partnership

Arrangements made under it shall not preclude the Partners from entering into

alternative arrangements for the commissioning and provision of the NHS

Functions relating to learning disability services;

34, CONSEQUENCES OF TËRMINATION

34 1 On the expiry of the Term, or if this Agreement iç terminated in whole or in part for

any reason:

(a) the Parlners will comply with the exit strategy prepared by the Partnership

Management Group;

(b) prernises and assets shall be returned to the contributing Partner in

accordance with the terms of their leases, licences or agreed schedule of
condition;

Page 184



I

I

I
I

(c) assets purchased for use for the purposçs of the Partnership Anangements
shall unless othenivise agreed by the Partners be returned to the Partner
from whose financiat contribution or other resouràe the purchase was made;

(d) contracts entered into by the Trust concerning the Authority Heafth-related
Functions shalt be novated to the Authority and the Authority shall accept' 
the rtovatíon; and

(e) the Trust shall transfer fo the Authority all records in its possession rèla¡ng
to the Authority Health-related Functions.

34.2 The expiry or termination of this Agreement shall be without prejudice to any of
the rights or remedíes that have accrued to whichevor Partner under this
Agreement and shall have no effect on the liability of either Partner to make
payment of any sums due under this Agreement, prior to the date upon which
such termination takes effect.

34.3 Upon the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the partners shall:

(a) work together to wind down and disaggregate all arrangements made
pursuant to this Agreement, and shall in so doing ensure a minimal
disruption and impact on Service Users and the partners; and

(b) work together to ensure an orderly handover in relation to all aspects of the
Functions and shall at alf times act in such a manner as not to adversely
affect the delivery of the Services

34.4 The provisîons oî the following clauses shall survive termination or expiry of this
Agreement:

(a) Clause 22 "Freedom of lnformation"

(b) Clause 23 "Data Protection and lnforrnation Sharing,,

(c) Clause 26; "Audit"

(d) Clause 28; "lndemnities"

G) Clause 29; "Liabilities" and

(f) Clause 34; "Consequences of Termínation"

35. PUBL|C|TY

fhe Partners shall use reasonable endeavours to consult one anolher before making
any press announcements concerning the Services or the discharge of either
Partne/s Functions under this Agreement

Page 185



36. NO PARTNERSHIP

36.1 Nothing in thís Agreement shall be construed as constituting a legal partnership

between the Partners or as constituting either Partner as the agent of the other for

any purpose whatsoever, except as specified by the terms of this Agreement.

36.2 Neither Partner nor any of its employees or agents will have the power to make

any representations or give any warranties to Third Parties on behalf or in respect

of the other Partner, nor bind the other Partner in any way,

37. THIRD PARTYRIGHTS

37,1 lt is agreed for the purposes of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

that this Agreement is not intended to, and does not, give to any person who is

not a party to this Agreement any ríghts to enforce any provisions contained in

this Agreement.

38. NOTICES

38.1 Notices shall be in writing and shall be sent to the other Partner marked for the

attention of the chief executive or another person dufy notified by the Partner for

the purposes of serving notices on that Partner, at the address set out for the

Partner in this Agreement.

38.2 Notices rnay be sent by first class mail or facsimile transmission, provided that

facsimile transmissions are confirmed wÍthin 24 hours by first class rnailed

confirmation of a copy Correctly addressed notices sent by first class mail shall

be deemed to have been delivered 72 hours after posting and correctly directed

facsimile transmissions shall be deemed to have been received instantaneously

on transmission, provided that they are confírmed as set out above'

39. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACT¡NG

39.1 Subject to clause 39 2, this Agreement and any right and conditions contained in

it may not be assigned, sub contracted or transferred by either Partner without the
prior written consent of the other Partner, except to any statutory successor to the

relevant function

39,2 Pursuant to clause 2.2,lhe Partnors recognise the changing landscape of the

NHS and agree that the Trust shall be entitled to novate, assign or transfer in

whole or in part the benefit and burden under this Agreement (o any other'NHS

organisation, statuiory successor in title of all or part of its functions, property,

rights and liabilities, or any other entity replaeing the Trust or who has become

responsible for the exercise of any or all of the NHS Functions and that consent

shall not be required from the Authority for any such transfer (including an

Page 186



assignment or sub-contract). The Authority shall do all that is required to assist
such transfer and/or enable it to come into effect

40. SEVERABILITY

lf any term, condition or provision contained in this Agreernent shall be held to be
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable to any extent, such term, condition or provision
shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining parts of this
Agreernent

41. WAIVER

41 ,1 The failure of either Partner to enforce any of the provisions of lhis Agreement at
any tfme or for any period of time shall not be construed to be a waiver of any
such provision and shall in no matter affect the right of that Partner thereafter to
enforce such provision,

41.2 No waiver in any one or more ínstances of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement shall be deomed to be a further or continuing waiver of such provision
in other instânces.

42. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the Schedules and the documents annexed to it or otherwise
referred to ín it contain the whole agreement between the parties relating to the
subject matter of it and supersede alf prior agreements, arrangomenls and
understandings between the parties relating to that subject matter,,

43. GOVERNINGLAWANDJURISDICTION

subject to clause 32, this Agreement any dispute or claim arising out of or in
connection with it or its subject matter, and any non-contractual obligations arising
out of or in connection with it, shall be governed by and construed in aecordance
with the law of England and Wales, and the Partners inevocably agree that the
courts of Ëngland shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim that
arises out of or in connection with this Agreement (including non-contractual disputes
or claims).

44. FAIR DEALINGS

The Partners recognise that it is impracticable to make p¡ovision for every
contíngency which may arlse during the life of this Agreement and they declare it to
be their intention that this Agreement shatl operate between them wíth fairness and
wíthout detriment to the interests of either of them and that if in the course of the
performance of this Agreement, unfairness to either of them does or may result then
the other shall use its reasonable endeavours to agree upon such action as may be
necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness,

Page 187



45. CONF'LrcTS OF INTEREST

451 Each Partner shall perform their obligations under this Agreement in the best
interests of the other Partner, and shall notify the other Partner of any conflicts of
interests as they arise during the Term,

46. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one (1) or more counterparts,, Any single
counterpart or a set of counterparts executed, in either case, by both Parties shall
constitute a full original of this Agreement for all purposes.

This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on the date
stated at the beginning of it.

. -l 1--r't.1 .

EXECUTED AS A DEEÐ on behalf of the Authority :+l+¿¿

THE COMMON SEAL of PORTSMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL was hereunto affixed in

pursuance ol a resolution of the Council

passed at a meeting duly convened and held:-

Authoiised Sígnatory

EXECUTED AS A DEED on behalf of the Trust

THE GOMMON SEAL ofSOLENT NHS

TRUST was affixed to this

Deed in the oresence of:-

¡t

t

..\

)

)

)

)

)

Page 188



I

i

Schedule 6 Human Resources

I. STAFF DETAILS

1 .1 A database exists which lists all of the seconded staff from the Authority to the Trust
for it to managê and direct as a part of the anangements, This database shall be
held and updated by the HR Department of the Authority.

1 .2 A database exists which lists all of the staff of the Trust for it to nlanage and direct as
a part of the arrangêments This database shall be held and updated by the HR
Department of the Trust.

1.3 The secondment agreement will be in place up to and inctuding the 31st March 2016

2. SECONDMENT ARRANGEMENTS .

2..'l The seconded staff will have all seen and signed acceptance of the Socondment
Agreement (Appendix I ).

2.2 The Trust will follow the employee organisation's policies and procedures for all
seconded staff where those polÍcies and procedures and any updates thereto have
been notified to the Truàt, Authority HR staff wlll provide support as necessary to
execute these policies and the process of HR management,.

2..3 The Trust will use its best endeavours to ensure that all rnanagers of seconded staff
attend managernent kaining and updates provided by the Authority especially in
relation to the Authority's policies & procedures.

2,,4 The Authority will ensure all seconded staff are kept informed and up-to-date wÌth
Authority policies and procedures applicable to them.

¡

I

I

I

Page 189



3. STAFF ROLES INCLUDED IN THE AGREEMENT

3.1 Table of posts currently included in the agreement (either currently employed or
vacancles to be recruited to)

Page 190



Access to services through Mental Health Single Point of Access

Prirnary Cere

Pr¡mary Care

Recovery Tea rn

Taiking Charrge

lnten sive
E ngagenre nt

Teams

RHT/Acute Car
Pathway

Mental Health
Single A<:<.ess

Pc>int (24i7)

Page 191



I
I

ì
I

r Section 136 Place oT Safety
¡ Care management of dual diagnosis (with substance misuse) clients

A full description of these services can be found in the Service Level Agreement
which is subject to annual review

The Services will be provided in a non-discriminatory manner, which is sensitive
to the needs ol and accessible to, all sections of the local community,
responsive to language and literacy difficulties and the cultural needs of the
cornmunity

The services will be provided from a number of community bases as listed at
paragraphs 7 ,1 and 7,2 of Schedule 5 and on an outreach basis

3,, Access to Adult Mentat Health Services

3 1 Access to Adult Mentaf Heatth Servíces (see Appendix .l)

2"5

¿,.oI

t

T
I

Page 192



Schedule 5 Service SPecification

1. The Services will be provided for residents of Portsmouth City who are:-

a Adults (aged 1S - 65 years) who meet the eligibility criteria for any of the services

described in Seclion 2¡/

o For the Early tntervention in Psychosis Service, the age eligibilíty criteria

" ll-li,.f:$Ì"" users over 65 years of age witt receive services that are

most a,-ppropriate for their health and social care needs irrespective of

their age

. primary care screening assessmeñt & short term interventions (provision of

information, advice and signposting)
¡ Seoondary care assessment and short-term interventions (up to 6 months)

. Management of those service Users with complex needs, or high risk levels,

via the Care Programme APProach
. Medication clinics and symptom & side effect monitoring
¡ Consultant led Outpatient Clinics
t 24 hour Crisis Resolution and home treatment, as an alternative to hospital

admission
o Housing related support: securing and sustaining accommodation
. ApproJches to treaiment delivery for people requiring f'Assertive outreach"

. Evidenced based care delivery (up to 3 years duration) for those people at

risk of deVeloping psychosis who are between the ages of 14 and 35 and

have had two or fewer ePisodes
r Assessment, ongoing support and joint case holding with other secondary

care servíces oitleñtatty'Disordered Offenders i..e. anyone arrested for an

offence and believeO tó Ue suffering from any form of mental disorder

including mental illness, learning disability, acquired brain iniury and

personality disorder
. þersonal ãnd spiritual suppOrt to Service Users, carels /'family and Staff,

provided by facilitating links with community faith organisatiÓns,

. bommunity develoþment focussing on improving mental health

commissioning, access and outcomes for all ethnic communities
o Oakdene: rehabilitative inpatient unit
¡ The Orchards: intensive care and acute inpatient units

. Day treatment

. Mental Health Act Administration
r Psychological therapies in both individualand group settings
. occupational therapy as part of integrated multidisciplinary teams

. Professional leadership in each key discipline (including Social Care

LeadershiP)

)f,

\Ilr

people living outside Portsmouth City but within Portsmouth Clinical Commissloning

Group's registered GP population will continue to be provided with a service at no

additional cost to the AuthoritY

2 The Services to be provided comprise of:

Page 193



ì
I

11

1,2

Schedule 4 Excluded Functions

Excluded pursuant to the Regutations:

The Trust Functions shall not ínclude the foilowíng:

1.1 1 surgery;
1.1,2 radiotherapy;
1 1,3 termination of pregnancies;
1.1.4 endoscopy;
1 1 5 the use of class 4 laser treatments and other invasive treatments; and
1.1.6 emergency ambulanco services, and

The Authority Functions shall not include any functions pursuant to the following:

1 2.1 subject to Regulation 6(k) of the Regulations, sectíon s 22,23(3),26(2) to (4),
43,45 and 49 of the National Assistance Act 1g4g;

1..2.2 section 6 of the LocalAuthority SocialSeMces Act lg70;
1.2.3 seclion 3 of the Adoption and Children Act 2002;
1 ,2"4 sections 114 and 115 of the Mental Heálth Act 1983;
1 ,2.5 section 17 of the 1983 Act; and

1,2.ß Parts Vllto lX.and section 86 of the Children Act 1989,

or any ottler functions lhat are specÍfied in the Regulations as amended from time to
time as being excluded from seclion 75 arrangements.

To avoid doubt, all functions that are not specified as either Trust Functions in
Schedule 2 or as Authorlty Functions in Schedule 3 of this Agreement shall be
Excluded Functions.

For the purposes of this Schedule 4, reference to legistation and provisions within
such legislation minors the references contained in the NHS Bodies and Local
Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Commencement
Daie, and shall be deemed lo include any and all replacement and amending
legislation and provisíons as may come into foroe from time to time whether prior tã
or following the Commencement Date.

J

1
I

I

2"

3-

Page 194



2,12 Where partners enter into arrangements under regulation 7(1) or 8(1) in respect of

the provision of a service under an¡l enactment mentioned in section 17(2)(a) to (c)

of the 1983 Act, the function of charging for that servìce under that section;

2.,19 the functions of local authorities under or by virtue of sections 28 or 6 (C) (1) of, or

Schedúle I to, the NH$ Act 2006

2,14 Any such additional functions as may be:

2.141 specified in the Directions from the Secretary of State for Health and subject

to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions described in this

Schedule 3 to the Authority; or

2j42 agreed by the Parties from time to time to be Authority Functions for the

purposes of this Agreement,

For the purposes of this Schedule 3, reference to legislation and provisíons within

such legislation mirrors the references contained in the NHS Bodies and Local

Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Commencement

Date, and shall be deemed fo include any and all replacement and amending

legislation and provisions as may come into force from time to time whether prior to

or following the Commencement Date.

3

Page 195



Schedule 3 Authority Functions

The provisions of this Schedule 3 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 5

(Service Specification)

2 The Authority Functions comprise the making of arrangements for the provision of
the Services, to the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the
welfara of the Service Users, and excepting the Excluded Functions listed in
Schedule 4, specifically:

The functions specified in Schedule 1 to the Local Authority Social Services Act
1970;

The functíons under sections 7 or I of the Disabled Persons (Services, Consultation
and Representation) Act 1986 except in so faras they assign functions lo a local
authority in their capacity of a local education authority;

The functíons of providing, or securing the provision of recreational facitities under
section 19 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;

The funclions of local educatíon authorities under the Education Acts as defined in
section 578 of the Education Act 1996;

The functions of local. housing authorities under Part I of the Housing Grants,
Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 and under Parts Vl and Vll of the Housing
Act 1996;

The functions of local authorities under section 126 of the Housing Grants,
Construction and Regeneration Act 1996;

The functions of waste collection or waste disposal under the Environmental
Protection Act 1990;

The functions of providing environmental health services under sections 180 and 181

of the Local Government Act 1972;

The functions of local highway authorities under the Highways Act 1980 and sectíon
39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988;

2.1O ïhe funotions under section 63 (passenger transport) and section 93 (travel
concession schemes) of the Transport Ac't 1985;

211 Where partners enter into arrangements under regulation 7(1) or 8(1) in respect of
the provision of accommodation under sections 21 or 26 of the 1948 Act, the function
of charging for that accommodation under section 22,23(2) or 26 of that Act;

21

2,2

2.3

2.4

2,5

2..6

2.7

28

2.9

Page 196



1

2"

Schedule 2 Trust Functions

The provisions of this Schedule 2 are subject to the provisions of Schedule 5
(Service Specification),

The Trust Functions comprise the making of arrangements for the provision of the
Services, but onlyto the extent that such functions are relevant to and promote the
welfàre of lhe Service Users; and excepting the Excluded Functions listed in
Schedule 4, specifically: -

functions under sections 3, 3A and 38 of, and paragraphs 9 to 11 of Schedule 1' to
the NHS Act 2006, including rehabilitation services and services intended to avoid
admission to hospital;

2,.1

2"2

2.3

2,4

functions under sections 1 1 7 and 1 304 of the Mental Health Act 1983;

functions under Schedule A1 of the Mental Capacity Act 2005;

functions under section 12A(1 ) of the NHS Act 2006 (direct payments for
health care) and;

3

2,5 functionó under regulation 2(7) of the NHS (Dírect Payments) Regulations
2010 and

26 any such additionalfunctions as may be:

2,6.,1 specified in the Directions from the Socretary of State for Health and
subject to the Secretary of State approving the transfer of the Functions
described in this Schedule 2 to the Authority; or

2 6 2 agreed by the Part¡es from time to time to be Trust Functions for the
purposes of this Agreernent,

For the purposes of lhis Schedule 2, reference to legislation and provisions within

such legislation mirrors the references contained in the NHS Bodies and Local

Authorities Pañnershiþ Arrangements Regulations 2000 as at the Gomrnencement

Date, and shall be deemed to include any and all replacement and amending

legislation and provisions that may come into force from time to time whether prior to

or following the Commencement Date

Page 197



4..1 Key objectivss for service improvement for Adult Mentaf Health shall include:

Ensuring that service users with "lead professional' only involvement have a
regular comprehensive assessment of theÍr social care needs,, (Audit sample sÌze
50, bi-annually, compliance g0o/o)

a

6. Review

I
I

Care plans that include carers as partners in delivery should contain contingency
plans that address the eventuality of carers'being unable to provide this role
(Audit sample size 50, bi-annually, compliance 90%)

Take up of direct payments and individual budgets to be raised to median ONS
levels byAprtl2015,

5. Standards for Seruices

5 I Standards for Services are as follows:-

a An agreed sêt of operational policies and procedurqs that will provide a
robust framework fo r practi ce/service d e I ivery

)

a

Ij

I
I

J

1

I

l
I

I

All Staff will adhere to agreed clinical / praclice policies, These will be agreed
and implemented acrosiUotn Partner organisatibns (where possible).

Ensure the sustained delivery of "Essential Standards of Quality and Safetf
(cac 2010)

To have a robust Clinical Governance framework to ensure the provision of
high qualíty, safe Services.

A strategic and flnancial annual review of these objectives will be coordinated by the
s75 lead Manager in accordance with Clause 17 of thîs Agreement and incorporated
in an Annual Report

Page 198



31

3. Key Aims & Objectives

A service level agreement will be entered into between the Council and the Trust

which will contain detailed service specifications of the range and type of Services to

be provided and set out the key performancg targets and outcome measurss to be

delivered (the 'service Level Agreement'). These performance targets summarised

below are the key aims and objectives of this Agreement:

Assertive Outreach: To provide proactíve, intensive and persistent contact and

follow-up for Service Ugers who have a history of disengagement with Adult Mental
Health services" (Target caseload of 76)

Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment To provide an assessment and intensive
home lreatment Service for Service Users in mental health crisis to prevent acute
admission (Target of 379 home treatrnent episodes per year)

Early tntervention in Psychosis: To provide keatment and interventions for people
between the ages of 14 and 35 with a first episode of psychosis or those at risk of
devefoping psychosis (Target of 23 new cases per year)

95% of Service Users discharged from inpatient care receive face to face or
telephone contact within 7 days of discharge

70o/o of service users have a care plan that demonstrates their choice and control
over the service provided,

15:% af Service userS have a caret recorded as haVing a carers asSeSSment, where
the outcome recoded is "seryice provided" or "advice given",

607o of adults on CPA have "settled accommodation" (MHMDS definition)

a

a

a

a

a

3olo of adults on CPA will be recorded as being "in employment" (MHMDS definition).

Delayed transfers of care for adults receiving inpatient services will remain below
7,,ïYo..

4. Service lmprovement Objectives

ln addition to moeting all the requirements of the Service Level Agreement, the

following service improvement objectives wilt be met These will be reviewed and

updated as part of the annual review process

Page 199



a

a

a

Ensure equalíty of access for all groups in the community, including socially
excluded groups and black and minority ethnic communities

To pro-actively encourage, facilitate and support the engagement and
involvement of Service Users and carers in the planning, design and review
of services

To work in partnership wíth localagencies thiit provide:

* Advocacyservices
.i' Employrnent, training and volunteering opportunities

To work withín a robust legal and governance framework to ensure the
delívery of the key aims and objectives (lÍsted in paragraph 3 of this
schedule) and the service improvement objectives (listed in paragraph 4 of
lhis schedule) of this Agreement

2. Principles and Approach to Delively

The Principles and Approach to Delivery shall address the.need for:-2..1

a Developing a range of high quality services that meet the health and social
care needs of the local population, as commissioned by NHS Portsmouth
Clinical Commissioning Group and Portsmouth City Council.

a Providing the seruices in a more co-ordinated way by enabling staff to work
within a single management structure for each Service, anO by arrangíng
provision from a single statutory provider

a

t

a

a

The development of pêrson centred care pathways for mental health and
substance misuse based on rnodels of recovery and the prornotion of
independence

care and treatment should be evidence based and monitored through robust
clinical govomance arrangements to ensure the effectiveness and quality of
SeMce provision

clarity of provision and ease of access to specialist services for seMce
Users and carers

Operating an appropriate single process to assess the needs of Service
Users, to manage and deliver Servîces, and to eliminate duplication and
anomalies in provision

Ensuring the most efficient and effective use of resourcesa

Page 200



I

Schedule f Aims and Outcornes

lntroduction: Description and Purpose of Agreement

The overarching straiegic aim of this Agreement is:-

To ensure the integrated provision of high quality, cost effective mental health which

meet local health and social care needs, through the establishment of a single line

management structure whereby each party contributes staff and shared costs; under

Section 75 of the National Heatth Service Act 2006 from 1 't July 201 3

This will enable both parties of thÌs Agreement to:

. Effectively assess, treat and support vulnerable adults with and mental health
problems to improve their health, socialand psychological functionìng

maximise the efficiency of mental health services for working age adults

through integrated provísion and the effeciive use of the resources committed
by both parties under the terms of the Agreement

To facilitate the delivery of "No Health without Mental Health" - Mental Health

Outcomes Strategy, "Preventing Suicide in England", "The Adult Social Care
OUtCOmeS Framewgrk", "CAfing fOr Our Future", "Think LOCal, ACt PefSOnAl"

and other national directives and policy as they emerge

lmprove the overall quality of Service provision in line with evidence based
practice

Ënsure the provis¡on o-f accessible Services, which are flexible and

responsive to the needs of local Service Users

Facilitate joint working and the seamless provísion of Services though a
single management structure

lmprove the strategic planning and delivery of Services in line with national

and local policy, to meet commissioning priorities and deliver key
performance targets

Develop and deliver an íntegrated workforce strategy, and implement new
ways of working in line with best practice

To provide a comprehensive Staff training and development programme to
ensure that Staff are appropriately trained and quatified to provide high
quality, safe services, and havo opportunities for continuous professional

development and career progression.

1.1

1.2

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Page 201



I
I

Page 202



I

Role FTE GRADE

EMPLOYED

OpeRnr¡ous otRecroR 1.0 8o

HEAD OF SERVÍCE r.0 8c

PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES STRATEGIC

LEAD

1.0

1.0

8c

Que¡-lw lt¡o STANDARDs LEAD 8B

¡APT CLINICAL AND SERVICE LEAD 1.0 8a

PHYSICAL HEALTHGARE MATRON 1.0 8A

MODERN MATRON 2.0 8A

CRHT MANAGER 1.0 8r

u¡n/n¡cn teao 1.0 8n

Ten¡¡/w¡no MANAcERs 7.0 7

M STAFF 13.75

PSYGHOLOGISTS 20 7/8A

¡APT THER.APISTS 28.39 617

NURSES 80.5 5/6

OCCUPAT¡oNAL THERAPISTS/ or SUPPoRT

STAFF

20.54 3t4tst
617

HcsøsrR 56.95 ag

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 32.81 21314

OTAL TRUST ESTABLISHMENT 269.94

Page 203



SOCIAL CARE SECONDED STAFF

I¡¡Teemreo TEAM MANAGER 1.0

COMMUNITY DEVELOPilIENT WORKERS 3.09

OUALIFIED SOCIAL WORKERS 17.98

SOCIAL CARE SU STAFF

ADMINISTR.ATIVE

2.22

2.77

TOTALSOCIALCARE
ESTABLISHMENT

27.96

297TOTALSTSSTAFF

Page 204



3.2 SErvice Structure - s75

I

I
-!

I

I
t

i

I

I
J

I
I

I

I

l
J

Page 205



4. STAFF ROLES EXCLUDED FROM THE AGREEMENT

4.i The detivery of the Apprgved Mental Health Practitioner (AMHP) role is speciflcally

excluded from this agreement. Any praotitioner employed or contracted by the council to

undertake the AMHP role is not subject to secondment, nor included in the terms of this

agreement for the periods of time that they are undertaking the AMHP function.

5. VARIATION TO THE STAFFING ESTABLISHMENT

5,1 The Partners may wish to vary the staffing establishment detailed ín 4 from time to

time

Variations to the staffing establishment will be discussed and agreed by the

Partnership Management Group and the Servíce lrlonitoring Group-
5.2

Page 206



Appendix 1

DRAFT SECONDMENTAGREEMENT TO BE SIGNED BY STAFF MEMBER

Dear

CONFIRMATION OF SECONDMENT

I am pleased to confirrn the details of your secondment to the post of fiob title) based in the
lntegrated Adult Mental Health Service at the St Marys Community Campus / St James
Flospital

This Secondment ís entered as a consequence of an Agreement between the Portsmouth
City Council'("the Council") and Solent NHS Ïrust dated 1 July 2013 under section 75 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for the integration of adult mental
heafth gervices. Portsmouth City Council has agreed to second their Employees to the Trust
on the terms of this Agreement.

1. DETAILS OF SEGONDMENT
1 1 Wtth effèct from 1't July 2013 Council shall second you to the Trust on the terms of this
Agreement. Subject to earlier termínation as provided for in this Agreement, the secondment
will continue until the 30 June 2016 during the period of the sTSAgreement provided that
you remain employed by the Council_

1.2 During the Secondment, you shall be located at (insert base) where you shall act and
perform the duties as set out in your contract of employment with the Council" However it is
recognised that in order to meet changes in service provision thís location and role may
change over tÍme,, You will be consulted in relation to any proposed changes to either
location or role.

2, CONDTT¡ONS OF SECONDMENT
2 I Your Terms and CondÍtions of Employment with the Council shall remain in force during
the Secondment period.

2'2 Your exÍsting Job Description, a copy of which is attached, applies at present. Any
changes will be subject to consultation with you and the Trade Unions

2 3 Solent NHS Trust and the Council agree that you shall remain an employee of the
Council at all times and shall not be deemed to be an employee of the Trust by virtue of the
Secondment and shall not be entitled to any salary, pension, bonus or other fiinge benefits
of the Trust 

?

2,4 Your continuity of service with the Council will be ¡ireserved for both státr.rtory and
-õõntractual purposes during the period of secondment

3 LEAVE "t .,,
t .:.- j

3-l 'The Trust will inform the Council of any absênce, including but not limited ib'éict-<ness
absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon as is reasónably þracticable. tt is'your
responsibility to follow the Council's sickness absence reporting,çrpcedures at alf tirnes

3.2 You shall be entitled to holiday during the period or,econOnlhin,..ordance with your
terms and conditions of employmðnt with the Council. 'il 'à

4 HEALTH AND SAFE'IY

Page 207



ii

Appendix 1

DRAFT SECONDMENT AGREEMENT TO BE SIGNED BY STAFF MEMBER

Dear

CONFIRMATION OF SECONDMENT

I am pleased to confirm the details of your secondment to the post of fiob title) based in the
lntegrated Adult Mental Health Service at the St Marys Community Campus / St James
Hospital

This Secondment is entered as a consequence of an Agreement between the Portsmouth
City Council ("the Council") and Solent NHS Trust dated 1 July 2013 under section 75 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreement") for the integration of adult mental
health services, Portsmouth City Council has agreed to second their Employees to the Trust
on the terms of this Agreement.

I. DETAILS OF SECONDMENT
1 ,1 With effect from lutJuly 2013 Council shall second you to the Trust on the terms of this
Agreement. Subjact to earlier termination as provided for in this Agreement, the secondment
rvill continue until the 30 June 2016 during the period of the s75 Agreement provided that
you remàin employed by the Council.

1..2 During the Secondment, you shallbe located at (insert base) where you shall act and
perform the duties as set out in your contract of employment with the Counpil. l-lowever it is
recognised that in order to meet changes in service provision this location and role may
change over time, You will be consulted in relation to any proposed changes to either
location or role.

A. CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT
2..1 Your Terms and Conditions of Employment with the Council shall remain in force during
the Secondment period

2.2 Your existíng Job Description, a copy of which is attached, applies at present.. Any
changes wiìl be subject to consultation with you and the Trade Unions.

2,3 Solent NHS Trust and the Council agree that you shall remain an ernployee of the
Council at all times and shall not be deemed to be an employee of the Trust by virtue of the
Secondrnent and shall not be enfitled to any salary, pension, bonus or other fringe benefits
of the Trust, 

>

2.4 Your continuity of service with the Council will be ¡ireserved for both s{atutory a¡d
"-õõhtractual purposes during the period of secondment

3 LEAVE 
-N 

..-

3-1 The Trust will inform the Council of any absence, includlng blt not limited tô'å¡.xn"ut
absence, industrial injury or other disability'as soon as is reasónably practicable. lt.is'your
responsibility to follow the Council's sickness absence reporting at all'tìmes,,

3.2 You shall be entitted to holiday during the period of
terms and conditions of employment with the Council

,t

4 HEALTH AND SAFETY

.accordance with your

Page 208



rj

I
I

T'
I
I

i
I

4.1 The Trust shall ensure that-you observe its health and safety policÍes and procedures
and maintain a safe method of working, 4.2 As an employee, you are required under Section
7 of the Health and Safety at Work Acf 1974, to take reasonable care for your own Health
and Safety and that of others who may be affected by your acts o¡r omissions at work

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
5.1 You must declare and seek agreement from the Council and your line manager
regarding any interests, financial or otherwise, which may give rise to'a conflict of interest
during the course of the secondment Such interests include other employment, business
interests and positions of auihority in a charity or voluntary body in the field of health and
social care and in connection with a voluntary or other body contracting for NHS or Council
services,

RESPONSItsIL¡TY FOR RESOURGES
6.1 Where applicable: Where you are responsible for the management of Trusfs budgets
and/or the procurement of equipment and services you should follow the Trust's Financial
Rules and associated procedures You will need to ensure that you read and understand
these fully prior to the secondmenl anangements being implemented,

6.2 ln undertaking such dutíes you should be mindful to ensure efficient and transparent
financial management. This will include financial próbity, the management of financial risk
and achievement of value for money

7 PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND EKPENSES
7.1 You wìll continue to be paid by the Council in accordance with your terms and conditions
of employment for the duration of the secondment

7.2 lt is agreed that the Council shall be solel¡¿ responsible for all income tax liability and
National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in respect of any payment to you
for the provision of services to the Council under this Agreement,

7,3 Any salary increments applicable to your substantive post with the Council will continue
to apply

8 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES
8,1 After 1"t July 2013 the Councilwill contînue to provide advice to you on Council policies
including but not limitéd to disciptinary, grievance, ill health, maternity leave and general
terms and conditions of service,

8,2 The Council will be responsible for ensuring you are kept updated with all changes to
Council policies and procedures, although this may be communicated to you through Trust
staff . ;ì

8,3 During the Secondment Period, the Trust, in consultation with the Coulîcil's Humar.r
Resources Deparlment shall implement the Council's policies and procedures in respect of
you as an employee, So far as they comply with current employment legislatioh

? a; ri'

8 4 The Council authorises the Trust to take action in respect of you as an employee
pursuant to the Council's Disciplinary Policy save for any action, which could rçsult in your
dlsmissal. ln suoh clrcumstances lhe Council shall take apprqþrlqte steps in accordance
with its Disoiplinai Policy and Procedure. ì?l ::

8.5 The Trust may, should it consider necessary to do 
"å,opl"r" 

yo, on special
precautionary leave in accordance with the Council's Disciplinary Policy and in consultation

Page 209



ACGEPTANCE
. Pleasa oonfirm your acceptrance of thè terms of the secondment set out above by

complatlng and retuming the accepknce form enclosed with this letter.

Yours sincerbly

I
I

t'
I

l,

rl;
't

IJ

I
t:

t:

fi

I
t:

I
il

tj

I
il

Page 210



Appendix 2

SEGONDMENT.AGRËEMENT
THÍS SEGONDMENT AGRËEMENT is made on ,,,,.,, between: -
(1) Portsmouth City Council of Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth PO1 2EP (The
Employer")

(2) Solent NHS Trust Central Office, Adelaide Health Centre, William Macleod Way,
Southampton SO16 4XE ("the Trusf')

I.,INTRODUCTION

I 1 This Secondment Agreement is entered into under section 1'13 of the Local Government
Act 1972 as a consequence of an Agreement between the Employer and the Trust dated 1

July 2013 under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 ("the s75 Agreemenf')
for the integration of aduft rnental health services.

1 .2 The Employer has agreed to second their Employees (as detailed in Appendix 1) to the
Trust on lhe terms of this Secondment Agreement

2 SEGONDMENT

2.1 W¡th effect from 1 'r July 201 3 the Employer shall second the Employees to the Trust on
the terms of this Secondment Agreement Subject to earlier terminatìonas provided for in
this Secondment Agreement, the secondment will continue up to and including the 30 June
2016 ("the Secondment Period"),

2 2 During the Secondment, the Ernployees shall be located at St James Hospital,
Locksway Rd, or St Marys Community Campus, Portsmoulh where he/she shall act and
perform the duties as set out ín the Employee's contract of employment wilh the Employer.
However it ís recognised that in order to meet changes in service provision this location ànd
role may change over time. The Employees will be consulted in relation to any proposed
changes to either,location or role.

3 CONDITIONS OF SECONDMENT

3.1 The Employee's Terms and GonditioÉs of Employment with the Employershall remain in
force during the Secondment Period.

3 2 Tha Employees'existing Job Descrlption
to consultation wllh the Employee and Trade

applles at present. Any changes will be subject
Unions

3 3 The Employees shall remain an employee of the Employer at all times and shall not be
deemed to be an employee of the Trust by virtue of the Secondment and shall nqt be
entitled to any salary, pension, bonus or other fringe benefits of the Trust

3.4 The Employees' coirîinuity of servlce with the Employer will be preserved îor.boJh
statutory and contractual purposes during the period of Eecondment. .¿; rt

4 LtABLtryAND |NDEMN|T¡ES 
dr, , 

'(

4 I The Employer shall indemnify and keep indemnified, lhe frudt?inielation to an¡¡ claims,
charges or liabillties for (including but not limÍted to) any income tdx,aEniployee Naiional
lnsurance or similar contributions (including costs ínterêsts and penalties), or other statutory
charges or remuneration or other compensation arising from or ln relation to the services by

Page 211



the Employee under this Secondment Agreement or the Employee being found to be an
Ernployee of the Trust or othen¡vise The Trust agrêes to notify the Employer of any such
claims charges or liabilities received by the Trusi.

4"2fhe Trust shall not be liable for any act or omission on the part of the Employee during
the Secondment and shall incur no liability for loss, damage or injury of whatever nature
sustained'by the Employee during the Secondment.

4.3 The Employer h'ereby indemnifies the Trust against any and all claims, iiabilities, actions,
proceedings, costs (inctuding legal fees), lodses, damages and demands arising out of or
resulting from breach of this Secondment Agreement or any act or omission or default of the
Employee including without limitation:

4,3,1 Any loss of or any damage to any property;
4,3.2 All financial loss;
4.3.3 Those resulting from any breach by the Employee of any intellectual property
rights owned by the Employer or a third party;
4 3.4 lnjury to or death of any person caused by any negligent act or omission or wilful
misconduct of the Employee, whether resulting in material or financial loss or damages
or death or injury to persons or any other loss or darnage whatsoever;
4 3.5 Any and all liability arising from any breach of the provisions of the Data
Protection Act 1998 by the Employee.

4.4The Employer hereby indemnifies the Trust against any and all claims, liabilities, actions,
proceedings, costs (including legalfees), losses, damages, demands, penalties, fines or
expenses suffered or incuned by the Employer which are attributable to any act or omission
by the Employer any other person for whom the Employer are fiable arising out of:-

4,4"1The employment or termination of ernployment of the Ernployee during the
Secondment;or
4.4.2The engagement or termination of engagement of the Employee under the terms
of this Secondment Agreement during the Secondment; or
4,4.3 Any breach by the Employer of any collective agreement with a trade union, staff
association or employee representatives in respect of the Employee including for the
avoidance of doubt without limitation liability for personal injury, accident or illness
suffered or incurred in whole or in part during the Secondment, breach of contract or in
tort, unfair dismissal, redundancy, statutory redundancy, equal pay, discrimination of
any kind or under any legislatíon applicable in the United Kingdom.

4"5 The Trust shall indemnify the Employer against any and all claims, liabilities, act¡ons,
proceedings, costs (including legalfees), losses, damages, demands, penalties, fines or
expenses suffered or incurred by the Employer which are attributable to any act or omission
by the Council or any other person for whom the Trust are liable arising qr¡t of:-

4,5 1 Any breach by the Trust of any collective agreement with a trade union, staff
association or employee representalives in respect of the Employee
4.5.2 Any breach by the Trust.of any disciplinary, grievance or other emplöye-e related
rules ánd procedures during the Secondment includlng for the avoidance ot OóUbt
without limitation liability for personal injury, accident or illness suffered or incurred in
whole or ln part during the Secondment, breach of contract or,ln tort, unfair dismissal,
redundancy redeployment costs, statutory redundancy, equalþay, discrimination of any
klnd or under any legislation applicable in the United Klngdonl$ ï

"i:- '*'- "

il

I'

l'
i

I

L'

tl
!

L

t

5 CONDUCT OF CLAIMS

Page 212



5,1 lf the Trust becomes âware of any matter that may give rise to a claim against the
Employee and/or the Employér, notice of that fact shall be given as soon as possiblo to the
Employer.

5.2 Without prejudice to the validity of the claim or alleged claim in question, the Trust shall
allow the Employer and its professional advîsors to investigate the matter or circumstance
alleged to gíve rise to such claim and whether and to what extent any âmount is payable in
respect of such cfaim, and for such purpose, the Trust shall give subject to being paid all
reasonable costs and expenses, all such information and assistance, inctudÍng access to
premises and personnel, and the right to examine and copy or photograph any assets,
accounts, documents and records, as the Employer or its professional advisors may
reasonably request provided that nothing in this clause shall be construed as requiring the
Trust to disclose any docurnent or thing the subject of any privilege. The Ernptoyer agrees to
keep all such information confldential and only to use it for such purpose,

5.3 No admission of líability shall be made by or on behalf of the Trust and any such clairn
shall not be compromised, disposed of or settled without the consent of the Employer

5 4 The Employer shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to take such action as it shall
deem necessary to avoid, dispute, deny, defend, resist, appeal, comprornise or contest any
such claim or liability (including, without limitation, making counterclaims or other claims
against third parties) in the name of and on behalf of the Trust and to have the conduct of
any relatêd proceedings, negotiations or appeals.

6 LEAVE

6 1 Ïhe Trust will inform the Employer of any Employee absence, including but not limited to
sickness absence, industrial injury or other disability as soon as is reasonably practicable lt
is the Employee's responsibility to follow the Employer's sickness absence reporting
procedures at all times

6,2 The Employee shall be eniitfed to holiday during the Secondment Period in accerdance
wîth the Employee's terms and conditions of employment with the Ernployer

7 HEALTH AND SAFETY

7.1The Trust shall ensure that the Emplóyee observes its health and safety policíes and
procedures and maintains a safe method of working

'7 .2The Employee is required under Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to
take reasonable care for hÍs/her own Health and Safety and that of others who may be
affected by hisiher acts or omissions at work

8 CONFL¡CTS OF INTEREST

8.1 The Employee must declare and seek agreement from the Employer and -his/her line
manager regarding any fnterests, financial or otherwise, which may give rise tð a ,cgnfllct of
interest during the course of the secondment Such interests includë other emploffiéñt,
business ínteiests and positions of authority in a charity or voluntary body in the fidld of<
health and social care and in connection with a voluntary or other,body contracting-for NHS

iï,r i
9 RESPONSIBILITY FOR RESOURCES I I.i, ',

Page 213



9,1 Where applicable: Where the Employee is responsible for the management of Trust
budgets and/or the procurement of equipment and services the Employee should follow the
Trust's Fínancial Rules and associated procedures.

I2 ln undertaking such duties the Employee should be mindful to ensure efficient and

transparent financial management. This wíll include financial probity, the management of

financial risk and achievement of value for money

10, PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND EXPENSES

10 1 The Employee will continue to be paid by the Empfoyer in accordance with the
Employee's terms and conditions of employment for the duration of the secondment,

1O.2ltis agreed that the Employer shall be solely responsible for all income tax liability and
National lnsurance contributions or other statutory charges in respect of any payment to the
Employee for the provision of services by the Employee to the Trust under this Secondment
Agreement.

10.3 Any salary increments applicable to the Employee's substantive post with ihe Employer
will continue to be awarded by the Employer.

11 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

11 1 Replacement of seconded staff
After 1 April 2013 the administrative services to support the recruitment and selection of
seconded staff will continue to be undertaken by the Employer, supported by the Trust as
appropriate.

1 1.2 Employee Relations

11.2.1 The Employerwillcontinue to provide advice toìhe gmployee on the Employer's
policies including but not limited to disciplinary, grievance, ill health, maternity leave and
general terms and conditions of service,

11.2,2 The Employer will be responsible for ensuring the Employee is kept updated with
all changes in the Employerfs policies and procedures, although this may be
communicated to the Employee through Trust staff ,

11.3 Policies and Procedure

11 3 1 During the Secondment Period, the Trust, in consultation with the Employer's
Human Resources Department shatl implement the Employer's policjes and procedures
in respect of the Employees, so far as they comply with cunent empfoyment.leglslatlon.

11.3.2The Employer authorises the Trust to take action in respect of the Ernployees
pursuant to the Employe/s Disciplinary Policy save for any action, which cpuld result in
the dismíssal of an Employee ln such circumstances the Emplqyer.shall takq.;.o
appropriate steps in accordance with its Disciplinary Pollcy and Procedure rt ' 

<

11 .3.3 The Trust may, should il consider necessary to do so¡ þ¡rspend Empló!¡ôes from
duty ln accordance with the Employe/s Disciplinary Pollcy an'Q irl'consultatlon with the
Emþloyer's Human Resources befartment piovidéd tlqt'su9[f{igspension shallbe
notified to the Employer no later than the following working day --

5-t

I

I

t

i'

Page 214



11.3,4 Tho Emptoyer authorises the Trust to dealwith any grievances raised by the
Employee against the Trust in accordance with the Employer's grÍevance policy, The
Trust will notily the Employer of any grievances received by the Trust including those
against the Employer within 3 working days or as soon as reasonably possible

11 3 5 For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in clause 11 shatl be construed or have
effect as construing any relationship of Employer or Employee between the Trust and
the Employee.

11 .4 Workforce lnforrnation

Workforce information regarding Employees witl continue to be collected and retained by the
Employer However, it is recognised that the Trust will require data concerning the
Employees in order to support the planning and delivery of services. The Employer in

accordance with the format and deadlines identified by the Trust will provide this information
as required.

I2 MANAGEMENT DURING THE SECONDMENT

12.1 The Employee shall be supervised by and direcily accountable to a designated line
manager in the Trust's organisational structure during the secondment and where needed
the Employer will provide access to professional supervision for qualified social workers.

1 3 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

13 1 The Employer will work with the Trust to ensure the Employee's professional and
developmental needs are identífied and met;Perforrnance Development Review's,
Performance Management processes, and training of the Employee will be undertaken by
the Trust..

14 MANAGEMENT OF CHANGE

14,,1 lt is recognised that the Trust and the Employer in delivering and developing integrated
continuinþ healthcare will face organisational restructuring and changes in employment
levels, ln the event that the Employees are affected by organisational change, the Trust and
the Employer will ensure that changes happen following full consultation with his/her union
representative and that changes comply with the Employer's employment policies..

15 DATA PROTECTION

15 1 The Employee and lhe Employer consent to the Trust holding, disclosing, using or
othenruise processing any information about them which they provide to the lTrust or which
the Trust may acquire as a result o-f the Secondment. x.

15'2 Tha Employer and the Trust agree to protect any personal data held in relaiion to the '

Employee in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.
\l

16 CONFIDENTIALITY r ,'',!
{

16.1 ln addition to the provisions regarding confidentiality in the Çmployee's Contract of
Employment, the Ëmployee will not disclose during or after the dþçqpdment any confidential
information to whlch the Employee became privy during the cour's¿ê cif the secondrñent,
including but not limited to ail trade secrets, lists or details of customtir.g', suppliers or
patients, information relating to the working of any process or invention carried on or used
by any subsidiary or associate, research projects, prices, discounts, mark-ups, future

Page 215



n

r
I

I

business strategy, marketing, tenders, any price sensitive information, and any proprietary
Council information,

17 TERMINATION

17 .1 ln the event of termination of the s75 Agreement howsoêver arising, this Secondment
Agreement will automatically terminate

17.21he Employee may terminate the Secondment by giving not less than (one) months'
notice in writing (or the Êmployae's contractual notice period if this is greaier) to the ïrust
and the Employer. This will be taken as the Employee's intention to tender their resignation
of their substantive post

I8 REVIEW AND VARIATION

18.1 This Secondment Agreement will remain the subject of periodic review and amendment
as necessary in light of changing service needs and legislative developments

18.2 The parties agree that any amendments or variations to this Secondment Agreement
must be in writing and signed by authorised representatives of the parties

19 GENERAL

19 1 lf any provision or term of this Secondment Agreement shall become or be declared
illegal invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, including without limitation, by
reason of provisions of any legislation or by reason of any decision of any court or other
body having jurisdiction over the parties, such terms or provisions shall be dívisible from this
SecondmentAgreement and shall be deemed to be deleted in the jurisdiction in question
provided always that if any such deletion substantially affects or alters the comrnercial basis
of this Secondment Agreement, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend and
modify the provisions or terms of lhis Secondment Agreement as mây be necessary or
desirable in the circumstances,

19.2 This Secondment Agreement does not create any partnership or agency relationship
between the Employer and the ïrust.

19.3 This Secondment Agreement shall be in substítution for any previous letters of
appointment, agreements or arrangements, whether written, oral or implied, relating to the
Secondment of the Ernployee.

19 4 This Secondment Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with

English law The Employer and the Trust agree that any dispute arising under this

Secondment Agreement or in connection with it shall be decided in¿the English Courts,

which shall have the sole jurisdiction in any such matter

.t: t

,'h,':
, !-.ui'. ''

Page 216



Schedule 7 - lnformation Sharing

1.. The Partners shall comply with the latest version of the Pan Hampshire lnformation
Sharing Protocol at atl times.

2. 'Íhe Partners have developed an Operational Agreement based on the template
found within the Pan Hampshíre lnformation Sharing Protocol which details the day
to day processes for information sharing and the control of new information. The
Operational Agreement ís signed off by the Caldicott Guardian from each Partner,
and any variations to it shall be agreed in writing, This Operationaf Agreernent will be
subject to local approval and reviewed on an annual basis or sooner if appropriate by
the Authority's and the Trust's Information Govemance Leads.

3. The Partners have developed a Privacy lmpact Assessment based on the template
found within the Pan Hampshire fnforrnation Sharing Protocol in relation to the
sharing of the information relating to the Service,

4, lt is agreed that

The Trust will be the Data Controller for existing NHS data prior to the
Commencement Date..

The Authority will be the Data Controller for existing social care data prÍor to
the Commencement Date.

¡ The Trust wÍll be the Data Controller for new information cof lected by the new
integrated team from the Commencement Date

5 ln the event of a breach of Data Protection Legislation by either of the Partners the
relevant Partner responsible for the breach shall be liable for any fines imposed by
the lnformation CommissioneÉs Office.

a

C¿

,t.å!i

Page 217



t,

f-

I

SCHEDULE 8 . GOVERNANGE ARRANGEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTABILITIES

1,1 Both Partners are equally accountable for the delivery of the Aims
and Objectives (schedule 1) and the service specificatíon and Key Performance
lndicators (schedule 5)

2. PARTNERSHIP MAN^AGEMENT GROUP

The Agreement will be actively monitored by a Partnership Management Group
(PMc)

The Partners will agree Terms of Refer:ence for the PMG which will be reviewed
annually

The PMG will meet 4 times a year with senior representation from both
partners,

The PMG will oversee the Partnership anangements to ensure that the Aims
and Q$ectives (schedule 1) set out in this agreement are met.

The delívery of thè service specification and key performance indicators (schedule 5)
will be actively monitored bythe PMG

2,1

2.,2

2.3

2"4

2.5

2.6

2.7

ln the event that either Partner has concerns about the partnership
arrangements, these concems shall be escalated, in the first instance, for the
Council to the Head of Adult Social Care and for the Trust to their Divisionaf
Governance Meeting

ln the event that these concems cannot be resolved through thesê escalation
routes in 2,5, clause 31 will apply,

Ir
t 

':- 't

t

|t.
l.rlt-4

, q.,.*:1 't

Page 218



Section 75 Partnership Agreement Governance Arrangements

Prrrtstltrttrtlr ( r'ly
I r¡tttu rl I rê,r r¡tt\./!'

{ r¡¡rìrt¡¡l¡tp
ìrrl(,rìt Iru5l {ir).rr(i

t

i r rr.,t fVlanacag{Ê,rrìelìt

lÊart MhìetltìË
Assurdtrr'r i { 'rlnil ¡rrrlll (,.ltlllì|rle'

i¡1,¡ 1¡1r¡, /¡,
,,rt lttr¡t:lt¡¡,

Mârì,ltllr¡ rr)fri l,r alUll

)l'

,ia

Page 219



SCHEDULE 9 - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Trust's Financial Obligations

1,,1 The Trust will pay within 30 days of receipt; all acceptable invoices issued by
the Authority, with respect to costs incurred under section 2,.1,2.2 and 2.3
Schedule I of this agreement,

I Z. fn" AuthoriÇ's Financial Obligations
I

2.,1 The Authority will in accordance with the terrns of the Secondment Agreement
' pay allsalaries, expenses and other employrnent coststo and in respect of

the Post Holders and any other and/or additional staff séconded to the'Trust
by the Authority from time to time for the purposes of the Partnership
Arrangements in this Agreement (the'Seconded Staff Costs"),

2,2 The Authority will pay to the Trust such sum as represents 5,0% of all expenditure

incuned by the Trust in respect of the employrnent by the Trust of a Service

Manager for the purposes of the Partnership Arrangements (the nService Manager

Costs'i)

2 3 The Authority will pay the Trust an additional sum to cover the costs incurred by the
Trust in respect of the employrnent by the Trust of staff for the purposes of the

Partnership Arrangernents, This sum will be reviewed annually by the Partnership

Management Group

2..4 The Trust shall send tothe Authority an invoice at {uarterly intervals specifying the

Service Manager costs recharged in respect of the preceding quarter and such

invoices will be payable by the Authority within 30 days of receipt by the Authority of
an acceptable invoice.

3. Variation of the Trust's Financiat Obligations and the Authority's Financial
Obligations

3 1 Variations to the Trust's Financíal Obligations and the Authority's Financial

Obligations will be discussed and agreed by the Partnership Management Group

and the Service Monitoring Group n

3.2 Where the Paftners are unable to reach agreement as in paragraph 3.l of this

schedule 9 the matter will be dealt with under clause 31 rt

" !l,i
4

ll
I

t-
t

I
l

i

I

i

i

i
_,I

;'¿

t

Page 220



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCTL

lntegrated Commissioning

Civic Offìces

Great Western House

GuildhallSquare
Poftsmouth
POl2EP

Phone:023 9268 8315

Fax: 023 9284 1185

3 June 2013

Dear Sarah

S75 Pooled Fund: 13/14 Contribut¡on

As discussed the S75 pooled fuñd arrangements will end with effect from L July 2013' The

integrated provision will continue with iolent as the lead provider (supported by the revised

szs 
-agreement). 

PCC's contribution will be the agreed establishment of seconded staff plus

a contribution to other key posts to be agreed

For quarter L,2l[3h4the pooled fund arrangements continue and I conflrm that PCCi's

contr¡but¡ôn lor l3lt4fullyear effect is as follows'

Sarah Austin
Solent NHS Trust
Adelaide Health Centre

William Macleod WaY

Southampton
so16 4XE

t2/L3

Less 6 Months AMHP

Less 13/1+ Saúings

Less Sub-Misuse Staff

13/14 Full Year

Yours sinceretY

.ç-

1,588,886.50

(226,986.00)

(70,00000) FullYear agreed between Rob & Matthew

(120,300 00) To be paid via PCC public health contract

1,171,600.50

Þ

f

Suzannah Rosenberg

Head of lntegrated Commissioning
f

,t(
i,i?

c,.c.. Matthew Hall, Kim wratten, Rob watt, Neil carstairs, AngelarD¡,trIeÍ

Page 221



Page 222


	Agenda
	3 Learning disabilities section 75 agreement extension
	HSC 23 Mar 18 LD S75 Agreement Extension appx 1 - agreement 2014
	HSC 23 Mar 18 LD S75 Agreement Extension appx 2 - service specification

	4 S75 partnership agreements between Portsmouth City Council and Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group
	HSC 23 Mar 18 S75 partnership agreements between PCC & PCC appx 2 - deed
	HSC 23 Mar 18 S75 partnership agreement between PCC & PCCG appx 2 - agreement 2013

	5 Adult Mental Health Section 75 Extension
	HSC 23 Mar 18 Adult mental health agreement appx 1 - agreement 2013


